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ABOUT CIFI

Headquartered in Shanghai, CIFI Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. (“CIFI” or the
“Company” and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is principally
engaged in the property development and property investment business in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC” or “China”).

We principally focus on developing high quality and end-users driven properties
in first-, second- and robust third-tier cities in China. Our development projects
cover various properties types like residential, office and commercial complexes.
Leveraging our effective business model and strong execution capabilities, we
are poised to continue our rapid growth and develop into a leading nationwide

property developer.

We have achieved a nationwide operating coverage and a strong presence in
major first-, second- and third-tier cities in China. As at 31 December 2021, we
had property projects in the core cities in 4 regions: the Yangtze River Delta, the
Pan Bohai Rim, the Central Western Region and the South China Region. As
at 31 December 2021, we had a land bank with total and attributable GFA of

approximately 52.5 million sq.m. and 28.4 million sq.m. respectively.

Looking forward, driven by our missions of “building for a better life”, CIFI

strives to become a leading and well-respected real estate enterprise in China.
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JEEAE A B AR T

CIFI's Representative Projects in China

= Yangtze River Delta
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= Yangtze River Delta

WS NMBEH: Huai’an CIFI Plaza

e H1BE L Wuhu Pack Mansion HMAKZR Wuhu Weilai Yunchen

AMIERILK Hefei Shidai Jianglai AR o BTk Hefei Ganglong CIFI - Citizen Jianglai

BB D KB Nanchang CIFI Centre Tianyu NZHHAD Lu’an CIFI Centre BB o B Fuyang CIFI - Shuangqing Jianglai
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CIFI's Representative Projects in China

= Yangtze River Delta

SIRAFHUR L3 2 Shaoxing Jinke CIFI Shanghe City Y EJRRT Ningbo Shangdong Chenfu SYATK LT Ningbo Jianglai Mansion

B## Pan Bohai Rim

AN =n ;
T RABLIVE o TBB Beijing Huaxi CIFI LIVE » Wukesong

TR B BT Beijing World W View

EEEE LR Beijing Qingyun Shangfu LEARBS Beijing Park City s R Shenyang Bochen Shidai
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B#hi#i Pan Bohai Rim

KRB R Dalian CIFI Bochen Shidai KL Dalian Jiangshan Ruyuan

KA o BAILK Tianjin CIFL. Duhui Jianglai Mansion

MBI Zibo Xinghe City WEPENEBL R Zibo Boguan Xi'an

BT o BAF Linyi Xinghe City - Shengfu FSERBERT Jining Chenyue Mansion SERFBLE M Jining Boguan Jinli
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CIFI's Representative Projects in China

P4 Central Western

BT BE Zhuzhou Xiangjianghui FWBI A Changsha Guochen Mansion

FeWMi£Hi% Changsha Yuhua Mansion RWBIBERT Changsha Guoyue Mansion

JARHAD Chengdu CIFL Centre JRABALEE o« KR A AL Chengdu CIFT - Tianfu Weilai Centre

JAME HBE Chengdu Huguang Mansion TR o 150 Chongging CIFI - Bochen Centre B MBS Kunming CIFI Plaza
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P4 Central Western

RWATLHS Kunming Gongyuan Jinyue RBAANE Guiyang Duhui Xinyun City

R A T et - R >
WM —IL%F Zhengzhou Yijiangyun Mansion BH AR Zhengzhou Konggang Times Mansion WK Luoyang Tianji

FBHA WL 1015 101 King's Road Hong Kong Tt o MBI BOG Zhuhai Excellence CIFT Jiangyuhai
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CIFI's Representative Projects in China

#j South China Region

ol BRHIHH Foshan CIFT Boshi Mansion JE M BB T4 b Xiamen CIFI Park Mansion Wuyuan Bay 5 " SERERDBR Xiamen Baolong CIFI City

L e SN Nanning Shengshi Chunjiang SR Nanning Fuyiheting Mansion BM BT Livzhou CIFI Jianglai



TR R | U RER () AIRAF

TERBWEMHA

Major Property Projects

ERX IR VSR Eo e
Schedule of Principal Property Projects

PEME INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

W L
AEE (PR
Wi (Fik)  BHEH
Interest Rentable GFA Mg

%H W H BHRSR attributable  (excluding carpark) ~ Primary intended

Project Location Project status to the group (sq.m.) use of the project

LifLOMARTHIE % R TR R R CRTERREE 50% 241 ¥

Shanghai LCMART No.191 Gushan Road, Yangjing Sub-district, Completed and Commercial
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, PRC commenced leasing

LifemEERRRS ohED T A e i 22201 /AW G i 50% Bl HiE

Shanghai LCM N0.2229, Zhangyang Road, Pudong New Completed and Commercial
District, Shanghai, PRC commenced leasing

LU o LA I B A 158 S AW G i 100% s401 A

Shanghai CIFI U Block No.158 Baoxiang Road, Nanxiang Sub-district, ~ Completed and Office
Jiading District, Shanghai, PRC commenced leasing

LR R oD T T 20688 Rtaw i chiti 100% 9585 Hi%

Shanghai CIFI Haishang International No. 2068 Kongjang Road, Yangpu District, Completed and Commercial
Shanghai, PRC commenced leasing

LB o B i A I 1L S B 1789 ERT XA 45% 29665 LK

Shanghai CIFI Pure Center No.178 Puhui Road, Jiuting Town, Completed and Office
Songjiang District, Shanghai, PRC commenced leasing

LA R TR TRARE R R EATRRREH 50% 10740 B

Shanghai Henderson CIFI Center No.1799 Shengui Road, Honggiao Completed and Office
Sub-district, Minhang District, commenced leasing

Shanghai, PRC

IR =36E3 0 VS GERGTIE el CRTERRHH 50% Bl HE

Shanghai The Roof Block 45, Huaihai Middle Road, Huangpu Completed and Commercial
District, Shanghai, PRC commenced leasing

LifEsys i AHER *h ) RO s 23807 ERTER R 100% d6811 A

Shanghai Yangjing S2/83 Office Project No.2389 Zhangyang Road, Completed and Office

Pudong District, Shanghai, PRC commenced leasing
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ERX IR VSR Eo e
Schedule of Principal Property Projects

BEYE )

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Consinued)

LET T
AEH (RfERf)
47 (CFik)  BHEE
Interest Rentable GFA  HlE %
¥H TEH HHRR attributable  (excluding carpark) ~ Primary intended
Project Location Project status to the group (sq-m)  useof the project
ITIN ] o R L 0 EA TR 100% 102 HAl
Shanghai Gaohe Building No.2 Huashan Road, Jingan District, Completed and Office
Shanghai, PRC commenced leasing
LD P LR RS SRR A D ERTRRRHH 50% 94 EAME
Shanghai Office Park Xiuwen road Yuanxiu Road intersection, Completed and Office
Minhang District, Shanghai, PRC commenced leasing
IRl EIN ] TR EETEEEFERRREAE  CRIAMRGA 100% 517 HE
Shanghai CIFI Tower The junction of Changde Road and Changshou Completed and Commercial
Road, Putuo District, Shanghai, PRC commenced leasing
LR EER oD i A R ot EA TR 50% 1038 ¥
Shanghai Greenland CIFI E No.69 Baole Road, Huacao Town, Completed and Commercial
World Center Minhang District, Shanghai, PRC commenced leasing
LERAEH L o B T R 13858 ERTRRRHH 50% 107,106 A
Shanghai Huangchuang Business Centre ~ No.138 Jiefang of Dinghai Road, Completed and Office
Yangpu District, Shanghai, PRC commenced leasing
18 (S R EETELEREEREE 0088 CRTRMRGE 2% 0983 Tk
Shanghai Baoshan CIFI U Block No.11008 Jiefang, Luodian Town, Completed and Commercial
Baoshan District, Shanghai, PRC commenced leasing
Sy R R o T 2 A T 09 EA TR 100% 4860 HAE
Beijing CIFI Wangxin No.209 Lize Xiyuan, Wangjing Area, Completed and Office
Commercial Centre Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC commenced leasing
AR EERES ELR AR ERTERRHH 100% 6 HiE
UREYNKi
Hefei Feixi CIFI Plaza Crossroad of Feicui Road and Paihe Road, Completed and Commercial
Feixi County, Hefei, Anhui, PRC commenced leasing
AT o ERARY o B I R S ERT KAt 30% 044 TiE
FHIETREL
Chengdu Huayu CIFI Glorious Plaza Block Jing Gong Qi Mo, Niulong Road, Completed and Commercial

Changzhenpian District, Longtan Si,
Chenghua District, Chengdu, PRC

commenced leasing
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ERX IR VSR Eo e
Schedule of Principal Property Projects

BEEWE ) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Coninued)

W At

AEH CRERn)
317 4 (Fik)  BHEE
Interest Rentable GFA M

¥H TEH HHRR attributable  (excluding carpark) ~ Primary intended

Project Location Project status to the group (sq-m)  useof the project

IR BB R oi EA TR 100% 86000 i

Chengdu CIFI Plaza Wanhecun, Community 1 and 2, Completed and Commercial
Xindu District, Chengdu, PRC commenced leasing

[iES RN TS AR R R R BUR LI ERTRRRHH 100% a9 ¥

Xi'an CIFI Centre North of Fengcheng Seventh Road, West of Completed and Commercial
Weiyang Road, Jingkai District, Xi'an, PRC commenced leasing

RUMBRARRS BRI R B R 22058 ERTRRRHH 100% U2 HE

Changsha CIFI International Plaza No.222, East Laodong Road, Completed and Commercial
Yuhua District, Changsha, PRC commenced leasing

BRI THEREHEEN SRS EAREREE  CRTRRGSR 100% Bo5 TR

Chongqing CIFI City Next to the Xuetangwan station of Completed and Commercial
Metro Line 3 in Longzhou bay, commenced leasing

Banan District, Chongqing, PRC

il BN o T O s 45638 S AW i 100% 140 AR
Xiamen Hailian Centre No.456 Xianyue Road, Siming District, Completed and Office
Xiamen, PRC commenced leasing
FRILERS o B L o L SR B 6% ERT LR 100% 82540 %
Jiaxing CIFI Square No.666, Zhongshan East Road, Completed and Commercial
Nanhu District, Jiangxing, PRC commenced leasing
b AR o 5 s ERT KAt 100% 50922 A
Shenyang CIFI Central Palace No.5 Tuanjie Road, Shenhe District, Completed and Office
Shengyang, PRC commenced leasing
U A o B e R B g IEHIERT RA 50% 67810 TE
ihi ; 425 HsE
WFRT
Beijing Wukesong Project No.69 Fuxing Road, Haidian District, Completed and Commercial
Beijing, PRC commenced leasing
for phase 1 to 3;
expected to be
completed in 2022

for phase 4 to 5
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TR M JH H B AR

Schedule of Principal Property Projects

ZEiE7ES DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES
R
FHERRRE
L
(L)
(k)
Total GFA under
development and
TH s A%E beldforfurure
RIAM Tl development ~ HHFE
Expected Incerest (excluding 1
T RS R Completion attributable carparks)  Primary intended
Project Location Project status Date to the group (sqm.)  useof the project
ADERZIR R L BRI KR g 2003-2024 90 4100 /T
Gl EEs A
Wenzhou Guanghui City Southeast side of the crosstoad of Ouxiu Road Under Residentiall
and Nipeng South Road, Bandao Qibu District, development Commercial
Wenzhou, PRC
L RN TR B R W 20222003 255 938 /¥
R
Wenzhou CIFI City Crossroad of Lingteng West Road and Nipeng Under Residential/
South Road, Bandao Qibu District, Wenzhou, development Commercial
PRC
RMEEREKEER SR A T B g 203-2026 520 46l 2/ ME
Xuzhou Jiawang Pengcheng Avenue Project  North side of Pengcheng Road, Jiawang District, Under Residential/
Xuzhou, PRC development Commercial
AR TEALTARNFEEOEENR - R 20222025 700 600 2/ ik
RS
Lu'an CIFI Centre West side of Yingbin Road and North side of Under Residential/
Gaocheng Road, Economic Technology development Commercial
Development District, Lu'an, PRC
TR TREL TR E B LRI g 20232026 1000 06 2/ WA/
fi%
Huai'an CIFI Plaza East of Anlan Road, other district of Hui'an, PRC Under Residential/Office/
development Commercial
KERFSFE= R E bl UNGUEN T 50 R 20032027 350 L0y
$P1919-SP1924%E H
Taiyuan Jiancaoping District, Sanji Area, No.299 Heping North Road, Jiancaoping District, — Under Residential/
SP1919-8P1924 project Taiyuan, PRC development Commercial
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TR M JH H B AR

Schedule of Principal Property Projects

PHBEHIE a0 DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Coninued)
LEE
FERATEN
T
(L)
(F7K)
Total GFA under
development and
EENG ALE held for future
RLAM ol 4 development ~ HHEE
Expected Interest (excuding  HEHR
TR TE F bt BERRR Completion attributable catparks)  Primary intended
Project Location Project status Date to the group (sqm)  useof the project
KEREHE=SHE B KRB EA T g0t L 2023-2007 350 1os9n HE/HAR/
$P1925-SP 1928 H ik
Taiyuan Jiancaoping District, Sanji Area, No.299 Heping North Road, Jiancaoping District, — Under Residential/Office/
SP1925-8P1928 project Taiyuan, PRC development Commercial
RRHAT PRAFEREELEERL WekEE W 2022-2024 500 fo0  E/HE
Shijiazhuang Gongyuan Mansion North of Zhaotong South Road and East of Huwo ~ Under Residential/
Road, Chang an District, Shijiazhuang, PRC development Commercial
BT FRETTR R AR R 20042025 450 B EE/HE
Linyi Xinghui City Crossroad of Yihe Road and Shengxing Road, Under Residential/
Luozhuang District, Linyi, PRC development Commercial
RUHRHIL TRRYTEERETRBER A R 20032024 6.0 fan /WM
RER i
Changsha Park Mansion Crossroad of Binjiang Jingguan Road and Under Residential Office/
Youmutang Road, Yuelu District, Changsha, development Commercial
PRC
LENS SR S A A P T R 1 303 g 2032005 30 6148 EE/ ik
Chengdu Tianfu Future Centre No. 130 Xingyuan Road, Huayuan Town, Under Residential/
Xinjin County, Chengdu, PRC development Commercial
AL TEEATRTEPREEEERET -4 RET 20032025 50.0 s/ E
ZRHELA iR -4
Chengdu CIFI Centre Group 11 of Wanshenghe District, Under Residential/
Group 5 of Xuefu Community, development Commercial

Group 1 and 11 of Qianjin Community,
Liucheng Street, Wenjiang District, Chengdu,
PRC
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TR M JH H B AR

Schedule of Principal Property Projects

DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (consinuedy

R
FHEARR R
LS
()
(F7K)
Total GFA under
development and
BHH AEH  heldfor faure
RLAM TEif S developmen: 1%
Expected Interest (excuding  HEE
L] TR it BERRR Completion attributable carparks)  Primary intended
Project Location Project status Date to the group (sqm)  useof the project
RENKIORNS TRESAETRIEBSHIEREER R 20032026 1000 e fE/E
Uriimgi CIFI Plaza Crossroad of Tuanjie Road and Nanwan Road, Under Residential/
Tianshan Disrict, Urﬁmqi, PRC development Commercial
SEAEBRH OB S AT K B & AL DL W 20222024 510 o4/
Uriimgi Xuefu Shangpin North of Hongguangshan Road, Huizhan, Under Residential/
Shui District, ﬂri.imqi, PRC development Commercial
Bl SEAREY S T BB B 603 g 20222005 1000 slad 2/ HiE
Guiyang U Dang Future The One No.168 Beiya Road, Wudang District, Guiyang, Under Residential/
PRC development Commercial
MR A i B R R LG 20222005 1000 s/ HE
Zhengzhou Konggang Times Shuanghe Lake Block, Nangang, Hangkonggang Under Residential/
District, Zhengzhou, PRC development Commercial
RIERES TREMTREE R AR R 2022-2024 6.7 614 fHE/ ik
KR
Kunming CIFI Plaza Crosstoad of Fengyuan Road and Yanjiashan Road, ~ Under Residential/
East of Beijing Road, Panlong District, Kunming, ~ development Commercial
PRC
FRARR R AR B AR LE 2022-2024 1000 002/
NRBELIL ~ DI
Changde International New City South of Gaozhuan Road, north of Renmin Road, Under Residential/
west of Changde Road, Chengdongxin District, development Commercial

Waling District, PRC
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AR R
TR AR | DETEE Year-on-Year
2021 2020 Growth
£ W 88 Contracted sales
A E SR R HET) Contracted sales (RMB'billion) 247.3 231.0 7.1%
o[ 8 B AR AR (75 K) Contracted GFA (sq.m.) 14,486,887 | 15,385,100 -5.8%
B R By S A Contracted ASP (RMB/sq.m.)
(NRWIT k) 17,067 15,000 13.8%
TR ER (AN RWE &) Selected financial information
(RMB’million)
ELfERR IR A Recognised revenue 107,835 71,799 50.2%
B Gross profit 20,797 15,609 33.2%
I SRR i FRE A 4 720 L Profit for the year attributable to equity owners 7,613 8,032 -5.2%
JBE BROME 25 EAG AZ O 1 1)1 Core net profit attributable to equity owners 7,284 8,026 -9.2%
F R AR Selected balance sheet data
(ARWHEL) (RMB’million)
BEE Total assets 432,750 379,299 14.1%
SRITHS R I B4 Bank balances and cash 46,710 51,155 -8.7%
S AR Total indebtedness 114,112 104,715 9.0%
R AE £ AA %R Total equity 107,400 83,642 28.4%
I8t BROREE g IR A I A i Equity attributable to equity owners 41,990 36,052 16.5%
Ji s 5 b % Selected financial ratios
EHHE Gross profit margin 19.3% 21.7%
WL A Core net profit margin 6.8% 11.2%
RHREARA /\Eﬁ%ﬁ\ Earnings per share (basic), RMB cents 92 99
BRFEAZ O > NRES Core earnings per share (basic), RMB cents 87 99
1205 A [ 3 %2 Core return on average equity 18.7% 24.2%
FREHBALE FXK Net debt-to-equity ratio, at the end of year 62.8% 64.0%
TR YR A > K Weighted average cost of indebtedness,
at the end of year 5.0% 5.4%
T (AR FETK) Land bank (GFA, million sq.m.)
Tt fen e (ST RG Land bank (GFA, million sq.m.),
HEEIK) > R at the end of year
— Al ~ Total 52.5 56.5
— R — Attributable 28.4 30.8
0 S TR (RR TR New land acquisition (GFA, million sq.m.),
HEFITK) > R during the year
— At ~ Total 11.7 13.1
— JEAG — Attributable 6.0 8.7
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“Contracted sales” includes contracted sales by the Group’s subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associated companies. Contracted sales data is unaudited and is
based on internal information of the Group. Contracted sales data may be subject
to various uncertainties during the process of collating such sales information and

is provided for investors’ reference only.

“Core net profit” excludes fair value gains/losses, net exchange loss/gain, expenses
relating to share option grants, loss on early redemption of senior notes, and share
of fair value gains/losses and net exchange loss/gain at joint ventures and associated

companies, net of deferred taxes.

“Bank balances and cash” include restricted bank deposits.

“Total indebtedness” includes bank and other borrowings, onshore corporate

bonds and offshore senior notes.

“Core net profit margin” is calculated based on core net profit attributable to

equity owners over total recognised revenue.

The calculation of “return on average equity” is based on our core net profit

divided by average equity attributable to equity owners for each financial year.

“Net debt-to-equity ratio” is calculated by the Group’s total indebtedness
under IFRS less bank balances and cash (including restricted bank deposits) as a

percentage of total equity at the end of each financial year.

“Weighted average cost of indebtedness” is the weighted average of interest costs
of all indebtedness outstanding as at the end of each financial year.

The expression “we” and “us” may be used to refer to the Company or the Group as

the context may require.

The site area information for an entire project is based on the relevant land use
rights certificates, land grant contracts or tender documents, depending on
which documents are available. If more than one document is available, such

information is based on the most recent document available.

The figures for GFA are based on figures provided in or estimates based on the
relevant governmental documents, such as the property ownership certificate, the
construction work planning permit, the pre-sale permit, the construction land
planning permit or the land use rights certificate.
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Dear shareholders:

I am pleased to present you with the business review of the Group for

the year ended 31 December 2021, and the outlook for 2022.

FINAL DIVIDEND AND BONUS ISSUE OF SHARES

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend for 2021 of RMB5.7
cents (equivalent to HK7 cents) per share (the “Proposed Final Dividend”). The
Proposed Final Dividend declared in RMB is proposed to be paid in Hong Kong
dollars (payable in cash), which is based on the average middle rate of RMB to
Hong Kong dollars as announced by the People’s Bank of China for the five
business days preceding the date of the annual results announcement for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Annual Results Announcement for 2021”).
Together with an interim dividend (the “Interim Dividend”) of RMB10 cents
(equivalent to HK12 cents) per share in respect of first six months of 2021, total
dividends for the year amounted to RMB15.7 cents (equivalent to HK19 cents)

per share.

Together with the Interim Dividend and based on the total outstanding
number of issued shares of the Company as at the date of the Annual Results
Announcement for 2021, the total dividends for the year under review amounted

to approximately RMB1,333.8 million.

The Board also recommends a bonus issue (the “Proposed Bonus Issue”) of shares
of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company (the “Bonus Share(s)”) on the
basis of four (4) Bonus Shares for every one hundred (100) existing shares held by
the shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
on Wednesday, 22 June 2022. The Bonus Shares will be issued and credited as
fully paid at par and will rank pari passu with the existing issued ordinary shares

of the Company in all respects from the date of issue.

The Board is of the view that the Proposed Bonus Issue enhances the liquidity and
debt repayment capability of the Company, including but not limited to allocate
part of the cash for repurchasing onshore or offshore bonds of the Company. The
Board will consider to share the investment return of such repurchase (if any)
with shareholders of the Company in the manner of recommending the payment

of special dividends.
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RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group achieved contracted sales of
RMB247.3 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 7.1% from RMB231.0
billion in 2020.

The recognised revenue in 2021 was RMB107,834.7 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 50.2% over RMB71,798.7 million in 2020. The Group’s
net profit attributable to equity owners decreased by 5.2% to RMB7,612.9
million in 2021 from RMB8,031.9 million in 2020. The Group’s core net profit
attributable to equity owners decreased by 9.2% to approximately RMB7,283.9
million in 2021 from RMBS§,026.0 million in 2020.

The Group’s gross profit margin was 19.3% in 2021, versus 21.7% in 2020. The
Group’s core net profit margin was 6.8% in 2021, versus 11.2% in 2020. The
Group delivered a core return on average equity of 18.7% in 2021, versus 24.2%
in 2020.
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REVIEW OF 2021

Market review

The world continued to be affected by the COVID-19 pandemic in 2021, and
the global inflation trend continued, causing central banks around the world to
begin the tightening of monetary policy. The demand for asset reserves and asset
quality increased after the COVID-19 pandemic had been brought under control
in China in the first half of the year, leading to a jump in the transaction volume
during the first half of the year while the GFA sold in 100 cities rose to record
high for the same period, driving the performance of real estate sales. However,
since the second half of the year, the central government has strengthened its
control. The central government insisted on its positioning of “houses are built to
be inhabited, not for speculation”, required the stabilisation of land prices, house
prices and expectations, and increased the supply of affordable rental housing and
shared property housing. In the face of tightened policy and changing market
conditions, the real estate industry entered a cold winter. The overall sales of
China’s top 100 real estate enterprises showed a downward trend throughout
2021. Under the “Three Red Lines” and various regulations including land
auction and regulatory funding policies, the industry’s growth rate slowed
down and real estate enterprises were under the pressure of debt control and
deleveraging. Although signs of easing credit and regulatory funding policy have
been issued since October, the market is expected to remain on the keynote of
“houses are built to be inhabited, not for speculation” and “common prosperity”
in the future. As the capital chain of individual property enterprises broke during
the cycle due to liquidity problems, the property buyers’ confidence suddenly
waned and thus showed their reservation about the market. Nevertheless, at the
same time, the Central Bank and the CBIRC jointly pointed out that “financial
institutions should cooperate with relevant departments and local governments to
jointly maintain the stable and healthy development of the real estate market and
safeguard the legitimate rights and interests of home buyers in accordance with
the laws and market-oriented principles”, successively increased mortgage quotas
for lending, and increased the efforts in promoting development loans in various

regions to reasonably maintain the liquidity of the real estate market.
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REVIEW OF 2021 (Continued)

Market review (Continued)

In spite of facing with a period of change in the real estate industry, investment
in real estate development remained on a growth trend throughout the year,
which increased by 4.4% year-on-year. However, the decline in growth rate
exceeded market expectations, reflecting the lack of enthusiasm of real estate
enterprises in project construction and land acquisition. According to the
National Bureau of Statistics, the GFA of commercial properties sold in 2021
amounted to approximately 1,794.33 million sq.m., representing a year-on-
year increase of 1.9%, and the sales of commercial properties was RMB18,193.0
billion, representing an increase of 4.8%. The GFA of new housing construction
by real estate developers in 2021 was 1,988.95 million sq.m., representing a
decrease of 11.4%, while the GFA of housing construction was 9,753.87 million
sq.m., representing an increase of 5.2% over the previous year. In addition, a
research firm pointed out that real estate enterprises achieved an overall GFA sold
of 846 million sq.m. in 2021, representing a year-on-year decrease of 9.0%, and
sales of RMB12.63 trillion, representing a year-on-year decrease of 3.2%. The
target achievement rate was less than that of previous years, with the bottom 50

real estate enterprises experiencing a greater drop in sales amount than the top

50.

China’s real estate industry experienced unprecedented challenges in 2021.
During such time, the brand strength of real estate enterprises continued to be
a solid bulwark against market cycles and industry risks as well as ensuring the
security of home buyers. As a result, large national real estate developers are well
positioned for consolidating their leading position in a challenging business
environment given their balanced and quality land resources for sale and healthy
financial conditions, the ability to flexibly adjust the pace of marketing and
launching, high cash collection ratio and the advantage of diversified businesses.
The leading real estate enterprises, who have a balanced nationwide presence,
solid business foundation, good reputation and excellent quality projects, can give
home buyers more confidence. Meanwhile, the top real estate enterprises continue
to optimize and reform their environmental protection, social responsibility and

corporate governance to build excellent businesses in all aspects.
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REVIEW OF 2021 (Continued)

Sales performance

For the full year of 2021, benefiting from an excellent national business layout
and quality saleable resources in high tier cities, the Group’s contracted sales
amounted to RMB247.25 billion in 2021, representing a year-on-year growth
of 7%; and contracted gross floor area (“‘GFA”) amounted to 14,487,000 sq.m.,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 5.8%. The Group’s contracted average
selling price (“ASP”) in 2021 was approximately RMB17,000/sq.m. In 2021, the

Group achieved a cash collection ratio of over 95% from contracted sales.

For the full year of 2021, contracted sales from the Yangtze River Delta, the
Pan Bohai Rim, the Central Western Region, and the South China Region
contributed to approximately 46.6%, 19.8%, 22.4% and 11.2% of the Group’s
total contracted sales, respectively. Contracted sales from first- and second-
tier cities accounted for approximately 87.2% of the Group’s total contracted
sales whereas those from third-tier cities accounted for the remaining 12.8%.
Contracted sales derived from residential projects contributed to approximately
92.5% of the Group’s total contracted sales whereas those from office/commercial
projects contributed to the remaining 7.5%. During the period, the Group

launched pre-sale of 89 new projects, including these major new launches:

o Beijing Qingyun Shangfu

o Beijing World W View

. Beijing Guoxiang Yunzhu

o Beijing Park City

o Shanghai Century One Mile

. Zhuhai Excellence CIFI Jiangyuhai
o Zhubhai City Seasons

. Huizhou CIFI Huayu Dongjiang Gongyuan
. Guangzhou Yaoyue Bay

o Guangzhou Heaven Art Realm

o Guangzhou Boyuemingzhu ONE

. Foshan CIFI Boshi Mansion

. Xuzhou Hepingyunjing Mansion

o Suzhou Zhongjian CIFI.Jiangshang

. Suzhou Pingjiang Mansion

. Suzhou Jinlin Boyue Mansion
o Suzhou Lanting Mansion

. Suzhou Boyue Mansion

. Nanjing Shangchen Yunji Mansion
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REVIEW OF 2021 (Continued)

Sales performance (Continued)

. Nanjing Waves River

. Nanjing Jiangbei Qingcui Mansion
. Nanjing Fenghui Yipin Mansion
o Nanjing Duhui Fenghua Mansion
. Lianyungang Yunyue Xingchen

. Huai’an CIFI Plaza

o Suzhou Boyue Hugian

. Zhuzhou Xiangjianghui

o Changsha Guochen Mansion

o Changsha Boyue Xiangjiang

. Changsha Yujin Plaza

o Changsha Guoyue Mansion

o Changsha Central Palace

o Chengdu CIFI Centre

o Chengdu CIFI-Tianfu Weilai Centre
o Chengdu Jiangyushan

. Chengdu Huguang Mansion

. Chongqing CIFI-Bochen Centre

o Kunming CIFI Plaza

J Kunming Jingkai No. 24 Project
o Kunming Gongyuan Jinyue

o Guiyang Duhui Xinyun City

. Xi'an Guochen Mansion

. Xuancheng Wanling Daguan

. Wuhu Park Mansion

. Wuhu Weilai Yunchen

o Hefei CIFI-Wangjianglai Mansion
o Nanchang CIFI Centre Tianyu

o Lu’an CIFI Centre

o Hefei Shidai Jianglai

o Hefei Ganglong CIFI-Citizen Jianglai
. Fuyang CIFI-Shuangqing Jianglai
o Wenzhou Weilai CIFI City

o Wenzhou Weilai Haian

. Wenzhou Guanghui City

o Shaoxing Jinke CIFI Shanghe City
. Xiamen CIFI Park Mansion Wuyuan Bay
. Xiamen Baolong CIFI City

o Putian Times City

o Ningbo Shangdong Chenfu

. Ningbo Jianglai Mansion

o Ningbo Jishigang Project
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REVIEW OF 2021 (continued)
Sales performance (Continued)

o Fuzhou Rongxin Jianglai

J Fuzhou Difengjiang Project
o Shenyang CIFI Park Mansion
o Shenyang Bochen Shidai

. Harbin Bochen Mansion
o Dalian CIFI Bochen Shidai
o Dalian Jiangshan Ruyuan

o Nanning Shengshi Chunjiang

. Nanning Fuyiheting Mansion

o Liuzhou CIFI Jianglai

. Tianjin CIFI.-Duhui Jianglai Mansion
o Tianjin CIFI Park Mansion

o Tianjin Binhai Jianglai Mansion

. Zibo Xinghe City

o Zibo Boguan Xi’an

o Linyi Xinghe City-Xuefu

J Linyi Xinghe City-Shengfu

o Jining Chenyue Mansion

o Jining Boguan Jinli

. Jining Boguan Jiangyue

o Jinan CIFI Yinshengtai Centre

o Zhengzhou Yijiangyun Mansion

. Zhengzhou Konggang Times Mansion
o Luoyang Tianji

o Luoyang Jianye CIFI Zunfu

o Urumgqi Xuefu Shangpin

. Urumgqi CIFI Plaza

o Urumgqi Yanlai Mansion

The Group also continued to record contracted sales in other projects which

launched the pre-sale in previous year(s).

CIFI was ranked 14 nationally in terms of contracted sales amount in 2021
according to the “China Real Estate Enterprises Sales Ranking in 2021”
published by CRIC Information Group.



TR R | U RER () AIRAF

£ E 8

Chairman’s Statement

TR T AR P )

FH &

AN T —IFENERRE193% >
Mo E RS 21.7% - T —
AR AR SR A A O R R S 6.8% o T
TR CEFNE11.2% -

ARG T AR A R £
e 3 th NS E SRR EE E= $ bRl
T~ RSB A KB i
e R N WA 4 TR T B i o

M

ST 1Y) i RO R B R M AR
FRi R - —F - —F4 i
A i B T 22 3 B ki A AR op it
JE TR > T kR R aE B
EAETRE MU > 5 R R B g
P Al 7R R R R o R B4R L
Mo T35 AN o b MR RS SRS BB T
W o A AR B e 2 Sy LB EBCE R
HE A DA v A I Tt o TR AR AR it
o BURE — AL > (R IRAE R E
ASE R A — T o LA B A%
90 JRE Al 7 e o L) 3R

20214 > A2 B 7 6618 87 T B 1Y)
MERE > AEEENL T ESSA A
R¥30418 7T © 20224 —HE=H > &
A5 8 — 25 WO A 3 RDET IE B0 RE A
A S [ AL b b R A A I N R34
T o Bt H 2021 4477 LASE Ui i 9 1 Hb i
T oo AR A% B B EBCE A
3 R 2 Al A B A A AT > B BU AR
A~ BRSO s 5 -

REVIEW OF 2021 (Continued)

Profit margins

The Group’s gross profit margin was 19.3% in 2021, as compared to 21.7% in
2020. The Group’s core net profit margin was 6.8% in 2021, compared to 11.2%
in 2020.

The Group sustained its profit margins in 2021 mainly because of reasonable
profitability for property projects delivered, reasonable land costs, low finance
cost as well as product premium achieved through improving quality and brand

awareness.

Land acquisitions

The abundant and high-quality land resources are the cornerstones to sustain the
growth of our sales and performance. At the beginning of 2021, the Ministry of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development promulgated the “Centralized Supply
of Residential Land in 22 Major Cities” policy, which enhanced the transparency
of the land supply end with an aim to stabilise the land price. However, due to
the recovery of overall sales and the strong demand of real estate developers for
supplementing land bank, the competition in the land market was fierce in the
first half of the year, and the land price rose significantly. The Group strictly
adhered to its value investing principles, avoiding acquisition of land at high
cost. The centralized land supply policy was further optimized in the second half
of the year and the premium rate stabilised. The Group focused on first- and
second-tier cities and moderately supplemented high quality land resources at

reasonable prices.

In 2021, the Group acquired interests in 66 new projects with an aggregate land
premium attributable to the Group of RMB39.4 billion. From January to March
2022, the Group further acquired interests in 3 new projects with an aggregate
land premium attributable to the Group of RMB3.4 billion. For land acquisitions
made since early 2021, the Group strictly adhered to its value investing principles
and proceeded the acquisition via acquisition channels including government’s

public auctions and tenders, equity acquisitions as well as urban redevelopment.
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REVIEW OF 2021 (Continued)

Land acquisitions (Continued)
During the year, we have strategically entered 8 new cities and expanded our
footprint to increase our regional and provincial penetrations. In particular, we

entered the following new cities during the period:

o East China Region: Yancheng, Lu’an and Xuancheng, continuously

deepened our penetrations in Jiangsu Province and Zhejiang Province;

. North China Region: Liaocheng, Dezhou and Rizhao, adding our footprint

in Shandong Province;
. South China Region: Putian, extending our coverage in Fujian Province;
. Central-Western Region: Zhuzhou, expanding in Hunan Province.

Business Development

CIFI Ever Sunshine Services Group Limited (“CIFI Ever Sunshine Services”) is
the property management services company under the Group, which its high-
speed growth trend continued in 2021, recording RMB4.7 billion and RMB620
million in revenue and profit attributable to parent company, representing
an increase of 50.8% and 58.0%, respectively. By the end of 2021, the total
contracted GFA was approximately 270.8 million sq.m., of which the total GFA
under management was approximately 171.0 million sq.m., representing an
increase of 49.4% and 68.3%, respectively, serving over 600,000 households and

demonstrating strong market competitiveness.

In 2021, while growing rapidly in scale, CIFI Ever Sunshine Services focused
on building comprehensive service capabilities. In addition to enhancing its
residential property management service capabilities, CIFI Ever Sunshine
Services has strengthened the building of comprehensive capabilities in non-
residential and urban services through the consolidation of Shanghai Meikailong
Property Management Services Limited * (32 S HEY) 2E4 BLIRWS A [R
/3 T]) (“Meikailong Property”) and Hunan Meizhong Environment Ecological
Technology Limited * (W L P BRIE A RERL A R A A (“Meizhong
Environment”). In 2021, basic services income derived from residential and
non-residential services amounted to RMB1.48 billion and RMB1.18 billion,
accounting for 55.7% and 44.3%, respectively, showing a strong ability to
diversify income. As for value-added services, the two value-added service income
reached RMB1.10 billion, representing an year-on-year increase of 39.2%, which

reflected the strong ability of innovation and operation.
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REVIEW OF 2021 (Continued)

Business Development (Continued)

CIFI Lingyu is the rental segment of the Group, with the mission of “affordable
price with high quality”. It focuses on the rental community for long-term
residence, which assists the new residents and the younger generation to enjoy
better life with affordable price as so to enhance their sense of belongings
and gain. Meanwhile, CIFI Lingyu strives to become a world-leading asset
management and operation services platform. In 2021, CIFI Lingyu continued
to follow the strategic direction of integrating light assets and heavy assets, and
partnered with government and enterprises to develop lease community projects
in a number of core cities. It now operates and holds more than 30 large and
small community projects across the country, making it the leasing company
with the most communities in the industry. At the end of 2021, it completed the
first capital management exit of a lease community project in the industry with
a high occupancy rate of 98%, a high GOP rate of 90%, a high contract renewal
rate of 60%, and a high satisfaction rate of 91%, and truly achieved the full cycle

of “investment, financing, construction, management and exit”.

Shanghai Xumei Commercial Investment Management Co., Led.* (/I
LR EE A BR/A ) (“CIFI Commercial”) is a commercial operation
management company under the Group. It is committed to become one of the
commercial property leaders in China by creating a pleasant life experience.
CIFI Commercial has entered 16 cities, and opened 14 shopping malls with a
total GFA of 890,000 sq.m. by the end of December 2021. Over 30 commercial
complexes are reserved in total, laying a solid foundation for rapid rental income

growth in the next three years.

Hainan CIFI Construction Management Co., Ltd.* (I e TR R PR PR
) (“CIFI Construction Management”) is an important “real estate plus” business
segment under the Group. CIFI Construction Management adheres to the concept
of “win-win cooperation”, provides various specialised real estate assets entrusted
development and management services for governments, state-owned and private
enterprises, financial institutions, individual investors, etc., with “leading brand
base, high quality management team, professional management standards and
system-wide resource protection”. It is committed to becoming the most trusted
development and operation partner, making the development and management
of real estate asset investment more professional, safer and simpler. Its business
covers preliminary management, planning and design, project management, cost
control, marketing services, customer management, delivery management and

preliminary property supervision.
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REVIEW OF 2021 (continued)

Business Development (Continued)

Shanghai CIFI Health Technology and Development Co., Led.* (- if I i
BB 28 A PR/ 7)) (“CIFI Health”) is a health technology company under
the Group. In the first half of 2021, its first college-style CCRC demonstration
zone of Lake Tai Rainbow Land has been opened to build a wonderful retirement
life for the elderly with its creative and wonderful service system. CIFI Health
successfully obtained the project of Wuzhou Hospital in Chaoyang District,
Beijing, which will converge Beijing’s outstanding medical rehabilitation
resources to create the features of intensive rehabilitation. Accordingly, a dual
project layout of “medical care + elderly care” has been completed in Beijing.
CIFI Health was awarded the “Award for Emerging Brands in the Big Health
Industry” at the 9th World Health Industry Conference.

Financing and debt management

In 2021, the financing environment continued to be tight for real estate
developers in China due to the enhancement of financing supervision and the
continuous implementation of the “Three Red Lines” policy. The credit quality
of real estate developers was differentiated, and there was a rising trend in the
concentration of financing. As a result, the financing cost advantage of quality
enterprises was more obvious. With a sound balance sheet, the Company
decisively achieved multiple financings under the challenging financing
environment, reflecting our financing and financial strength as well as our
popularity within the capital markets. We resolutely carried out the following
major financing transactions during the period, and optimized the debt maturity
structure and reduced financing costs through increasing the issuance of green
US Dollar Bonds, which was expected to be sufficient to meet our needs of land

reserve expansion and refinancing.

Offshore financings

J In January 2021, the Company successfully issued a tranche of US dollar
high-interest notes with a total size of US$419 million. The coupon was
4.375%, the maturity was 6.25 years, and the issuance yield was 4.4%,
setting a historical record with the longest duration and the lowest interest

rate among offshore bonds issued by CIFI.

o In January 2021, the Company successfully raised a 3.5-year USD
syndicated loan at a coupon rate of L/H+3.75%. The financing scale
was USD451 million, demonstrating the Company’s excellent financing

capabilities.
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REVIEW OF 2021 (continued)

Financing and debt management (Continued)

Offshore financings (Continued)

In March 2021, the Company redeemed the 5.375% coupon senior
perpetual capital securities with an outstanding principal amount of
US$247 million. In March and April 2021, the Company also redeemed
the 7.625% US Dollar senior notes due March 2021 and the 6.875% US
Dollar senior notes due April 2021, respectively, at a redemption amount
of US$240 million and US$293 million, respectively. In May 2021, the
Company redeemed the 7.625% coupon, 4-year maturity senior notes due

February 2023 with an aggregate principal amount of US$300 million.

In May 2021, the Company issued two tranches of green US dollar senior
notes with an aggregate amount of US$500 million. The 5.25-year
maturity green senior notes bore an interest rate of 4.45% per annum with
an amount of US$350 million; while the 7-year maturity green senior
notes bore an interest rate of 4.8% per annum with an amount of US$150
million, representing the longest maturity among offshore bonds issued
by CIFI. In January 2022, it issued the additional US$150 million senior
notes due 2026.

In July 2021, the Company entered into a loan agreement with a financial
institution to complete a 3.5-year HK Dollar green syndicated loan with a
coupon rate of H+3.95%. The financing scale was HKD2.798 billion.
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REVIEW OF 2021 (continued)

Financing and debt management (Continued)

Offshore financings (Continued)

o In December 2021, the Company successfully raised gross proceeds of
approximately HK$1.67 billion through a rights issue on the basis of one
rights share (the “Rights Share(s)”) for every twenty existing shares then
held at the subscription price of HK$4.00 per Rights Share (the “Rights
Issue”). The Rights Issue achieved a high acceptance rate of 94.29% and
excess applications from the substantial shareholder, namely Rosy Fortune
Investments Limited, and a number of long-term shareholders. A total of
approximately 822 million Rights Shares were applied for, equivalent to
approximately 1.97 times the total number of Rights Shares available for
subscription, demonstrating the widespread recognition and support for

CIFI’s Rights Issue from its shareholders.

Onshore financing

e In March 2021, JILMEAE A5 A PR F] (CIFI Group Co., Ltd.*) (“CIFI
PRC”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, issued the 3+2-year
maturity onshore corporate bonds due May 2027 with a final interest
rate of 4.40% and a principal amount of RMB1,448 million, once again

showing the advantages of CIFI in onshore capital market.

Financial positions

With its excellent credit and steadily improving domestic and international credit
ratings over the years, CIFI has been endorsed by most of the major domestic and
international financial institutions. In August 2021, Moody’s endorsed CIFI as a
long-term issuer with the existing “Ba2” rating and “Stable”. In December 2021,
Standard & Poor’s and Fitch retained the Company’s long-term issuer to be “BB”
rating and “Stable” outlook. In January 2022, Fitch even assigned “BB” rating
to CIFI in terms of long-term foreign and local currency issuer with default
ratings, demonstrating CIFI's business development and financial strength were

continuously recognized by the capital markets.

During the year, Lianhe Global also retained the Company’s credit rating as
“BBB-" (with “Stable” outlook), while China Chengxin Credit Ratings, United
Ratings and China Lianhe Credit Rating assigned “AAA” onshore credit ratings
to the Company and CIFI China.

*  For identification purposes only
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REVIEW OF 2021 (continued)
Financial positions (Continued)
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s:

o net debt-to-equity ratio was 62.8% (as at 31 December 2020: 64.0%);

. net debts (total indebtedness less cash-on-hand) amounted to
RMBG67,402.3 million (as at 31 December 2020: RMB53,560.5 million);

o cash-on-hand level amounted to RMB46,709.7 million (as at 31 December
2020: RMB51,154.6 million);

o total indebtedness amounted to RMB114,112.0 million (as at 31
December 2020: RMB104,715.1 million);

o guaranteed joint ventures/associated companies debts amounted to
RMB15,787.7 million (as at 31 December 2020: RMB13,778.4 million);
and

. weighted average cost of indebtedness was 5.0% (as at 31 December 2020:
5.4%).

As at 31 December 2021, unpaid committed land premium attributable to
the Group were approximately RMB1,469.4 million (versus cash-on-hand of
approximately RMB46,709.7 million).

The Group continued to maintain comfortable debt positions and off-balance

sheet commitments.
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REVIEW OF 2021 (Continued)

Awards and recognitions

The “China Top 500 Private Enterprises Summit” organized by CFIC
ranked CIFI 148th on the list in 2021.

The “Top 500 Chinese Enterprises” organized by CEC and CEDA ranked

CIFI 291st on the list, demonstrating company’s strength.

CIFI jumped 142 places from last year and was ranked 766th on the Global
2000 list, where a total of 395 companies from China, Hong Kong, Macau

and Taiwan were named.

CIFI was the TOP 13 on the “2021 China Real Estate Listed Companies
with Strongest Comprehensive Strengths” (2021 ':F‘E“v‘iﬂ}%iﬁ?/&ﬁj
555 J185), upped 2 places from last year and ranked first in terms of

stable operation.

The “China Philanthropy List” is directed by the Ministry of Civil Affairs
of the People’s Republic of China and organized by China Philanthropy
Times. In the 2021 award, CIFI Group was awarded as one of the “Top 10
Charitable Enterprises” for its contributions in school donation, epidemic

relief and ecological protection.

CIFI was ranked 38th on the Forbes 2021 China Philanthropy List, which

CIFI's ranking has risen for three consecutive years.

For the fifth consecutive year, CIFI was awarded the 3rd of the 2021 “All-
Asia Executive Team” real estate industry comprehensive ranking by the
international financial magazine “Institutional Investor”, including “All-
Asia Best CEO”, “All-Asia Best CFO”, “All-Asia Best IR Program” and
“All-Asia Best ESG”. Meanwhile, for the second consecutive year since its
listing in 2018, CIFI Ever Sunshine Services was awarded the first of all
awards in “All-Asia Executive Team” real estate industry comprehensive
ranking, including “All-Asia Best CEO”, “All-Asia Best CFO”, “All-Asia
Best IR Professionals”, “All-Asia Best IR Program” and “All-Asia Best
ESG”.
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REVIEW OF 2021 (continued)

Awards and recognitions (Continued)

o Co-organized by organizations including Deloitte China and Harvard
Business Review, the “Best Managed Companies(BMC)”is the only
comprehensive ranking that assesses the management system of private
enterprises in the Chinese market. In the award of 2021, CIFI was awarded

the title of “Best Managed Companies” for the second year.

J CIFI was awarded the benchmark award of Titanium Award in The Asset
ESG Corporate Awards 2021 by a leading regional financial magazine The
Asset, in recognition of its outstanding performance in environmental,
social and corporate governance (ESG) and transparency. This is the third
consecutive year that CIFI was awarded The Asset ESG Corporate Awards,
a further recognition of CIFI's ESG achievements and a comparison to the

ESG performance of leading companies in Asia.

ESG MANAGEMENT AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

CIFI is always committed to putting long-termism into practice. The continuous
expansion on green construction, proactive promotion of anti-corruption
and integrity, great emphasis on the occupational safety and health of the
employees, and proactive performance of corporate social responsibility are the
main directions that the Group focuses on in achieving high standard of ESG

management.

The Group is actively devoted to charity through CIFI Foundation, mainly
eyeing on four major areas: support to education, green environmental protection,
anti-pandemic and disaster relief, and rural revitalization. In April 2021, the
Group announced a donation of RMB100 million to Xiamen University, setting
up the “CIFI Education Development Fund” to support university education.
In July 2021, after a devastating rainstorm disaster hit Zhengzhou City, Henan
Province, the foundation announced a donation of RMB10 million to urgently
assist the local flood prevention and disaster relief work, and actively participated
in the post-disaster reconstruction. In March 2022, the foundation donated
50,000 sets of antigen test kits to Po Leung Kuk in Hong Kong to support the
underprivileged groups in the fight against the new wave of COVID-19 outbreak
in Hong Kong.
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ESG MANAGEMENT AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

The Group has continued to make breakthroughs in green finance. In May 2021,
the Group issued another US$500 million green bonds, which recorded the
longest duration of the Group’s issuance of the offshore US bonds, following by
an additional US$150 million issue in January 2022. In July 2021, CIFI was
granted its first syndicated green loan of nearly HK$2.8 billion. In the same
month, the Group issued the first green theme report, proactively disclosing the
use and allocation of proceeds from the green bonds as well as the environmental
benefits generated and obtaining assurance from an independent third party,

which set another benchmark among industrial peers.

CIFI'’s practice of green business philosophy and its outstanding performance
in ESG aspect have been recognized by the capital market. In August, Hang
Seng Indexes announced that CIFI would be included to Hang Seng ESG 50
Index for the first time. In November 2021, MSCI, the world’s largest index
company, upgraded the ESG rating of CIFI from “BB” to “BBB”, marking the
second consecutive year that MSCI has upgraded the Company’s ESG rating. The
ESG rating of CIFI ES Service was also reaffirmed by MSCI as “BBB”, reflecting
MSCT’s recognition of the Group’s outstanding ESG performance. CIFI attracted
the attention and favor from more green investors and has given substantive

contribution to the expansion of financing channels.

CIFI continuously strives to become an ESG model enterprise, gradually
constructing the “green competitiveness” contributing to the centennial

enterprise.

OUTLOOK FOR 2022

In 2021, as the national COVID-19 pandemic remained under control, the
economy was on track of gradual recovery and continued to demonstrate its
resilience. However, due to the global COVID-19 pandemic and uncertainties in
the foreign environment, it is expected that the central government will continue
to implement policies to prevent financial risks, tighten the supervision of real
estate finance, and further improve the management of real estate finance. Having
said that, given the domestic real estate industry is large and resilient, and we
are optimistic about the urbanization of China and the stable development of the
real estate industry. We believe that under the long-term effect brought by the
policies of stabilising housing prices, land prices and expectations, the real estate

industry is heading towards a balanced and healthy development.
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OUTLOOK FOR 2022 (Continued)

At present, the real estate industry is in the stage of regulation and deleveraging.
Under the effect of policy, real estate gradually transits from financial-like to
livelihood attributes, with the protection of people’s livelihood being the focus
of future policy. The real estate industry gradually enters a virtuous circle, where
underperformed enterprises will be eliminated, and resources will be concentrated
to the outstanding large enterprises with healthy financial conditions, excellent
operation and sustainable development. In the days ahead, real estate enterprises
will develop under “low debt, light assets, high turnover, high quality” model
from the era of rough and sloppy to lean and elite, and towards digitalization and

technology.

Same as the corresponding period last year, the Group has recorded sales of
RMB26.9 billion already for the first two months of 2022, maintaining the
standard of the industry leader, and also it is a confirmation of the Group’s sound
financial management, capital and operation. On March 9, 2022, the Company
redeemed the full amount of domestic non-public bonds due in advance. At
the same time, the Company further repurchased senior notes due, proactively
managed debt and financial management, and took practical actions to deleverage

and stabilize expectations.

In terms of credit ratings, CIFI has received tremendous support from most
of the domestic and international financial institutions due to its honourable
credit history over the years of operation, and has proactively maintained close
communication with major international rating agencies. The current corporate
ratings on the Company remain stable, and CIFI is one of the very few private
domestic real estate companies maintaining so. This reflects that the rating

agencies endorsed CIFI’s sound liquidity.

In addition, on 17 February 2022, in the first round of centralized land supply
in Beijing, the Group was the only private company to win land in the Beijing
land auction. It reflected the Group’s capital strength and further highlighted
its advantage in land resources. Benefiting from the Company’s good sales and
marketing capacity, the CIFT’s cash flow is ensured and its solvency continuously
enhanced. With abundant land reserve, we believe the Group is capable of coping

with future industry fluctuations with ease.
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OUTLOOK FOR 2022 (Continued)

Looking forward, in 2022, the Group will adhere to our long-term development
strategy to achieve steady growth in operating results and further reduce total
debt by improving operational efficiency while maintaining financial stability
and balanced business and sustainable development. The Company has met all
three red lines requirements and has been greenlighted by the end of 2021. In the
future, CIFI will reorient from scale to efficiency, continue to deleverage, control
risks and maintain low leverage. The Group will increase the production capacity
of single city and project, improve organizational efficiency, enhance diversified
investment in land acquisition and reduce land costs so as to increase the Group’s

operating profit.

The Group will accelerate digital transformation and improve lean management
to achieve quality, efficiency, cost reduction, empowerment and innovation. It
will also create hit products, improve commercial product lines, build TOD
complex product IPs and develop green and low-carbon products. At the same
time, the Group will seize urban differentiation to enhance precise investment
and improve investment quality, in addition to grasping more investment
opportunities that further focus on metropolitan areas and city clusters. It will
create livable and self-occupied livelihood products, steadily increase the number
of high-quality commercial complex projects to achieve rental growth, increase
sales, reduce inventory, maintain a high cash collection ratio, and continue to
promote the development of the “real estate plus” business to realise synergies
and win-win benefit and create value for investors. The Group emphasises the
management standard enhancement of the Company in environmental protection,
social responsibility and corporate governance, and will continue to promote
a corporate culture of “Happiness, Health, Prosperity and Progress”. From
the perspective of strategic planning, the Group is fully committed to build a
Fortune Global 500 enterprise with leading performance, social responsibility,

common prosperity and excellent corporate governance.

CIFI Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd.
LIN Zhong

Chairman
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Contracted sales

The Group achieved contracted sales of approximately RMB247.3 billion in
2021, representing a year-on-year growth of 7.1% as compared to RMB231.0
billion in 2020. The marked growth in the Group’s contracted sales was due
to the Group’s abundant and well diversified saleable resources across different
regions and cities and was mainly driven by the strong performance of certain

second- and third-tier cities which were less affected by government controls.

The Group contracted sales in GFA was approximately 14,486,887 sq.m. in
2021, representing a decrease of 5.8% over GFA of approximately 15,385,100
sq.m. in 2020. The Group’s contracted ASP in 2021 was approximately
RMB17,067/sq.m..

Contracted sales from the Yangtze River Delta, the Pan Bohai Rim, the Central
Western Region and the South China Region contributed to approximately
46.6%, 19.8%, 22.4% and 11.2% of the Group’s total contracted sales in 2021
respectively. Contracted sales from first- and second-tier cities accounted for
approximately 87.2% of the Group’s total contracted sales in 2021 whereas
those from third-tier cities accounted for the remaining 12.8%. Contracted sales
derived from residential projects contributed to approximately 92.5% of the
Group’s total contracted sales in 2021 whereas those from office/and commercial

projects contributed to the remaining 7.5%.

Cash collection from property sales during the year by the Group’s subsidiaries,

joint ventures and associated companies represented over 95% of contracted sales

in 2021.
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531 g B 8% ) PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (Comined)
B RIS ) Contracted sales (Continued)
F— 1 DR LR ETE Table 1: Details of contracted sales in 2021
TR T ) 73 By city
A 8845 ) B B
¢ Epid e o a8 a8
A A S® % of total S -3 5 1
Contracted contracted Contracted Contracted
sales sales GFA ASP
(AR,
(AR¥ETI0) CEIR) PT5K)
(RMB’000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
R Suzhou 21,571,077 8.7% 918,986 23,473
b Beijing 19,797,369 8.0% 511,133 38,732
{30 Changsha 13,569,699 5.5% 1,108,651 12,240
244 Ningbo 12,171,989 4.9% 585,312 20,796
I Wenzhou 11,492,605 4.7% 615,127 18,683
HLN Hangzhou 11,290,748 4.6% 467,138 24,170
it Shanghai 9,697,264 3.9% 217,965 44,490
R Wuhan 9,683,950 3.9% 514,850 18,809
N Chonggqing 9,478,852 3.8% 725,440 13,066
B Nanjing 8,943,576 3.6% 360,540 24,806
Hhe Hefei 8,712,047 3.5% 648,753 13,429
85 Wuxi 8,262,471 3.3% 349,295 23,655
51" Xiamen 8,239,509 3.3% 205,741 40,048
PRE Tianjin 5,716,216 2.3% 285,918 19,993
AR Chengdu 5,205,648 2.1% 432,036 12,049
H Qingdao 4,570,753 1.9% 392,300 11,651
i) Jinan 4,507,089 1.8% 368,055 12,246
[iTR7s Xian 4,194,724 1.7% 281,138 14,921
&N Fuzhou 4,157,889 1.7% 255,674 16,262
Wi Zhuhai 3,807,364 1.5% 119,356 31,899
W Wuhu 3,433,831 1.4% 316,111 10,863
H N Changzhou 3,037,129 1.2% 177,260 17,134
KIE Taiyuan 2,977,711 1.2% 411,959 7,228
&3 Jinhua 2,819,895 1.1% 109,902 25,658
R AT Urumgi 2,793,761 1.1% 257,823 10,836
4L Shaoxing 2,607,719 1.1% 108,820 23,964
)] Kunming 2,296,705 0.9% 179,597 12,788
ikl Foshan 2,241,312 0.9% 203,374 11,021
JE M Guangzhou 2,089,932 0.9% 57,887 36,104
B Zhengzhou 2,068,316 0.8% 182,885 11,309
% s Shenyang 1,853,880 0.8% 108,156 17,141
WM Huzhou 1,787,416 0.7% 124,226 14,388
N Huizhou 1,687,990 0.7% 128,214 13,165
5 1 Zibo 1,657,289 0.7% 139,862 11,849
% Luoyang 1,611,526 0.7% 166,777 9,663
WA TV Harbin 1,609,783 0.7% 87,070 18,488
)1 Yinchuan 1,536,857 0.6% 163,175 9,418
M E Nanchang 1,511,246 0.6% 116,403 12,983
BT Linyi 1,485,328 0.6% 179,643 8,268
2 Lianyungang 1,449,847 0.6% 107,492 13,488
AR Shijiazhuang 1,285,300 0.5% 88,138 14,583
I Nantong 1,256,614 0.5% 85,421 14,711
H Guiyang 1,090,158 0.4% 129,769 8,401
WoE Dongguan 859,814 0.4% 44,694 19,238
s Hong Kong 594,769 0.2% 2,697 220,529
HAth Others 14,535,105 6.0% 1,446,124 10,051
A5 Total 247,250,072 100.0% 14,486,887 17,067
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53 g B 8% ) PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (Comined)
B RIS ) Contracted sales (Continued)
P IE H R E 5y By type of project
A5 885 ) B B
o NP d A Tk ok
£ W 88 4 % of total St S5 i R IE Y
Contracted contracted Contracted Contracted
sales sales GFA ASP
(AR¥T,~
(AR¥ET0) CEJ5kK) FJ5K)
(RMB’000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
£ Residential 228,589,610 92.5% 12,710,358 17,985
WM TR Office/Commercial 18,660,462 7.5% 1,776,529 10,504
HET Total 247,250,072 100.0% 14,486,887 17,067
e b [ 1) 43 By region
A 8845 Tl 8 B
e AP A A RSB RSB
A W88 43 % of total S i AR -3 B 48
Contracted contracted Contracted Contracted
sales sales GFA ASP
(AR¥WL,
(AR¥T8) (FIa5K) FJ5K)
(RMB’000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
B=MA Yangtze River Delta 115,423,570 46.6% 5,785,197 19,952
TRt Pan Bohai Rim 48,861,896 19.8% 2,869,589 17,027
HRPE AR Central Western Region 55,286,388 22.4% 4,391,608 12,589
FEF South China Region 27,678,218 11.2% 1,440,493 19,214
HEr Total 247,250,072 100.0% 14,486,887 17,067
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I Y v B 8% ) PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (Cominea)
B RIS ) Contracted sales (Continued)
Fe—&% - RN AW E o By first-, second- and third-tier cities

5 8845 1) B
SEEAL  AWHEE AWEE
858 S % of total JEE 1L SR
Contracted contracted Contracted Contracted
sales sales GFA ASP
(ARWL,
(ARHET50) CEIK)  FIK)

(RMB’000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
— &SI First-tier cities 32,208,967 13.0% 789,825 40,780
AT Second-tier cities 183,470,090 74.2% 11,105,028 16,521
=Rl Third-tier cities 31,571,015 12.8% 2,592,034 12,180
At Total 247,250,072 100.0% 14,486,887 17,067
Fi5E Notes:
1. —EEATRR AL R N W - R IR 1. First-tier cities refer to Beijing, Guangzhou, Hong Kong, Shanghai, Shenzhen and Tokyo.
B 4
/IJJ‘ o
2. AR RAE B WO - ED - S K 2. Second-tier cities refer to Changchun, Changsha, Changzhou, Chengdu, Chongqing, Dalian,
A HEE S il AR BERG - BUN - AT - Dongguan, Foshan, Fuzhou, Guiyang, Hangzhou, Harbin, Hefei, Jinan, Kunming, Nanchang,
ARE - R - B B BA e Fu Nanjing, Nanning, Nantong, Ningbo, Qingdao, Sanya, Shaoxing, Shenyang, Shijiazhuang, Suzhou,
B FE > =08 4L R AR B Taiyuan, Tianjin, Urumqi, Wenzhou, Wuhan, Wuxi, Xiamen, Xi’an, Xuzhou, Yinchuan and
M~ i‘(’/’fyi S ORHE S SRR N R Zhengzhou.
8~ ELFY - T AR - SRR -
3. SRR R B kDS - BN WM L 3. Third-tier cities refer to Changde, Fuyang, Huai’an, Huizhou, Huzhou, Jiangmen, Jiaxing, Jinhua,
M~ BB~ 43~ pigas - Wiyl - BRYT - AN - Jining, Lianyungang, Linyi, Liuzhou, Lu'an, Luoyang, Meishan, Putian, Quanzhou, Quzhou, Sugian,
N IR JE I HEH SR N 5 Taizhou, Weifang, Wuhu, Xiangtan, Xuancheng, Xuchang, Yantai, Zhangzhou, Zhenjiang,
BN YT~ MEW) M - EIE - B A Zhongshan, Zhoushan, Zhuhai, Zhuzhou and Zibo.
FEM BV Pl s SR BRI - BRI
SEWETHZRRA Revenue recognised from sales of properties

W TE A EYEDMZBIA Revenue recognised from sales of properties in 2021 was approximately
#) 5 N R % 99,288,400,000 JC > 2 4E 18 RMB99,288.4 million up by 54.4% year-on-year, accounted for 92.1% of total
R54.4% > 1R C MERR UL A B % 92.1% ° recognised revenue. The Group delivered approximately 6,850,115 sq.m. of
RAEFHK K T — LT EMAE  properties in GFA in 2021, up by 37.0% year-on-year. The Group’s recognised
#16,850,115°F 7 KW % > R ASP from sales of properties was approximately RMB14,494/sq.m. in 2021,
37.0% ° A FE " —4F  REHEHBEYE representing an increase of 12.7% from RMB12,864/sq.m. in 2020. The increase
0 R BB L 5 MR 14,49475,  in the Group’s revenue recognised from sales of properties in 2021 was mainly
K R T RAER NR¥12,864  attributable to the increase in GFA delivered.

Tl EF2.7% o AL T —

AF 1R BB W 3 R RB U A > B

PRI B A e S T R4 o
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5 b e B 8% () PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (Conined)
HEMECOHERRA (&) Revenue recognised from sales of properties (Continued)
Ko SRR AMEMEN DT Table 2: Breakdown of recognised revenue from property sales in 2021
FRUSCA BH A
P i )53 By city
LT
BEmECHEDRA TR E 2 1
Recognised revenue from % of recognised revenue TR Al iR BV R Bl |
ol City sale of properties from sale of properties Total GFA delivered Recognised ASP
AR PRk ARWIL/ Pk
RMB’000 % sq.m. RMB/sq.m.
CRCE | ZRDRE | SRR | ZEORE | SROE | ZR0RE | D20 | ZEIRE
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Al Hefei 8,917,881 2,148,957 8.9 3.3 622,836 165,747 14,318 12,965
M Hangzhou 8,902,075 | 3,167,066 8.9 4.9 398,899 182,254 22,317 17377
B Wuhan 8,221,196 | 7,564,539 8.2 11.8 531,082 564,868 15,480 13,392
& Qingdao 6,135,499 | 4,198,853 6.1 6.5 594,235 339,247 10,325 12,377
BN Suzhou 5,457,635 2,931,571 5.4 4.6 268,844 149,626 20,300 19,593
| Fuzhou 4,846,334 1,143,825 49 1.8 278,541 65,919 17,399 17,352
HM Changzhou 4,639,553 | 1,477,011 4.7 23 261,779 68,115 17,723 21,684
i Shanghai 4226627 | 624,979 43 10| 111,229 28,717 37,999 21,763
R Changsha 3,948,495 | 1,437,055 4.0 2.2 430,376 202,979 9,175 7,080
i3] Wuxi 3,863,320 1,003,925 3.9 1.6 218,410 36,933 17,688 27,182
73 Beijing 3,762,203 1,092 38 * 91,591 47 41,076 23,034
B Linyi 3,672,337 | 4,033,085 3.7 63| 491,582 | 496,600 7,470 8,121
gl Chengdu 3,441,514 | 1,530,332 3.5 24| 236,604 80,671 14,545 18,970
G Jinhua 3,160,862 - 3.2 - 177,567 - 17,801 -
1 Shenyang 2915712 | 3,314,321 29 5.2 233,692 260,722 12,477 12,712
Wl Jinan 2205078 | 797,893 22 12| 142,070 63,923 15,662 12,482
=0 Taizhou 1,918,772 737,596 1.9 1.2 162,491 52,497 11,808 14,050
i Tianjin 1,699,789 | 335,328 17 05 | 143061 26,580 11,882 12,616
El Nanchang 1,459,605 - L5 - 129,747 - 11,250 -
T Wenzhou 1,357,634 | 2,562,166 14 40 86,242 223,607 15,742 11,458
TE Chongqing 1,156,770 | 1,763,305 1.2 2.7 87,053 163,930 13,288 10,756
) Ningbo 1,059,233 118,664 1.1 0.2 93,444 7,290 11,335 16,278
FHl Zhoushan 1,052,179 - 1.1 - 59,512 - 17,680 -
S Yinchuan 975,663 - 1.0 - 116,189 - 8,397 -
T Zibo 964,420 10,070 1.0 * 97,158 1,287 9,926 7,824
M Zhangzhou 912,330 - 0.9 - 58,655 - 15,554 -
K Dalian 854,212 284,488 0.9 0.4 80,254 22,155 10,644 12,841
& Guiyang 847,769 | 740,218 0.9 12| 110869 75,103 7,647 9,856
B Kunming 763,558 664,551 0.8 1.0 90,909 81,594 8,399 8,145
[l Xi'an 736,299 3,993,105 0.7 6.2 62,956 328,638 11,695 12,150
Bl Meishan 568,857 - 0.6 - 90,410 - 6,292 -
Y%A Jining 530,622 574,860 0.5 0.9 48,811 64,228 10,871 8,950
M Xuzhou 490,879 956,914 0.5 15 46,529 90,699 10,550 10,550
HFE Shijiazhuang 3875 | 576,028 03 09 11,935 40,732 22,947 14,142
TN Quzhou 66,762 1,876,082 0.1 2.9 4,989 143,522 13,383 13,072
EA) Jiaxing 64,221 2,344,968 0.1 3.7 4,658 166,589 13,788 14,076
il Foshan 63,732 1,960,487 0.1 3.0 6,333 180,067 10,063 10,888
Hedy Weifang 22,598 | 1,444,818 W 2.3 2,326 134,895 9,715 10,711
e Dongguan - | 1370862 - 21 - 82,085 - 16,701
[ Nanning = 670,349 - 1.0 - 66,811 - 10,034
Hik Hong Kong - | 1,601,100 = 25 = 2,450 = 653,510
LI Jiangyin — | 2,244,580 - 35 - 159,048 - 14,113
Hity Others 3,112,298 | 2,115,080 3.1 32| 166247 | 179,679 18,721 11,771
4% Total 99,288,398 | 64,320,123 100.0 100.0 | 6,850,115 4,999,854 14,494 12,864

= Dik0.1% * Less than 0.1%
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5 b e B 8% () PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (Conined)
SHEME R ) Revenue recognised from sales of properties (Continued)
P TE H AL ) 5y By type of project
s fmE
LB I T3 UN TR T2 I
HHEHE Primary intended use of ~ Recognised revenue from % of recognised revenue O3 40 g S i TR EHE
k)i the project sale of properties from sale of properties Total GFA delivered Recognised ASP
AR¥T SUES AR¥ L/ Pk
RMB’000 % sq.m. RMB/sq.m.
CRO (CEIRE TR0 TR0 (DR R |TE0RE |20 (22 0RE
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
£ Residential 96,586,924 | 59,634,232 97.0 93.0 | 6,675,553 | 4,627,134 14,469 12,888
WA/ ¥ Office/Commercial 2,701,474 | 4,685,891 3.0 7.0 174,562 372,720 15,476 12,572
At Total 99,288,398 | 64,320,123 100.0 100.0 | 6,850,115 | 4,999,854 14,494 12,864
e b [ 1) 53 By region
s ¥

BEMECHDMA CHERBOA T2} B
Recognised revenue from % of recognised revenue TR A Al S By RN

ol City sale of properties from sale of properties Total GFA delivered Recognised ASP
AR ik N TVE DT S
RMB’000 % sq.m. RMB/sq.m.
CROME | ZEORE (SR |ZECFE TR0 (ZEOTE TR | 2RORE
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
B=A Yangtze River Delta 47,606,587 | 23,008,520 479 35.8 | 2,656,753 | 1,546,398 17,919 14,879
B Pan Bohai Rim 23,727,022 | 16,391,540 239 255 | 1,954,563 | 1,514,409 12,139 10,824
LI Central Western Region 22,002,288 | 17,894,978 22.2 278 | 1,885,229 | 1,516,181 11,671 11,803
Eiayi] South China Region 5,952,501 | 7,025,085 6.0 10.9 353,570 422,866 16,835 16,613
&% Total 99,288,398 | 64,320,123 100.0 100.0 | 6,850,115 | 4,999,854 14,494 12,864
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I M e B 8% ) PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (Cominued)
EkEL/E S E&'ﬁ R Revenue recognised from sales of properties (Continued)
Fe—58 - — 58 %ﬂﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ’ By first-, second- and third-tier cities
st
LR SR TN CHEBBA R
Recognised revenue from % of recognised revenue TR Al 1 S i By TRl
Wl City sale of properties from sale of properties Total GFA delivered Recognised ASP
ARWT Pk YN VR DT S
RMB'000 % sq.m. RMB/sq.m.
:g:—‘ﬂ:‘ TETRA :2:—‘&: TECTH :?:~ﬂ§ “EEE :g:—‘ﬂ:‘ TETRA
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
— i Firsc-tier cities 8,165,711 | 2,260,018 8.2 35 | 206926 34,402 39,462 65,694
o) Second-tier cities 77,837,009 | 48,316,604 784 751 | 5,439,106 | 3,702,153 14311 13,051
=R Third-tier cities 13,285,678 | 13,743,501 134 204 | 1204083 [ 1,263,299 11,034 10,879
Gt Total 99,288,398 | 64,320,123 100.00 100.00 | 6,850,115 [ 4,999,854 14,494 12,864
Coe e By 2% Completed properties held for sale

MNEEZ T ZA=1T—H  &EHE
AHr170HE R TYEHE » RBTESCK
22 AT A 7 S T AR B B A R 5 R 40 B A
£56,700,000°F- 17 K 53,600,000 F- 17 K °

BHEE R AR SRS ) 3
WoFE-—F+HA=+—H  KEH
F 2002 JH BH S SR VR R AR 8 R 1 1 2
THH - 485 5 A S B A R 5 1 BR 40
%9 1% 45,800,000°F 77 K K& 24,800,000 J1
* o

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had over 170 completed properties projects
with a total and attributable unsold or undelivered GFA of approximately 6.7

million sq.m. and 3.6 million sq.m. respectively.

Properties under development/held for future development
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had over 200 property projects under
development or held for future development with a total and attributable GFA of

approximately 45.8 million sq.m. and 24.8 million sq.m. respectively.
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BEWEBRA
AEFPR - F -~ FRREYEM
G S At AH BH R BS e A& 2 N R K
1,025,800,0007C > & 4F EF+73.7% o —F
T AR B W S A B At A B RO
WA F B B 7 B By - b B
g BB - RSS2SR
gL CM B TR R 8y - L g U R R
Hl ~ TR S A KT A L
AR R A A AR E A
B o

Ei'a2C/ES
BT HZ T H s AR
H33 B EY) 2 S 5w R A
A 5 T A 4 B A £ 2,108,100 7 T oK K
1,506,700 F J5 K » H 26 TH & W) 3
( A0 2 S v R T B A5 2 S T R 0 A K 2
1,319,300°F-37. K }2883,690°F- 75 K ) £ B
HAH -

LB S

AR TR AR Y P A
HRBS WA Z) £ N B #4,133,600,0007C » 4%
I M54.9% o ARG EZ R IRTEEY)
SEHE BT -
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PROPERTY INVESTMENT

Income from investment properties

The Group’s leases and other service income related to investment properties
in 2021 was approximately RMB1,025.8 million, up by 73.7% year-on-year.
The leases and other service income related to investment properties in 2021
were mainly contributed by Jiaxing CIFI Square, Shanghai CIFI Haishang
International, Shanghai Yangjing S2/83 Office Project, Shanghai LCM, Shanghai
CIFI Pure Center, Wukesong Arena and Xi'an CIFI Center, with its growth

mainly derived from new rental contribution from Wukesong Arena.

Investment properties

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 33 investment properties with a total
and attributable GFA of approximately 2,108,100 sq.m and 1,506,700 sq.m.
respectively, of which 26 investment properties with a total and attributable
GFA of approximately 1,319,300 sq.m and 883,690 sq.m. respectively had

commenced leasing.

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT
The Group’s property management and other services income in 2021 was
approximately RMB4,133.6 million, up by 54.9% year-on-year. The increase was

primarily due to the increase in the number of properties under management.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s recognised revenue was approximately RMB107,834.7 million in
2021, up 50.2% year-on-year. Out of the Group’s total recognised revenue in
2021, (i) sales of property and other property related service income increased by
49.8% from 2020 to approximately RMB102,675.3 million; (ii) leases increased
by 66.4% from 2020; (iii) property management and other services income
increased by 54.9% from the corresponding period of last year; (iv) other service

income related to investment properties increased by 100% from 2020.

Table 3: Breakdown of recognised revenue in 2021

:g:_‘q‘: — ? & {q:
2021 2020
R LN fhE MR A
MM E MERE
CHlERBA  %ofToral | THERILA % of Total TAE )
Recognised recognized Recognized recognized Year-on-year
revenue revenue revenue revenue change
AR¥T 2 PN T
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % %
Y)ESHE I HABYIZE  Sales of properties and other
MBS UA property related service income 102,675,338 95.2 68,539,935 95.5 49.8
e Leases 982,491 0.9 590,449 0.8 66.4
Y278 BRI Property management and other
HAb IR A services income 4,133,595 3.8 2,668,279 3.7 54.9
ke -CUE Vil Other service income related to
HABMRBS A investment properties 43317 0.1 - - 100
At Total 107,834,741 100.0 | 71,798,663 100.0 50.2
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%5 20,797,400,0007C » M T T4
BN #515,609,100,0000G3E 133.2% ©

2R S 2 A R S W i s A
B E AR R AR RN R RE AR T
ER R A BOR AR [ A B S T3

%8 N %790,700,0007C > 1 % FAE
I B 75 FEE 50 0 25 19 8\ IR 5 858,600,000
7—5 o

AL B FT L MERE A4 > DL

#r T DA IR N RO SHE R 10 Hh R R B
AT T AR AR R E ek
BmAESm THNAFHEEBRARK
26,200,0007G ( —F ZFAF A FHE R
N H244,100,0007T) ©

LI [ S SR R 1 s 1R

A TE T AR AR R R R ]
I E AR R 80,900,000 00 I EG 1R
MR =& =4 N R ¥ 42,500,000
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Cost of sales
The Group’s reported cost of sales in 2021 was approximately RMB87,037.3
million, up 54.9% from 2020.

Gross profit and gross profit margin
The Group’s reported gross profit in 2021 was approximately RMB20,797.4
million, up by 33.2% compared to RMB15,609.1 million in 2020.

Net exchange gain or loss from hedging arrangements

In 2021, the Group incurred net exchange gain of RMB790.7 million due to
the effects of RMB exchange rate appreciation during the year, compared to net
exchange gain of RMB858.6 million in 2020.

The Group had entered into currency forward contracts to hedge certain of its
foreign currency exposure in non-RMB denominated indebtedness. In 2021,
the Group recorded in a fair value loss on derivative financial instruments
of RMB26.2 million due to hedging arrangements (2020: fair value loss of
RMB244.1 million).

Loss on early redemption of senior notes
In 2021, the Group realized a loss on early redemption of senior notes of
RMBS80.9 million, loss of RMB42.5 million was incurred in 2020.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Change in fair value of investment properties
In 2021, the Group recognised a fair value gain on investment properties
of approximately RMB1,308.1 million as compared to a fair value gain on

investment properties in 2020 of approximately RMB940.6 million.

Selling and marketing expenses

The Group’s selling and marketing expenses increased by 14.5% to
approximately RMB2,366.9 million in 2021 from approximately RMB2,067.4
million in 2020. This increase was in line with the Group’s massive new launches
of property projects available for pre-sale in 2021. During the year, the Group

kept its selling expenses at an appropriate level.

Administrative and other expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 27.9% to approximately
RMB3,767.1 million in 2021 from approximately RMB2,946.4 million in 2020.
During the year, the Group’s administrative expenses were kept at a reasonable
level due to implementation of stringent cost control and improvement in per

capita efficiency.

Share of results of joint ventures and associates

The Group’s share of results of joint ventures and associates amounted to profits
of RMB758.8 million in 2021, versus profits of RMB2,128.0 million in 2020.
Included in the share of results of joint ventures and associated companies
in 2021 were RMB45.0 million share of gain in the fair value of investment
properties (2020: RMB40.1 million).

Eliminating the effects of fair value gains, the Group’s share of results of joint
ventures and associated companies were profits of RMB713.8 million in 2021,
compared to RMB2,087.9 million in 2020.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs expensed in 2021 was approximately RMB578.7
million, versus RMB667.4 million in 2020. The change in finance costs expensed
was primarily attributable to the change in the total finance costs incurred, net of

the portion being capitalised in properties under development during the year.

The Group’s total finance costs expensed and capitalised decreased by 2.4%
to approximately RMB6,380.1 million in 2021 from RMB6,535.7 million in
2020. The decrease in total finance costs expensed and capitalised was due to
the decrease of the Group’s weighted average costs of indebtedness. The Group’s
total indebtedness was RMB114.1 billion as at 31 December 2021, compared to
RMB104.7 billion as at 31 December 2020. The Group’s weighted average cost
of indebtedness as at 31 December 2021 was 5.0%, compared to 5.4% as at 31
December 2020.

Income tax expenses

The Group’s income tax expenses increased by 38.0% to approximately
RMB5,900.4 million in 2021 from approximately RMB4,274.2 million in 2020.
The Group’s income tax expense included payments and provisions made for
enterprise income tax and land appreciation tax (“LAT”) less deferred taxation
during the year. The Group’s effective income tax rate increased to 32.4% in
2021 from 26.4% in 2020.

The Group made LAT provisions of approximately RMB1,091.0 million in 2021
versus approximately RMB1,836.3 million in 2020. The Group made actual LAT
payments of approximately RMB3,466.7 million in 2021 versus approximately
RMB2,316.6 million in 2020. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
accumulated unpaid LAT provisions of approximately RMB2,429.1 million.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Profit for the year

As a result of the factors described above, the Group’s profit before taxation
increased by 12.7% to approximately RMB18,227.6 million in 2021 from
approximately RMB16,169.8 million in 2020. The Group’s profit for the
year increased by 3.6% to approximately RMB12,327.2 million in 2021
from approximately RMB11,895.5 million in 2020. The Group’s net profit
attributable to equity owners decreased by 5.2% to approximately RMB7,612.9
million in 2021 from approximately RMB8,031.9 million in 2020.

The Group’s core net profit attributable to equity owners decreased by 9.2% to
approximately RMB7,283.9 million in 2021 from approximately RMB8,026.0
million in 2020. The Group’s core net profit margin was 6.8% in 2021,
compared to 11.2% in 2020.

Interests in and amount due from joint ventures and associates

The Group recorded interests in joint ventures of RMB15,966.2 million and
interests in associates of RMB18,447.5 million as at 31 December 2021, versus
RMB17,825.6 million and RMB16,861.9 million respectively as at 31 December
2020. The Group recorded amount due from joint ventures and associates of
RMB36,381.1 million as at 31 December 2021, versus RMB57,515.4 million as
at 31 December 2020.



TR R | U RER () AIRAF

B PG wk B 2 By

Management Discussion and Analysis

S5 Il B )

A A 3 R T A W) I RE 25 A R
A3 M A R RIE (48)

A A 3 BB s A Y RE 25 DL RE IR
B A 3 T s ) 3K B AR AR [ A
BEestEERTEEENES AR > m
EBEEHAN ARG ESEBEROL
e — H M EAE R SRS
H > HEI A > 34 5 B — i &
HEEBMBEPHET - B ESER
W8 8 R BRI AS SR 1 DAAH R & s A 2
WA 00 B 003 T B 0 RE SRR K (B % bl
B—H YT B ) o s -
oA I IE H @B RAR - N A
Tk 0N A RE 75 DA R R R B A 2
T 2 AR TE I > 2 A A 4R R T
TR > RS ERE > B
ShE— H 0 SETE H B B b R 5%
AH B Hl [ 5 7 A A SR > (e
Bl A A b I &2 oAb sl > LA v
BEERE > WRPERFE— Z K=
AT IEE - ARA ZFE Z—4E0
W s 0T LA R iR AR R A 2
T Bk 0 ) A L b e A I R
ol AR A SR F e B A b — i T R
5 — bl | — B o

e AR B 3

W_E A= —H > K%
MEE S EmHERmELNRKE
167,611,400,0007G » [fij A — %K ZF4F
A=+—HHaA AR ¥129,018,200,000
JG o A TR B 0 o2 PR 2 W B BT Ak &
AR T b AR AR R R TS

A JE T T R

R T A= —H o REHE
1) 4 28 B TH B 5 A\ R 2,201,900,000
JCo M F FFE+H=+—HHAE
A R #2,195,700,000 7C © £ BH 34 fim /2 R
i R A A B 1 5 40 8 B 1 R R =&
T AR AT b S B T B - A
B 5 0 i 5 08 ) R RO A A R
i Ko o AT — 0 S M BR R — AR B s
#‘%E °

057

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Interests in and amount due from joint ventures and associates (Continued)

The interests in joint ventures and associates, and the amount due from joint
ventures and associates are related to the holding of interest of the Group in
relevant joint venture entities formed with joint venture partners and engaged
in single purpose property projects developed for sale which is of revenue nature
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group. The amount due from
joint ventures and associates represented the shareholder’s loans contributed by
the Group in the capacity of the partners of the relevant joint venture incidental
to the development of the aforesaid single purpose property project, including
payment of the land premium and construction cost of the project. The increase
in the interests in joint ventures and associates, and the amount due from joint
ventures and associates was attributable to adopting prudent land acquisition
strategies, and continuing to co-operate and co-develop implemented by way of
diversifying the land bank in different geographical regions in the PRC through
forming joint venture entities with local partners for single purpose property
project developments in such regions so as to achieve a nationwide operating
coverage and a strong presence in major first- second- and third-tier cities in
the PRC. Details of new land acquired in 2021 and increase in attributable land
bank through joint ventures and associates of the Group are set out in paragraph
headed “Land Bank — Land acquisition” of this Management Discussion and

Analysis section.

Properties under development for sale

The Group recorded properties under development for sale of RMB167,611.4
million as at 31 December 2021, versus RMB129,018.2 million as at 31
December 2020. Such increase was due to the land-bank expansion in 2021

mentioned in the aforesaid paragraph.

Deferred taxation assets

The Group recorded deferred taxation assets of RMB2,201.9 million as at 31
December 2021, versus RMB2,195.7 million as at 31 December 2020. Such
increase was due to increase in prepaid LAT made by the Group in 2021 in
correspondence with the growth in contracted sales of the Group. Details
of increase in contracted sales are set out in paragraph headed “Property
Development — Contracted sales” of this Management Discussion and Analysis

section.
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bank was approximately 28.4 million sq.m.

As at 31 December 2021, the total GFA of the Group’s land bank was
approximately 52.5 million sq.m., and the attributable GFA of the Group’s land

Table 4: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December 2021

I H #15 By project
B WA TR
T/ R
o o L S
(A fEpraih:)
Remaining
unrecognised saleable/
rentable GFA A A B 2s
Primary intended remaining unsold  Interest attributable
BH Project THEERBME  use of the Project (carpark excluded) to the Group
(CEik)
(sq-m.) (%)
R=f Yangtze River Delta
IRyl Shanghai E World Centre HEmE Investment properties 10,386 50.0
T BLCMart Shanghai LCMart HEME Investment properties 2,41 50.0
L OME TN R Shanghai LCM VS 2L/E S Investment properties 131,937 50.0
iR 2 Shanghai Gongyuan Mansion 2,/ T Residential/Commercial 692 51.0
FI UK Shanghai CIFI U Block HEmE Investment properties 5,407 100.0
R Shanghai Haishang International HEME Investment properties 29,585 100.0
TR E A0 Shanghai Pure Centre /Mt Residential /Office/ 6,396 45.0
[ES Commercial
iz i Shanghai Pure Centre HEME Investment properties 29,663 45.0
HiERFEER Shanghai Changshou Road Project HEME Investment properties 59,717 100.0
TSR L Shanghai Henderson CIFI Centre /MM Residential Office/ 15,978 50.0
[ES Commercial
ARiZEE YR CNN Shanghai Henderson CIFI Centre VS -LIE S Investment properties 10,740 50.0
TiEAEE R Shanghai The Roof HEME Investment properties 35,771 50.0
LSS AR H Shanghai Yangjing $2/S3 Office HEME Investment properties 46,871 100.0
IRV Shanghai Gaohe Building s Tnvestment properties 1,022 100.0
T Shanghai Xinzhuang Centre HEME Investment properties 37,924 50.0
iR Shanghai Luxury Courtyard /T Residential/Commercial 3,574 100.0
LiREA#E Shanghai Pebble Beach T/l Residential/Commercial 10,047 100.0
SRR Shanghai Park Mansion West liea Residential 6,275 675
TIRAIRL Shanghai Huangchuang Centre HEME Investment properties 107,106 50.0
TIRAIRL Shanghai Huangchuang Centre PN Office 4,896 50.0
HEEILUR Shanghai Baoshan U Block HEME Investment properties 30983 25.0
T BT Wenzhou Yuelong Mansion /¥ Residential/Commercial 11,368 245
A P BT R P Wenzhou Xiangmao Oujiang %/ T Residential/Commercial 12,624 34.0

World's Metropolis
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=M AREE P F - —4H 1+ " H Table 4: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December 2021
E"I_‘_' H H’Jﬂ:ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬂ(@ﬂ (Continued)
:E%IE E %ﬂéﬂ\(ﬁﬁ) By project (Continued)
B AR
CE V8 A7 S
o o e S
(PFFALL)
Remaining
unrecognised saleable/
rentable GFA A AN 4
Primary intended remaining unsold  Interest attributable
BH Project THEERBME  use of the Project (carpark excluded) to the Group
CEIk)
(sq.m.) (%)
5L B P A Wenzhou Oumao Oujiang World's Metropolis Y4k Residential/Commercial 62,622 31.0
B RISk Nanchang Chenyue Jiangyu Courtyard /T Residential/Commercial 9,998 45.0
HEEZIf Nanchang Lingyun Mansion /T Residential/Commercial L117 34.0
R ASRL Nanjing Baimalanshan /T Residential/Commercial 532 51.0
MR RAE Nanjing Dongquan Noble Mansion /T Residential/Commercial 3,977 50.0
TR S 5 Hangzhou Original The One HEME Investment properties 26,116 50.0
HM BRI Hangzhou Guochen Mansion /T Residential/Commercial 2,045 533
ARATKT Hefei Gongyuan Lake Mansion 2/ Wi/ Residential Office/ 64,134 215
[ 2 Commercial
AR Hefei Park Mansion T/l Residential/Commercial 48 403 50.0
AR EMED Hefei Jiangshan Luzhou Seal /T Residential/Commercial 6,966 35.0
AlnE Hefei Jiuzhu Mansion 2/ HE Residential Commercial 1,227 100.0
ANRHELIL Hefei Glory Land 2,/ HE Residential /Commercial 12,487 30.0
A B b Al e Hefei Lake Betsuin T/l Residential/Commercial 73,879 50.0
AIEEERILILE Hefei Jade Seal /WM Residential/Office/ 33,332 254
[ 3 Commercial
A RSB I Hefei Park Mansion Luzhou FE /M Residencial Office/ 11,846 50.0
[E3 Commercial
AIBERTR Hefei Jade Jianglai Mansion REmE Investment properties 77,726 100.0
AR Hefei Xuelin Chunxiao T/l Residential/Commercial 4,150 34.0
AR R Hefei Yuexi Stage 2,/ HE Residential Commercial 740 50.0
AIEEHILA Hefei Lake Jianglai Mansion 2,/ HE Residential/Commercial 5,184 100.0
BNEAE Suzhou Private Mansion /B Residential/Commercial 1,988 100.0
B Ev e L Suzhou Metropolis Shangpin %/ T Residential/Commercial 9,431 70.0
[T Suzhou No.1 Courtyard /T Residential/Commercial 912 50.0
TRMT L Xuzhou Noble Mansion e/ T Residential/Commercial 1,461 50.0
TRMERENT Xuzhou Yunlong Mansion /T Residential/Commercial 19,334 50.0
-8 A Ningbo Shangning Mansion /T Residential/Commercial 3,204 100.0
B Ningbo CIFI City /T Residential/ Commercial 1,174 400
B Wuxi CIFI City /T Residential/ Commercial 2,777 200
B Wuxi Times City /T Residential/Commercial 750 30.0
HMRR Changzhou Nature’s Gift Garden %/ T Residential/Commercial 1,488 40.0
wEe L E Changzhou Metropolis Shangzhu /T Residential/Commercial 2,934 100.0
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Table 4: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December 2021

:E%IE E %ﬂéﬂ\(ﬁﬁ) By project (Continued)
B AR
AR/ BFHA
o B T L 5 i
(MuFpaLLL)
Remaining
unrecognised saleable/
rentable GFA A A B 2s
Primary intended remaining unsold  Interest attributable
HH Project BHEEHMME  useof the Project (carpark excluded) to the Group
(F7k)
(sq-m.) (%)
EMHe R Changzhou Metropolis Lane HE/ % Residential/Commercial 788 100.0
W BT Wuhu New Joy Mansion tE/HE Residential/Commercial 1,645 40.0
KA MRS Taicang Banhu Mansion e/ T Residential/Commercial 56,169 333
e Taicang Glory Mansion tE/HE Residential/Commercial 34,532 51.0
KEERERE (1415) Taicang Coastal Mansion (1-4/1-5) 1f%/ [GES Residential/Commercial 2,368 27.9
KERE JE%(H) Taicang Coastal Mansion (1-7) e / [HES Residential/Commercial 3,088 27.9
KEEHRR Taicang Xiyue Mansion 1£%/ [GES Residential/Commercial 7,142 100.0
GREFEE Jurong Jade Glory Mansion e/ Wit/ Residential Office/ 113,934 60
[LE3 Commercial
TR AT Jiangyin Yushan Mansion HE/Hi% Residential/Commercial 9,871 33.0
MRS YA Jiangyin Canal Gongyuan Mansion HE/Hi% Residential/Commercial 11,734 100.0
LRI Jiangyin Chengjiang Mansion HE/Hi% Residential/Commercial 632 100.0
B2 Kunshan Lakeside Mansion e/ % Residential/Commercial 1,159 311
BIgE SR Kunshan Lanting Garden tE/ ¥ Residential/Commercial 19,415 32.0
FOE Jiaxing CIFI Plaza HEmE Investment properties 82,540 100.0
FRHEH Jiaxing Ronchamp Town HE/Hi% Residential/Commercial 1,931 100.0
FREERI Jiaxing Jiashan Future City HE/Hi% Residential/Commercial 1,812 50.0
PREEEREN Jiaxing Jiashan Jimei Jiayue HE/Hi% Residential/Commercial 547 49.0
SERSTRI Jinhua Yiwu Yunjing Mansion T/l Residential/Commercial 26,067 34.0
AW Taizhou Gongyuan Mansion E';E/ [EGES Residential/Commercial 1,948 95.0
M T Taizhou CIFI Mansion E';E/ [EES Residential/Commercial 19,093 100.0
FHLFBEZB Zhoushan Boyue Xihu ftE/HE Residential/Commercial 12,682 51.0
M BN Quzhou CIFI City T/ WME/  Residential/Office/ 4197 50.0
[LE3 Commercial
TR LI Zhangjiagang Wuyue Mansion e/ HE Residential/Commercial 1,433 50.0
R Pan Bobai Rim
7R Beijing No.7 Courtyard e/ ¥ Residential/Commercial 115,848 49.0
T E R Beijing Wukesong Project REmE Investment properties 179,502 50.0
IR KEEE Beijing Tianrui Chenzhang T/ M Residential/Commercial 1,396 20.0
TR EEE L Beijing Wangxin Commercial Centre REmE Investment properties 4,860 100.0
il R Beijing Skyline Mansion T/ WAME/  Residential/Office/ 4,032 50.0

[HES Commercial
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:E%IE E %ﬂéﬂ\(ﬁﬁ) By project (Continued)

B AR

CE V8 A7 S

o o e S

(PFFALL)

Remaining

unrecognised saleable/
rentable GFA A AN 4
Primary intended remaining unsold  Interest attributable
BH Project THEERBME  use of the Project (carpark excluded) to the Group

(Eik)
(sq.m.) (%)
iR R Beijing Brocade To Home A Residential/Commercial 17,321 26.0
R R Qingdao Xinghe City 2/ T Residential/Commercial 4,296 50.0
HEEBEG Qingdao Boguan Xinghai /T Residential/Commercial 1,107 50.0
FRANERE Qingdao Park Mansion Spiritual Bay /MM Residential Office/ 55,121 255

[E 2 Commercial
HESNH Qingdao Fairview Park Mansion /T Residential/Commercial 12,19 50.0
EHAT Shenyang Gongyuan Mansion T/ B Residential/Commercial 4,223 100.0
TR BRI (P S Shenyang Dongchen Mansion (West) /T Residential/Commercial 27,403 70.0
R RUR I R Shenyang Dongchen Mansion (East) %/ T Residential/Commercial 36,959 70.0
TR AUl Shenyang North Dongyuecheng /T Residential/Commercial 7,232 50.0
8 s O R Shenyang South Dongyuecheng /T Residential/Commercial 3,750 70.0
TR BANE Shenyang Langyue Mansion %/ T Residential/Commercial 2,735 335
PSR Shenyang Central Palace /WM Residential/Office/ 58,254 100.0
[E 3 Commercial

TRBHE T Shenyang Central Palace HEME Investment properties 50,922 100.0
AT Shenyang Luxury Mansion /T Residential/Commercial 5,041 100.0
EHRER Shenyang Jingchen Mansion Tt/ HE Residential/Commercial 38,381 100.0
TEE ks 55 Tianjin Guangming Road No.8 /T Residential/Commercial 977 50.0
e e Tianjin Yuejun Metropolis /¥ Residential/Commercial 602 50.0
KA Tianjin Private Mansion 2,/ HE Residential/Commercial 10,498 100.0
K Tianjin Haojing Bay HE / [EE2 Residential/Commercial 1,041 50.0
K RE Tianjin Tanggu Bay No.6 /¥ Residential/Commercial 1,577 50.0
FHETHs 5 Tianjin Binxi Road No.5 2/ % Residential/Commercial 1,199 35.0
KB NF Tianjin Hanyue Mansion /¥ Residential/Commercial 111,647 51.0
pRES il Tianjin Rosedale /T Residential/Commercial 707 100.0
iR Al Jinan Jinyulanshan /T Residential/Commercial 2,800 50.0
YT Jinan City of Starry /T Residential/Commercial 6,306 225
Y L Jinan Boguan Shanyue T/ B Residential/Commercial 56,495 25.5
AFHREIT Shijiazhuang Wise Mansion 2,/ HE Residential/Commercial 36,520 65.0
KEATC Dalian Gongyuan Mansion /T Residential/Commercial 19,693 50.0
T 111 Dalian Jianshan Mansion e / [EE3 Residential/Commercial 5,609 100.0
NV Dalian Family Villa e / [EE3 Residential/Commercial 1,321 100.0
Bl ST Linyi Xinghe City /T Residential/Commercial 3,424 255
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Table 4: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December 2021

:E%IE E %ﬂéﬂ\(ﬁﬁ) By project (Continued)
B AR
CE V8 A7 S
o o e S
(PFFALL)
Remaining
unrecognised saleable/
rentable GFA A AN 4
Primary intended remaining unsold  Interest attributable
BH Project THEERBME  use of the Project (carpark excluded) to the Group
CEIk)
(sq.m.) (%)
B U B B n Linyi Phoenix New City /T Residential/Commercial 61,772 40.0
JE SRR Yantai Huisheng Lanhai /T Residential/Commercial 3,408 46.0
BT Weifang Waterfront Mansion /T Residential/Commercial 4,255 255
W E R Jining Boguan Yunzhu (East) /T Residential/Commercial 1,961 40.0
i Central Western Region
RO P e 5 Changsha CIFI International Plaza 2/ Wi#/  Residential Office/ 1,893 100.0
[ 2 Commercial
AP R R 57 Changsha CIFI International Plaza fEmE Investment properties 24,012 100.0
RO HU, Changsha Dongyue City /T Residential/Commercial 19,465 50.0
R Changsha Yuhua Town /T Residential/Commercial 3,957 80.0
BETIIRETIIRN Chongging Waves River Qianjiangfu /T Residential/Commercial 19,812 33.0
BEREEE Chongging Skyline Mansion %/ T Residential/Commercial 947 33.0
Gl Chongging CIFI City /MM Residential Office/ 1,037 100.0
[E 3 Commercial
TR Chonggqing CIFI City REmE Investment properties 43,915 100.0
BELIEME Chonggqing Verdant Landscape /T Residential/Commercial 31,381 100.0
BEHTINES Chongging The Landscape 2/ WM/ Residential/Office/ 4,796 334
[E 3 Commercial
BRHTIL Chonggqing Jianshan Mansion /T Residential/Commercial 4,601 30.0
BESWUN Chongging Jinsha Jiuyue %/ T Residential/Commercial 5,509 50.0
BRERIR Chongging The Essence of River /T Residential/Commercial 2,230 50.0
BREHRR Chongqing Nature Grace /¥ Residential/Commercial 7,815 333
BEHRHIL Chongging Panorama /T Residential/Commercial 8,179 30.0
BEZIB Chongging Cloud Poem /B Residential/Commercial 36,297 35.0
BRI Chongging Prime Orient 2/ WM/ Residential/Office/ 94,076 333
[E 3 Commercial
BEENRS Chonggqing Jiayue Plaza /W% /5 Residential/ 29,463 100.0
Commercial/Hotel
AR Chengdu CIFI Plaza HEME Investment properties 86,000 100.0
RN Chengdu Tang Mansion Tt/ HE Residential/Commercial 3410 34.0
ERAETEI Chengdu Grand Flower City BEmE Investment properties 67,044 30.0
RERRRE Wahan CIFI Tower fEE/BAH  ResidentialOffice 35,064 510
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Table 4: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December 2021

:E%IE E %ﬂéﬂ\(ﬁﬁ) By project (Continued)
BT MR WD
WEE /BT
o R o i
(R FELhL)
Remaining
unrecognised saleable/
rentable GFA A NG
Primary intended remaining unsold  Interest attributable
BH Project THEERBME  use of the Project (carpark excluded) to the Group
CEIk)
(sq.m.) (%)
RETINE Wuhan Noble Wonderland /T Residential/Commercial 98,484 55.0
RETEF Wuhan Jiangxia Mansion HE / [EE2 Residential/Commercial 2,165 50.0
BT Wuhan Jiangyue Mansion HE / [EE2 Residential/Commercial 93,425 510
RERZE Wuhan Skyline HE / [EE2 Residential/Commercial 17,228 70.0
REHEEERM Wuhan Yulong Peninsula B HE / N / Residential/Office/ 12,429 55.0
[EES Commercial
REFHEERCH Wuhan Yulong Peninsula C HE / [EES Residential/Commercial 22211 55.0
EBAT A Uriimqi Yanlai Mansion HE / [EE2 Residential/Commercial 12,581 100.0
B LB Guiyang Shangguan Jiangshan /T Residential/Commercial 24,893 100.0
AR kS Guiyang Shangguan Fenghua 2,/ HE Residential Commercial 35,515 50.0
HHHZ Guiyang Skyline /T Residential/Commercial 59,699 100.0
(iR i Xi'an CIFI Centre fEmE Investment properties 41,129 100.0
P B Xi'an Landscape e / [EE2 Residential/Commercial 10,146 80.0
NG Zhengzhou Grand Mansion E / [EE3 Residential/Commercial 2,939 21.0
g oY Zhengzhou The Park Mansion E / [EE3 Residential/Commercial 68,777 100.0
SV R (B 2 Yinchuan Jiangnan Mansion(Jingxi) /T Residential/Commercial 1,743 40.0
S1VL e B (e 2 ) Yinchuan Jiangnan Mansion(Longxi) /T Residential/Commercial 6,965 40.0
ST ER Y Yinchuan Jiangnan Mansion /T Residential/Commercial 1,618 75.0
AETLIE Xuchang Landscape Garden E / [EE2 Residential/Commercial 78,087 50.0
R Xiangtan Yue Mansion E / [EE2 Residential/Commercial 5,073 50.0
&9 South China
JEM L% Guangzhou Flowers Bay T/ B Residential/Commercial 3,266 23.5
L ML s Foshan CIFI Agile Joy & Peace /T Residential/Commercial 72,226 33.0
LTI Foshan Homeland /T Residential/Commercial 1,144 100.0
LTI Foshan Landscape Glory /T Residential/Commercial 3,144 20.0

063
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Table 4: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December 2021
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HIE E %ﬂéﬂ\(ﬁﬁ) By project (Continued)
B AR
CE V8 A7 S
o o e S
(PFFALL)
Remaining
unrecognised saleable/
rentable GFA A AN 4
Primary intended remaining unsold  Interest attributable
BH Project THEERBME  use of the Project (carpark excluded) to the Group
CEIk)
(sq.m.) (%)
e 40 Foshan Changle Mansion T/l Residential/Commercial 96,942 33.0
LRI Foshan Jade Xijiang /T Residential/Commercial 9,948 34.0
FIRpN N Xiamen Tianyue Gongguan HE/HE Residential/Commercial 11,065 100.0
M Xiamen Hailian Centre HEME Investment properties 1,470 100.0
BINATTRE Fuzhou Gongyuan Mansion /¥ Residential/Commercial 4,486 70.0
BHNLLES Fuzhou The Landscape /T Residential/Commercial 55,213 70.0
TRMIL R B Fuzhou Jiangnan Mansion /¥ Residential/Commercial 3,450 70.0
R K Fuzhou Rongchen Tianzhu /¥ Residential/Commercial 3,220 100.0
g R Sanya Park Yalong Bay /T Residential/Commercial 6,340 100.0
BB Huizhou CIFI Block e/ H¥ Residential/Commercial 33,714 50.0
NS Jiangmen No.1 Courtyard HE/HE Residential/Commercial 44210 40.0
Il (— ) Zhongshan Zhonghui City (Phase 1) T/l Residential/Commercial 3,823 33.0
L () Zhongshan Zhonghui City (Phase 2) T/l Residential/Commercial 1,696 34.0
il R (=10) Zhongshan Zhonghui City (Phase 3) /T Residential/Commercial 2,007 22.0
SRR A Quanzhou Shishi CIFI City e,/ e Residential/ Commercial 7,189 20.0
FlEE Hong Kong Maya [HE3 Commercial ERERE 50.0
3,808 F Ik
(40,985
FIR)
Net saleable
area:
3,808 sq.m.
(40,985 sq.ft.)
FlEE Hong Kong Maya £ Residential il 50.0
L4k
(12,639
FIR)
2,691,271
Net saleable
area:
1,174 sq.m.
(12,639 sq.ft.)
B i S Al Car Parks & Other 2,691,271
i GRAND TOTAL 6,663,570
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HIE E %ﬂéﬂ\(ﬁﬁ) By project (Continued)
W R R AR
PR Y B S i
(e
Total GFA under A
development and {17 £
HHEERBNE L Ak held for future Interest
Primary intended use ~ Estimated Year ARG development BB atrbuwble
%H Project of the Project of Completion ~ Site Area (excluding carparks) ~ Pre-sold  to the Group
(Eik) (Fik)  (EiK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
k=f Yangtze River Delta
IR e S Shanghai Century Gumei e/ Mm% 2022 37,509 80,358 80,338 490
Residential/Commercial
M TODE B Wenzhou TOD Incernacional New City 1% /T 2022 52,731 165,586 154,487 165
Residential/Commercial
TN Wenzhou Bund Jiangyue Bay fkE/ 1% 2022 39,608 129,008 122,44 04
Residential/Commercial
SRS, Wenzhou Future CIFI City fk2/ 1% 2022 30490 74,800 4217 700
Residential/Commercial
RMAREE Wenzhou Future Coast fi,/ ¥ 2003 117,959 333,645 30,860 50.0
Residential/Commercial
A3 Wenzhou Guanghui City fkE/ 1% 2023-2024 199,300 554,100 14,034 49,0
Residential/Commercial
MBS Wenzhou CIFI City iz /Mg 20222023 147,538 419338 394020 255
Residential/Commercial
B pERE Wenzhou Luchen Yin iz /Mg 2022 4142 118,898 111,231 34.0
Residential/Commercial
RIEME o FTA2ISH  Nanchang CIFI High-tech Jianglai e/ HE 2025-2026 143,564 23,452 - 100.0
Mansion 215 actes Residential/Commercial
RIEME o FTA 2628 Nanchang CIFI High-tech Jianglai e/ HE 2023-2025 174459 284,746 - 100.0
Mansion 262 acres Residential/Commercial
B Nanchang CIFI Centre iz /Mg 2022-2024 218,161 245 619 32,520 100.0
Residential/Commercial
) Nanchang CIFI Centre 4t ES 20222024 82,254 92,607 - 100.0
[nvestment properties
B E AL o KA Nanchang CIFI Centre - Tianyu e/ HE 2022-2023 52,038 78,076 16,027 55.0
Residential/Commercial
FIE IS o KB Nanchang CIFI Centre - e/ H% 2023-2024 66,667 139213 8,197 55.0
Shuitouyue Mansion Residential /Commetcial
i FREREE Nanjing Shangchen Skyline Mansion e/ HE 2023 46365 114,148 33,87 340

Residential/Commercial
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E"I_‘_' H Hg:tﬂﬂ%ﬁ%m(lég) (Continued)
HIE E %ﬂéﬂ\(ﬁﬁ) By project (Continued)
W R R AR
I A A S
(e
Total GFA under AR
development and it
HALERMRE  HEBRTAR held for future Interest
Primary intended use ~ Estimated Year AR development BB atnbutble
%H Project of the Project of Completion ~ Site Area (excluding carparks) ~ Pre-sold  tothe Group
(Fik) (Fik)  CEiK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
SRR &S} Nanjing Qianjiang Lingyun Mansion /¥ 2023 27,42 64,250 61997 330
Residential/Commercial
BRI HE2021G12EH  Nanjing Jiangbei New Area 2021G12 ftE/Tig 2023-2025 71626 233,929 30,605 200
Project Residential/Commetcial
BIRILILER2021G57H  Nanjing Jiangbei Getang 2021G57 Project £/ 2023 56,193 115440 - 510
Residential/Commercial
R RTEGSSHH Nanjing Jiangning G58 Project 2/ WA/ TE 203 26,669 77,674 . 241
Residential (Office/
Commercial
A EEENO.2021GL 16 Nanjing Jianye District No.2021G116 REAE 2024 11,446 22,900 - 100.0
[lizhilh Southwest Plot Apartment rental
A RS I G30) Nanjing Fenghui Yipin Mansion (G30) £/ HME/ ¥ 2022 47,86 119,073 68,506 £5.0
Residential (Office/
Commercial
R BEE BEG3) Nanjing Fenghui Yipin Mansion (G37) £/ HME/ ¥ 2022 45,684 109,944 80,098 £5.0
Residential (Office/
Commetcial
AREHAR Nanjing Jingyue Noble Mansion fHE/ B/ TE  202-2003 26,741 86,731 9,562 200
Residential (Office/
Commercial
WK EIER Hangzhou Tianmu Mountain Project e/ L 2022 33,285 49,928 - 100.0
Residential/Commercial
MR Hangzhou Junhe Mansion /¥ 2022 71,346 127,170 65,230 100.0
Residential/Commercial
BUMERITE Hangzhou Zhaowen Flower City /¥ 20222023 105,869 250445 254,783 330
Residential/Commercial
UM = Hangzhou Xianghu Glory Mansion E/HE 2022 93,039 246,859 246,271 18.0
Residential/Commercial
BUMTE IR H Hangzhou Qianchuan Project /¥ 2022 23915 32,873 - 100.0
Residential/Commercial
WAREIRT Hangzhou Binxu Mansion ft/ Mg 2022 63,356 148,857 66,015 304

Residential/Commercial
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HIE E %ﬂéﬂ\(ﬁﬁ) By project (Continued)
W R R AR
Vi Y A S
(e
Total GFA under AR
development and iR
HHTERMNE  BRTER held for future Interest
Primary intended use ~ Estimated Year AR development BB atobuwble
%H Project of the Project of Completion ~ Site Area (excluding carparks)  Pre-sold  tothe Group
(Fik) (Fik)  (EiK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
AR Hefei Park Mansion E/HE 2022 13,071 22,920 22,561 50.0
Residential/Commercial
AR « BT Hefei CIFI Wangjianglai Mansion ft/Tig 2023 59,946 99,886 20,095 100.0
Residential/Commercial
AL EMED Hefei Jiangshan Luzhou Seal /¥ 2022 56,324 13371 101,244 35.0
Residential/Commercial
AMBE AR Hefei Zhengwu Future /¥ 2022 107,128 00192 191939 £5.0
Residential/Commercial
BEHBKE Hefei Park Tianhui e/ ¥ 2022 19,165 50,344 50,344 50.0
Residential/Commercial
BRI Hefei Jade Jianglai Mansion /W TE 202 16,290 38,115 4350 100.0
Residential (Office/
Commercial
BN o L Suzhou Zhongjian CIFI-Jiangshang /¥ 2023 295 56,767 6,018 200
Residential/Commercial
BMamE Suzhou Wumen Lane e/ ¥ 2022-2023 90,952 166178 104,349 50.0
Residential/Commercial
BNENES Suzhou Chunhe Wanxiang it/ % 20 162,259 288,032 29,667 110
Residential/Commercial
BNES A Suzhou Yangui Laiyuan /¥ 2022 161,765 26,807 - 100.0
Residential/Commercial
M S Suzhou Park Lake Mansion E%/ [iE 2022 45,635 46,794 20,282 355
Residential/Commercial
BN SRERSBLT Suzhou Jinlin Park Mansion /¥ 2022 13,873 146957 145,19 46,0
Residential/Commercial
BRMKR Xuzhou Aristocrat Palace e/ M /B%E 20222003 62,892 169,081 105,53 490
Residential (Office/
Commercial
BAAEER Xuzhou Hepingyunjing /¥ 2023 53487 125,567 49,022 35.0
Residential/Commercial
(I N Xuzhou Jiawang Pengcheng Avenue Project e/ % 2023-2026 204,817 414,648 - 520

Residential/Commercial
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Table 4: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December 2021
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HIE E %ﬂéﬂ\(ﬁﬁ) By project (Continued)
CELE FT
DR 0 A e 5 i
(Mg
Total GFA under A
development and it
FEHLERHNE  BEbRTAn held for future Interest
Primary intended use ~ Estimated Year AR development BB atnbutble
%H Project of the Project of Completion ~ Site Area (excluding carparks) ~ Pre-sold  tothe Group
(Fik) (k) CEik)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
i FRRA Ningbo Shangdong Chenfu e/ Wt/ HE 2023 84,775 167825 8,206 50.0
Residential/Office/
Commercial
SR Ningbo CIFI City /¥ 2022 178,265 253,407 87477 40.0
Residential/Commercial
EFHER Wusi CIFI City e/ e 2022 50,521 88,924 41,643 200
Residential/Commercial
ESRI Wi Central Palace /¥ 20222023 83,400 160,257 50,47 25.0
Residential/Commercial
EGHRE L Waxi Park Mansion /¥ 20222023 65,337 105,630 2857 80.0
Residential/Commercial
B L 23R Shaoxing Shanghe City /¥ 20222023 94,757 206957 71,722 490
Residential/Commercial
ARG Shaoxing Shanghe City fEmE 2022-2023 26,892 58,734 - 49.0
[nvestment properties
ENHEITR Changzhou Duhui Jianglai Mansion /¥ 20222023 93,717 199,032 53,350 40.0
Residential/Commercial
R SR Nantong Dongsheng CIFI Centre /¥ 2023-2024 84,749 182,960 - 49.0
Residential/Commercial
AL Lu'an CIFI Centre ftE/Tig 2022-2025 257,736 502,600 36,497 70.0
Residential/Commercial
gl Huai'an CIFI Plaza e/ WA/ HE 2003202 151,653 429,016 - 1000
Residential/Office/
Commercial
iqlihil4 Huai'an CIFI Plaza R 2023-2026 24,504 69,320 - 100.0
[nvestment properties
SN o SABIEI «  Wuhu Zhongliang CIFI-Park Mansion ftE/Tig 2023 65,773 126416 73,332 49.0
e Residential/Commercial
MR Wuhu Park Mansion ftt/Tig 2022 63,050 124,537 123,584 49,0
Residential/Commercial
=R tiloN Xuancheng Wanling Palace /¥ 20232024 142,454 23,170 17,345 240
Residential/Commercial
KAkE Taicang Glory Mansion /¥ 2022 30,804 54,150 24,183 510

Residential/Commercial
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HIE E %ﬂéﬂ\(ﬁﬁ) By project (Continued)
LEL LTSN
Vi Y A S
(e
Total GFA under AEME
development and iR
HALERMRE  BEBRTAR held for future Interest
Primary intended use ~ Estimated Year AR development BB atobuwble
%H Project of the Project of Completion ~ Site Area (excluding carparks)  Pre-sold  tothe Group
(Fik) (Fik)  CEiX)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
KA ERHA Taicang Xiyue Mansion /¥ 2022 28,526 55,732 9,021 100.0
Residential/Commercial
AAFRR Jurong Chenyue Mansion fve/ ¥ 2022 49,625 97,924 48,133 264
Residential/Commercial
ILEHAT Jiangyin Yushan Mansion /¥ 2022 24,039 40,253 30,250 330
Residential/Commercial
LRENAT Jiangyin Canal Gongyuan Mansion /¥ 2022 36,239 92,690 41,100 100.0
Residential/Commercial
HERN Sugian Chengyue Mansion /¥ 20222023 60,903 123,265 43,757 65.0
Residential/Commercial
Al N Kunshan Laning Garden fit/ % 2022 42,641 96195 69460 320
Residential/Commercial
RS Yuyao Landscape Poetry e/ g 2022 67,191 109,311 108,449 50.0
Residential/Commercial
L Yancheng Chenyang Mansion RE / [iES 2023 23319 67,018 - 27.0
Residential/Commercial
T Pan Bohai Rim
B YN Beijing Wukesong Project fE 2022 37,000 88308 - 50.0
[nvestment properties
EEARTLE Beijing Park District 17 e/ 2022 8,988 21,346 9,652 330
Residential/Commercial
B AZUNET Beijing Park City /¥ 20222023 94,117 152,931 84,795 9
Residential/Commercial
IRFELR Beijing Qingyun Mansion /¥ 2023 57,008 107,401 2155 340
Residential/Commercial
TRtRER Beijing Gongchen Project /WA TE 203 10,384 26,920 - 100.0
Residential (Office/

Commercial
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I A R S
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Total GFA under A
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VR R T AR held for future Interest
Primary intended use ~ Estimated Year i g development CFfE  atobumble
%H Project of the Project of Completion ~ Site Area (excluding carparks) ~ Pre-sold  tothe Group
(Fik) (Fik)  CEiX)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
LB Beijing Guoxiang Mansion g/ HE 2022 60,631 118,771 67,292 225
Residential/Commercial
TrmHES Beijing Guoiang Yunzhu /Mg 2023 58,352 127,734 10,528 25
Residential/Commercial
LRBEKERMITER  Beijing Miyun Shuiyuan Road Project % 2024-2026 103,207 200,200 - 10.0
Residential
T ER Beijing Lakeside Mansion i/l 2022 20,171 53,649 50,329 15
Residential/Commercial
TR Beijing Zhuangwei Project e/ Wt/ HiE 202 5,151 23,034 - 100.0
Residential (Office/
Commercial
TR Beijing Huayue International Lingshang g/l 2022 16,189 48,912 45,628 122
Residential/Commercial
KEREHRE =% KR Taiyuan Jiancaoping Districe, Sanji Area, {1/ 2023-2027 401,651 121029 392,179 35.0
SP1919-SP1924%E H SP1919-SP1924 project Residential/Commercial
KEREFE=%F R Taiyuan Jiancaoping District, Sanji Area, Residential/Office/ 2023-2027 264,416 1,298,971 269,455 35.0
SP1925-SP1928% B SP1925-8P1928 project Commercial
H R, Qingdao Xinghe City ftE/ Mg 2022 73,299 IST404 125,581 500
Residential/Commercial
HRERIER Qingdao Xingyun City e/ TE 2022 157,614 253788 169,582 50.0
Residential/Commercial
EERE Qingdao Chenyue Mansion e/ TiE 2022 33211 65,347 52,703 348
Residential/Commercial
ERNERE Qingdao Park Mansion Spiricual Bay FE/ s/ TE 2022204 128943 156,131 21,678 255
Residential (Office/
Commercial
F BRI Qingdao Mansion Huisheng E%/ [iE 2023 33,194 52,047 - 50.0
Residential/Commercial
HEEHY Qingdo Fairview Park Mansion ftE/ Mg 2022-2023 48509 %3917 9,701 500
Residential/Commercial
F RS Qingdzo Delicate Bay /¥ 2022 19436 51,656 37,266 175

Residential Commercial
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HIE E %ﬂéﬂ\(ﬁﬁ) By project (Continued)
LT FI
DR 0 e i
(e
Total GFA under A
development and i
VR R T AR held for future Interest
Primary intended use ~ Estimated Year i development OFfE  atrbumble
¥H Project of the Project of Completion ~ Site Area (excluding carparks) ~ Pre-sold  tothe Group
(Fik) (Fik)  CEiK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
izl Shenyang Harmonious g/l 20222023 30,827 65,646 56,768 400
Residential/Commercial
EERRIT (Fs) Shenyang Dongchen Mansion (West) /Mg 2022 26011 51,898 20,709 700
Residential/Commercial
HEHARRR Shenyang Platinum Times 2/ BME /% 2023-204 155,839 322,792 13,756 100.0
Residential (Office/
Commercial
AL Shenyang Park Mansion e/ Wt/ HiE 202 55,90 127813 52,181 100.0
Residential (Office/
Commercial
FHARRE o H &Ik Tianjin CIFI Duhui Jianglai /Mg 2023-2025 92919 174,635 2,074 50.0
Residential/Commercial
KEANAE Tianjin Park Mansion g/l 2003 14,980 37,618 9,195 60.0
Residential/Commercial
pREsH T Tianjin Park Rongyu /¥ 2023 19,520 47,280 - 49.0
Residential/Commercial
PR Lol Tianjin Hanyue Mansion g/l 2022-2023 72,834 140,841 123,290 51.0
Residential/Commercial
BRI Tianjin Binhai Jianglai ftE/Tig 2022-2024 89,883 238,933 55,839 60.0
Residential/Commercial
TR AR D Jinan CIFI Yinshengtai Centre 2/ BME /% 2023-204 50,132 163,844 4416 375
Residential (Office/
Commercial
EHhEER Jinan Waterfront Mansion g/l 2024 66,902 171,443 - 25.5
Residential/Commercial
o M Jinan City of Starry ftE/ Mg 2022 82,852 200031 124329 25
Residential/Commercial
VEHIALHE o SABERY Jinan Olympic-Park Mansion fte/ ¥ 2022 40,000 127427 33,067 200
Residential/Commercial
Wi A L E Jinan Ruijintai Garden g/l 2022 4117 16,234 14320 50.0
Residential/Commercial
REHAT Shijiazhuang Gongyuan Mansion ft/ Mg 2022-2024 213,59 462,220 71,122 50.0

Residential Commercial
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HIE E %ﬂéﬂ\(ﬁﬁ) By project (Continued)
W R R AR
D 1 e i
(e
Total GFA under AR
development and it
HHTERMNE  PRTER held for future Interest
Primary intended use ~ Estimated Year AR development BB atnbutble
%H Project of the Project of Completion ~ Site Area (excluding carparks) ~ Pre-sold  tothe Group
(Fik) (Fik)  (EiK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
ARIRLI Shijiazhuang Changan Mansion frg/H% 2022 11,386 33,930 31,660 50.0
Residential/Commercial
ARIRN Shijiazhuang Central Palace /¥ 2022 8,878 19,153 18,072 510
Residential/Commercial
REAE Harbin Park Mansion HE/HE 2023-2024 158,180 374476 - 100.0
Residential/Commercial
TTESR Harbin Platinum Mansion e/ W% 2003 18,323 53,983 3,060 80.0
Residential/Commercial
RAM P Changchun Dream City (West) e/l 20232025 120,092 235,636 - 300
Residential/Commercial
RAME GO0 Changchun Dream City (East) g/l 2022 69,180 137,546 1,821 300
Residential/Commercial
I b Dalian Jiangshan Ruyuan ft/Tig 2022 29929 64,612 16,197 100.0
Residential/Commercial
REHRFH, Dalian Platinum Times fve/ ¥ 203 26,000 149,483 1716 48,0
Residential/Commercial
B AT E Linyi Gongyuan Mansion E%/%/L}@/P;ﬁ% 2022 5,395 12,268 11,504 4.0
Residential (Office/
Commercial
Bl W Linyi Xinghui City e/ li% 2024-2025 189,240 £1970 - 450
Residential/Commercial
AR EEAL) Yantai Huisheng Lanhai (A10) /WA TE 202 189,088 156,158 89,004 46,0
Residential (Office/
Commercial
G Yantai Bay Huisheng /¥ 2022-2024 64,774 171,563 110,885 750
Residential/Commercial
R Dezhou Boguan Tianlu /¥ 2023 70,081 162,260 - 50,0
Residential/Commercial
W R Wieifang Boguan Tiancheng /WA TE 202 61,806 154904 109,235 50.0
Residential (Office/
Commercial
HIRMERE Rizhao Boguan Xinghai fEE/ Wt/ TE 2022202 66911 158917 - 452
Residential (Office/

Commercial
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HIE E %ﬂéﬂ\(ﬁﬁ) By project (Continued)
W R R AR
Vi Y A S
(e
Total GFA under AR
development and iR
HHTERMNE  BRTER held for future Interest
Primary intended use ~ Estimated Year AR development BB atobuwble
%H Project of the Project of Completion ~ Site Area (excluding carparks)  Pre-sold  tothe Group
(Fik) (Fik)  (EiK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
EEER Jining Chenyue Mansion E%/ [ 2023 34,360 74,218 1,595 15.0
Residential/Commercial
FEWBEE (R Jining Boguan Yunzhu (West) fve/ ¥ 2022 34715 73,153 58751 400
Residential/Commercial
et Zibo Boguan Xiyuan /¥ 20232024 69,999 146,439 2424 50.0
Residential/Commercial
s B s e Liaocheng Dongguantui Mansion e/ e 2023 51,326 131,572 18,995 205
Residential/Commercial
i Central Western Region
B Changsha Yuhua Town i/ % 2022 85,48 339,084 264,798 80.0
Residential/Commercial
EUWARS Changsha Yujin Plaza FE/ Tz 2022-2023 107,440 309,667 72210 100.0
Residential/Commercial
RUMEES Changsha Yujin Plaza fEmE 20222023 6,244 17,997 - 100.0
[nvestment properties
RUBERH Changsha Guochen Mansion i/ % 2023-2025 117,345 358,351 5,743 340
Residential/Commercial
RIBENF Changsha Guoyue Mansion e/ Tz 2022-2023 89,636 320,762 161,709 80.0
Residential/Commercial
REotRztiE Changsha Meixi Glory Mansion e/ Wokl/WE 2 56,369 01857 143379 343
Residential (Office/
Commercial
R Changsha Hushan Mansion /Mg 2022 193,021 314,008 161,648 50.0
Residential/Commercial
RUHER Changsha Central Palace /g 2023 131,393 259,214 58873 70.0
Residential/Commercial
RUSBHIT Changsha Park Mansion g/ W/ % 20032024 94,401 22377 82,543 6.0
Residential (Office/
Commercial
EL-dR Chongging TOP City e/ HE 2022 37,493 81,138 35,067 510
Residential/Commercial
BETIRERZE Chongqing Waves River Lingyunfeng Bt/ Tz 2022 25447 75,840 8,886 33.0

Residential Commercial
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HIE E %ﬂéﬂ\(ﬁﬁ) By project (Continued)
W R AK
I A R S
(e
Total GFA under A
development and iR
VR R T AR held for future Interest
Primary intended use ~ Estimated Year i g development CFfE  atobumble
%H Project of the Project of Completion ~ Site Area (excluding carparks) ~ Pre-sold  tothe Group
(Fik) (Fik)  CEiX)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
BETILRETIIN Chongqing Waves River Qianjiangfu E%/P»ﬁ% 2022 51,399 118,150 105,000 330
Residential/Commercial
HEMTM Chongging Jiangzhou Impression E%/ [iE 2022 38,610 138,666 24381 35.0
Residential/Commercial
BRI TR Chongging CIFI - Chongging Landmark A8 /% 2023-2024 83,995 219,120 - 66.0
Office/Commercial
IR o SRR Chongging CIFI Placinum Centre ft/ Mg 20222023 102,675 152,429 2,686 50.0
Residential/Commercial
ERHRAA R Chongging CIFI Jinke Konggang e/ T 20222023 94,646 132,627 81,037 50.0
Residential/Commercial
BRI, Chongging Verdant Landscape /¥ 20222025 129,160 6117 246,117 100.0
Residential/Commercial
EELIE Chongging The Landscape fEE/ B0/ TE 202-2003 94,216 200457 26,793 334
Residential (Office/
Commercial
BRRBEER R Chongqing Bonded Port Project No.l frg/m% 2022:20 50,361 66,958 - 50.0
Residential/Commercial
ERHRNR Chongging Nature Grace ftE/ Mg 2022-2024 100,897 275,059 89,271 333
Residential/Commercial
BRI Chongging Panoama 2/ HE 2022 81,831 27000 170,302 300
Residential/Commercial
B IEAA O Chengdu Tianfu Future Centre E%/P»ﬁ% 2023-2025 237,179 556,148 59,862 330
Residential/Commercial
BEKIFAAERD o TTIIBE  Chengdu Tianfu Furure Centre- e/l 2023 63,584 121,017 - 50.0
Jiangshanyuan Residential/Commetcial
FCER AL Chengdu CIFI Centre i/l 20232025 188,112 524,749 12377 50.0
Residential/Commercial
RE R Chengdu CIFI Plaza g/l 2022 30,368 100,846 25,663 1000
Residential/Commercial
FARILEL Chengdu Jiangyushan ftE/Tig 20222023 96,721 241,185 80,224 255
Residential/Commercial
JRARHIE B B Chengdu Huguang Mansion ftE/ Mg 2022 64,521 86,391 19,379 34.0

Residential/Commercial
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HIE E %ﬂéﬂ\(ﬁﬁ) By project (Continued)
LT FI
DR 0 e i
(e
Total GFA under A
development and i
VR R T AR held for future Interest
Primary intended use ~ Estimated Year i development OFfE  atrbumble
¥H Project of the Project of Completion ~ Site Area (excluding carparks) ~ Pre-sold  tothe Group
(Fik) (Fik)  CFiK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
RETIHRE Wuhan Qianshan Lingyun g/ HE 2022-2023 78491 304470 197384 84.0
Residential/Commercial
RIS Whan Noble Wonderland frg/m% 2022-203 45823 129,833 19,014 55.0
Residential/Commercial
R Wuhan Jiangyue Mansion /Mg 2022 105,434 318,753 298,292 510
Residential/Commercial
RiEEE Wuhan Skyline ft/ Mg 2022 15,357 52,886 12441 70
Residential/Commercial
WS o BRI Wuhan Yulong CIFI Central Palace e/ Tz 2023 28378 93,202 - 6.0
Residential/Commercial
RIS B Wuhan Yulong Peninsula B fEE/ Mt/ % 202-20 78477 353974 29,531 55.0
Residential (Office/
Commercial
R o FE Wuhan Park Garden E%/ [E2 2023 44,063 128,669 - 50.0
Residential/Commercial
SEAT BREE 5 Uriimg; CIFI Plaza ftE/ Mg 2023-2026 21,669 411,678 30,869 100.0
Residential/Commercial
SEATREI 1 il Uriimgi Xuefu Shangpin ftE/ Mg 2022-2024 254,641 507,744 133,794 510
Residential/Commercial
SBARTERTH i Urimgi Xuefu Shangpin fEmE 2022-2024 63,210 126038 - 510
[nvestment properties
BEABRANT Uriimgi Yanki Mansion e/ TiE 2022 40,178 66,961 40828 100.0
Residential/Commercial
B BT Guiyang Shangguan Jiangshan E%/ [iE 2022 32,522 70,470 7,715 100.0
Residential/Commercial
R REFKE Guiyang U Dang Future The One ftE/ Mg 20222025 281,078 531,424 86,985 100.0
Residential/Commercial
RhE#aHE Guiyang Duhui Cloud g/l 2023-2024 155,480 185,735 20962 1000
Residential/Commercial
RBEZ Guiyang Skyline ftE/Tig 2022 11,238 34,102 34,102 100.0

Residential/Commercial
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HIE E %ﬂéﬂ\(ﬁﬁ) By project (Continued)
CELE FT
DR 0 A e 5 i
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Total GFA under A
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FEHLERHNE  BEbRTAn held for future Interest
Primary intended use ~ Estimated Year AR development BB atnbutble
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(Fik) (k) CEik)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
gzl Xi'an Landscape ftt/Tig 2022 121,718 206,075 819 80.0
Residential/Commercial
TR EERERRISTH  X7an Qia District Qinhan /¥ 20232024 105,142 210300 - 300
Zhouling 157 actes Residential/Commercial
B RN Xi'an Guochen Mansion HE/HE 20222023 91,949 300,033 190373 100.0
Residential/Commercial
AR Zhengzhou Konggang Times /¥ 2022205 203,894 535,442 - 100.0
Residential/Commercial
TN ATES Zhengzhou Lakeside Mansion /¥ 2022 60,740 142884 119,256 510
Residential/Commercial
BOAT Kunming Gongyuan Mansion /¥ 2023-2024 46,707 113,249 17,991 50,0
Residential/Commercial
BB 5 Kunming CIFI Plaza /¥ 2022-2024 151,573 526,145 22,908 67
Residential/Commercial
BT R Yinchuan Jiangnan Mansion /¥ 2022 88,095 140259 133015 750
Residential/Commercial
B AR Luoyang Central Park /¥ 2022 73,168 24780 210,580 50.0
Residential/Commercial
SN Luoyang Skyline Mansion /¥ 20222025 99,931 33975 147301 100.0
Residential/Commercial
e AT Luoyang Jianye CIFI Mansion ft/Tig 2024 69,572 197,016 13,045 2.0
Residential/Commercial
FERRIEE — 8 Changde Chengdong New District Project £/ T 20222023 16413 50,931 302 100.0
(Phase 2) Residential/Commercial
B~ Changde Chengdong New District Project £ &3 2022-2023 32329 100317 - 100.0
(Phase 2) Investment properties
FERIEE =1 Changde Chengdong New District Project {1/ T 2023 11,306 30,072 - 100.0
(Phase 3) Residential/Commercial
B Changde International New City /¥ 2022-2024 184,625 53006 158,444 100.0
Residential/Commercial
BmERA Liuyang Guochen Oriental /¥ 20232026 111,103 276,209 - 340

Residential/Commercial
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(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
Ll Jianyang Duhui Forest /¥ 2022 31,205 71516 46,410 50.0
Residential/Commercial
[LlE A Jianyang Yunyue Noble Mansion HE/HE 2022 28292 112,512 9,485 0.0
Residential/Commercial
mHERRE Jianyang Jinguan Tianchen /¥ 2022 9,043 22,59 13,188 330
Residential/Commercial
AR Xuchang Landscape Garden HE/HE 2022 26571 71752 67,544 50.0
Residential/Commercial
T Xiangtan Yue Mansion /¥ 20222023 48322 141,014 18,463 50,0
Residential/Commercial
HRILIE Zhuzhou Xiangjianghui /¥ 2023-2025 39859 118414 4,898 510
Residential/Commercial
JBIERT S Meishan Yunyue Tianjing e/ % 2022 44313 110451 22,195 100.0
Residential/Commercial
# South China
BN RSN E R Guangzhou CIFI Greenland Boyun Skyline £ /T 2023-2024 65,433 159,849 1,735 510
Residential/Commercial
RMSFTRONE Guangzhou Boyue Mingzhu One He/ W% 2023-2024 34,731 129,120 3,089 162
Residential/Commercial
RIS Guangzhou Yaoyue Bay /¥ 20222025 53,610 314442 50,967 25.0
Residential/Commercial
ESES ) Nanning Wuxiang Zhenyue /¥ 20222025 98,182 389797 130,683 100.0
Residential/Commercial
AL Nanning CIFI Mansion HE/HE 2022 25,405 74558 31429 49.0
Residential/Commercial
BB AL Nanning Shengshi Chunjiang /¥ 2023-2024 52,774 156,664 21,599 330
Residential/Commercial
HERANE Nanning Fuyi Heting /¥ 2023-2025 105,197 292,825 30,692 300
Residential/Commercial
eIl Dongguan Jiangshan Mansion ft/Tig 2023 26,148 72,408 831 500

Residential/Commercial
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HIE E %ﬂéﬂ\(ﬁﬁ) By project (Continued)
W R R AR
I A A S
(e
Total GFA under AR
development and it
HALERMRE  HEBRTAR held for future Interest
Primary intended use ~ Estimated Year AR development BB atnbutble
%H Project of the Project of Completion ~ Site Area (excluding carparks) ~ Pre-sold  tothe Group
(Fik) (Fik)  (EiK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
FERR Dongguan Times Mansion /¥ 2023-2025 76575 329,126 - 300
Residential/Commercial
i Lo e Foshan CIFI Agile Joy & Peace /¥ 2022 28,758 69,089 56,625 33.0
Residential/Commercial
Tk tetiee Foshan CIF] Boshi Bay HE/HE 2023 47,15 117,715 3,103 50.0
Residential/Commercial
el gL Foshan Changle Mansion HE/HE 2022 25,070 78399 10,443 33.0
Residential/Commercial
GAlIEESiiN Foshan Jade Xijiang /¥ 2022 36,666 106,430 42334 340
Residential/Commercial
Gl N Foshan Binjiang Mansion /¥ 2022 35,124 127360 116463 333
Residential/Commercial
B LS b Xiamen Park Mansion Wuyuan Bay g/l 2022 20,209 60,801 59,596 2.5
Residential/Commercial
BN Huizhou Jianshan Mansion E%/ [E 2023 51,069 157,345 - 51.0
Residential/Commercial
BMITAER (—H) Huizhou Jianglai Garden (Phase 1) g/l 2023 34157 84,883 - 400
Residential/Commercial
BMITAER (Z8) Huizhou Jianglai Garden (Phase 2) g/l 2023 27303 76,811 - 400
Residential/Commercial
EMRITAT Huizhou Dongjiang Gongyuan Mansion ftt/Tig 2022 17,269 52,681 19,656 510
Residential/Commercial
M MiENE Huizhou Platinum Season HE/HE 20222023 119,176 365,327 188,473 204
Residential/Commercial
BN EnT Huizhou Jingan Mansion ftt/Tig 2023 23,786 81,481 - 80.0
Residential/Commercial
NEPRES Jiangmen Nature's Gift Garden ftt/Tig 2022 51,233 15435 116927 49.0
Residential/Commercial
IFEHER Jiangmen No.1 Courtyard e/ 2022 9,207 25,000 1,662 40,0
Residential/Commercial
R Putian Times City HE/HE 2022 41,676 108,808 59,118 1000

Residential/Commercial
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iﬂkfﬁﬁ (#45) LAND BANK (Continued)
=M AREE P F - —4H 1+ " H Table 4: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December 2021
E"I_‘_' H ﬂ’ﬂiﬂ%ﬁ%ﬂﬂ(@) (Continued)
HIE E %ﬂﬁ\(ﬁﬁ) By project (Continued)
W R R AR
Vi Y A S
(e
Total GFA under AR
development and iR
HHTERMNE  BRTER held for future Interest
Primary intended use ~ Estimated Year AR development BB atobuwble
%H Project of the Project of Completion ~ Site Area (excluding carparks)  Pre-sold  tothe Group
(Fik) (Fik)  (EiK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
Gl Zhongshan Times Yue e/ Ti% 2022 34,557 81,589 31,366 3.0
Residential/Commercial
MILIL RS Zhangzhou Jiangshan Tianjing e/ li% 2022 19,716 42,042 7211 70.0
Residential/Commercial
FREAINEEE 10197 Hong Kong Foreress Hill, 101 & g 2005 1,207 K HRE - 60.0
1155HE 111 King’s Road Project Residential (12917 11,900F-J &
FIR) (128,091
1,200 sq.m. SN
(12917 sq.ft.) Net saleable
area:
11,900 sq.m.
(128,091 sg.fc)
) Overseas
WL AT RE T8 London Victoria Office Project WA/ T 2022 350 2,700 - 100.0
Office/Commercial
(B i J HAl Car Patks & Other 8218608 1,182,150
BiEE T IPEIER SRR B9 TOTAL GFA of Properties under 45,799,163 12,298926
LBRET development and held for future
development
MEHERT B3 REFE  GRAND TOTAL (Completed, under 52,462,733

A development and for future development)
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LAND BANK (Continued)

Land acquisition
In 2021, the Group acquired interests in a total of 66 new projects. During the
year, the Group continued utilizing joint ventures strategies to jointly develop

the newly acquired projects.

Total planned GFA of the Group’s land acquisition in 2021 amounted to
approximately 11.7 million sq.m., out of which 6.0 million sq.m. were
attributable to the Group’s equity interests. Total contracted consideration of
the Group’s land acquisition amounted to approximately RMB87.8 billion, out
of which RMB39.4 billion were payable by the Group according to its equity
interests in relevant projects. Based on the Group’s attributable GFA acquired
and the attributable acquisition considerations, the Group’s average land

acquisition cost in 2021 was approximately RMB7,500 per sq.m.

From January to March 2022, the Group further acquired interests in 3 new
projects with an aggregate land premium attributable to the Group of RMB3.4
billion.

Table 5: The Group’s land acquisition

WA
1 5 1 it
REBEEWH  (RAEAL)
TERY A%H (RAFHEN)  Auributable %M ]
He it A ¥ 4 Planned GFA Planned GFA WA H JE A 3 08 T A
Bl %H Intended The Group's A5 3 i 8§ (excluding (excluding Total Attributable Average
City Project Primary Use equity interest Site Area carparks) carpaks)  Consideration ~ consideration land cost
N 74
(Fi %) (F75 %) (7 K) (AKH) (AKH) k)
(%) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB) (RMB)  (RMBJsq.m.)
1 AR (AL IRPSH-2020-30 5 F ) i 100.00 41,676 108,808 108808 304000000 304,000,000 2794
Putian Putian Times City (Hanjiang District, PS Auction, Residential
No. 2020-30 Project)
1A% AR (EERAR 00858 0EE)  FE/HE 7000 257,736 502,600 BL820 1007000000 704900000 2,004
Lu'an Lu'an CIFI Centre (Jin'an District, Liukaichu, Residential/Commercial
No. 2020-8, 387 actes Project)
3ORTE WERERT (8 BRI fiz/M% 80.00 1833 53,983 43186 35670000 284,536,000 6,589
Hatbin Harbin Platinum Mansion(Daoli District, Residential/Commercial
Chengxiang Road Project)
4 K RESARAL (HEASHER) fiE 60.00 14,980 37,618 257 1270000000 762000000 33,760
Tianjin Tianjin Park Mansion (Nankai District, Residential
Liuma Road Project)
5 R AL (IR &S ToD AR fz/H% 5000 188,112 524,749 262375 2811230000 1405615000 5357
Chengdu Chengdu CIFT Centre(Wenjiang District, Wansheng Residential/Commercial

TOD Project)
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Land acquisition (Continued)

Table 5: The Group’s land acquisition (Continued)

W A W
1 5 it
WURAWR (RAFIN
HERY A%H (BAFHER)  Auribuable iy T4
% i A 28 Planned GFA  Planned GFA WA HE A 3 0 ER %S
Wi HH Intended The Group’s EAR (excluding (excluding Toul  Attributable Average
City Project Primary Use equity interest Site Area carparks) carparks)  Consideration ~ consideration land cost
(AR S/
(F7%) (%) (7 %) (AR (ARH) FIik)
(%) (sq:m.) (sqm.) (sqm.) (RMB) (RMB)  (RMBsq.m.)
6 M BRTILREN (0 ERRLIR %3 300 742 64250 2205 1540000000 508,200,000 5,969
1708028
Nanjing Nanjing Qianjiang Lingyun Mansion (Pukou District, ~ Residential
East of Xinpu Road, 17-08-02 Project)
T OHE Hr ERERRA (TEEL i3 3400 46,365 114,148 388100 1530000000 520200000 13,404
20216038 H)
Nanjing Nanjing Shangchen Skyline Mansion (Jiangning District, ~ Residenial
Zhengfang New City, 2021G03 Project)
§ ki AT g (REENEEHEER) fiz 10000 29929 64,612 64612 219790000 219,790,000 3402
Dalian Dalian Jiangshan Ruyuan (Development Zone, Residential
Xiaoyaowan Area Project)
9 R RURR (2021005958 {2 /% 7000 131,393 259214 BL450 LOSLISTIS 735,810,000 4055
Changsha Changsha Central Palace (Yuelu District, Residential/Commercial
2021-007 Project)
0 FH S AR (R T AR R fz/H% 50.00 84775 167825 83912 1522300000 761,150,000 9071
Ningbo Ningbo Shangdong Chenfu Residential/ Commercial
(Cicheng District, Cixi City Project)
1M BB OMA RO A T B ftE 36,00 45,635 46,794 16612 547500000 194,362,500 11,700
ER)
Suzhou Suzhou Park Lake Mansion (Xiangcheng District, Residential
Taiping Street, Shengze Danghu Road Project)
1 EE TR o SR P (R R AL %3 50.00 102,675 152429 7625 1900000000 950,000,000 12,465
HEER)
Chongging ~ Chongging CIFI Platinum Centre (Yubei District, Residential
Two Road Group E Zone Project)
5 #E HEMRRR (S RTE - pER) i/ 1% 100.00 155,899 322,792 320792 1980,160000  1,980,160,000 6,134
Shenyang Shenyang Platinum Times (Huanggu District, Residential/Commercial
Xiyao Phase II, Phase 1B Plot Project)
14 EH TR B8 (38 B 2000-0 L 4SEARE L) fz/M% 5000 70081 162260 8LI30 946650000 473,325,000 5834
Dezhou Dezhou Boguan Tianlu (Development Zone, Residential/Commercial
No. 2020-014 Linzhuang Plot Project)
15 R PR (68033 H) fiz 50.00 69999 146,439 A9 50360000 275,180,000 3758
Zibo Zibo Boguan Xiyuan (Huantai County, Residential

Plot 033 Project)

081
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iﬂkf#ﬁ (#%) LAND BANK (Continued)
e B ) Land acquisition (Continued)
R ARG L O 4) Table 5: The Group’s land acquisition (Continued)
AR
1 %1 Bt
RMRER (RAFER)
LERY AEH (BABHR)  Auribuable M T4
iES i A 1 Plnned GFA  Plamned GFA MMM MAMRE  LHRA
Wi HH Intended The Group’s A5 40 i 8% (excluding (excluding Toul  Attributable Average
City Project Primary Use equity interest Site Area carparks) carpaks)  Consideration  consideration land cost
(ARH/
(7 k) (FJ k) (£ %) (AR (AR i k)
(%) (sq:m.) (sqm.) (sq:m.) (RMB) (RMB)  (RMBlsq.m.)
16 B EMAAIAER GER ERME1 0 ) b2/ 7040 30490 74800 2300 96TLA9 669,460,000 12786
Wenzhou Wenzhou Future CIFI City (Longwan District, Residential/ Commercial
Puzhou E10a Project)
17 KE KESRR il E D18 /BT 4300 26,000 149483 T LIS 557157818 7765
Dalian Dalian Platinum Times (Zhongshan District, Commercial/Office
Donggang D18 Project)
18 M WA (M2 BREC0ER) fte/Hi% 50.00 117,959 33,645 16683 2225500000 L112750,000 6670
Wenzhou Wenzhou Future Coast (Longwan District, Jinhai Park,  Residential/Commercial
C-10 Plot Project)
19 #H BB ERERARERA) fe/Hi% 4040 93,717 199,032 613 1250000000 500,000,000 6,280
Changzhou ~ Changzhou Duhui Jianglai Mansion (Economic Residential/ Commercial
Development Zone, Jinyi Tianzhang Project)
0 kE TR » BEIA RN EER) i 50,00 92919 17463 §7318 2194000000 1,097,000,000 12,563
Tianjin Tianjin CIFI Duhui Jianglai Residential
(Dongli District, Xiaowangzhuang Project)
BN ENRLR BN MEERRR TYHE fbg/i% 800 23,786 81,481 65,18 4571250 364570000 559
EREE)
Huizhou Huizhou Jingan Mansion (Huicheng District, Zhongkai  Residential/ Commercial
Huihuan Xingneng Industrial Commercial and
Residential Old Area Renovation Project)
0 Y B (8 RREREH) g/ ik 3750 50,132 163,84 6LAR 1200210000 450078750 730
Jinan Jinan CIFI Yinshengtai Centre (Lixia District, Residential/Commercial
Grain Bureau Project)
B EE ERE  ERZR(DFRREET Wt/ Bk 66.00 83,995 219,120 L4619 607200000 400,752,000 2771
SR ATODIE )
Chongging Chongqing CIFI-Chongging Landmark Commecial/Office
(Shapingba District, Chongging West Railway Station,
TOD project in front square)
U R WA (R AT B g/l 100.00 158,180 374476 74476 2191500000 2,191,500,000 5852
NO.2021HT007H)
Harbin Harbin Park Mansion (Nangang District, Residential/ Commercial
Oriental College, No.2021HT007 Project)
5 B BRI o 1L (RAEEOAFES fbg/i% 2000 9,5 56,767 113 68L800000 136360000 12010
FER)
Suzhou Suzhou Zhongjian CIFI-Jiangshang Residential/ Commercial

(Wuzhong District, Xukou Town, Xujin Road West
Project)
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Land acquisition (Continued)

Table 5: The Group’s land acquisition (Continued)

B
1 %1 Bt
RMRER (RAFER)
HERH AEH (BABHR)  Auribuable &M i
iES i A 1 Plnned GFA  Planned GFA  MUME  MHEE  LHRA
Wi HH Intended The Group’s A5 40 i 8% (excluding (excluding Toul  Attributable Average
City Project Primary Use equity interest Site Area carparks) carpaks)  Consideration  consideration land cost
(ARH/
(7 k) (FJ k) (£ %) (AR (AR i k)
(%) (sq:m.) (sqm.) (sq:m.) (RMB) (RMB)  (RMBlsq.m.)
% B BRI E 02658 fiz 5100 56,193 115,40 B4 1450000000 739,500,000 12,561
(% E2021657H5EH)
Nanjing Nanjing Jiangbei Getang 2021G57 Project Residential
(Luhe District, 2021G57 Getang Project)
7% AL B 1578 TR i/ 1% 3000 105,142 210300 63090 729700000 218910000 3470
R 570ER )
Xian Xi'an Qita District Qinhan Zhouling 157 acres Residential/ Commercial
(Xixian New District, Qinhan New Town
Zhouling, 157 actes Project)
L TREHEE (F R0 ER) fb 250 58,352 127,734 B0 1738000000 391050000 13,606
Beijing Beijing Guoxiang Yunzhu (Miyun County, Residential
Tanying 6005 Project)
» gt AL « IR (B EE TR fiz 10000 59,946 99,886 0886 49000 749,540,000 7504
$52021065E908VE H
Hefei Hefei CIFI Wangjianglai Mansion (Shushan District, Residential
Canal New City 88, No. 202106, 90 actes project)
0 AR ) (TR Mssdstfms.e) {EE /i 10000 57349 194599 194599 711160000 717,160,000 3,085
JH)
Luoyang Luoyang Skyline Mansion (Phase 2) (Xigong District,  Residential/Commercial
No. 38 & 43 (D3, D6) of Shijiatun No. 2 project)
3R RMETAER KR fiz 52,00 4817 414,648 ST 810000 127821200 593
(BRRBRAEER)
Xuzhou Xuzhou Jiawang Pengcheng Avenue Project Residential
(Jiawang District, Pengcheng Avenue project)
32 fhil fhil s e RS SHmEER) iz 50.00 47152 17,715 58858 1438870000 719435000 1225
Foshan Foshan CIFI Boshi Bay (Chancheng District, both sides of  Residential
Wisdom Road project)
B W# AR RAL o TR i 5000 63,584 121,017 60308 629480000 314740000 5,02
(i Bl HosEER)
Chengdu Chengdu Tianfu Future Centre-Jiangshanyuan Residential
(Xinjin District, Huayuan 95 aces project)
3 TR (RN ERER) /g 15.00 34,360 74218 11133 304,640,000 45,696,000 4105
Jining Jining Chenyue Mansion (High-tech Zone, Residential/ Commercial

Guangan Road project)

0853
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iﬂkf#ﬁ (#%) LAND BANK (Continued)
e B ) Land acquisition (Continued)
R ARG L O 4) Table 5: The Group’s land acquisition (Continued)
B
1 %1 Bt
RMRER (RAFER)
LERY AEH (BABHR)  Auribuable M T4
iES i A 1 Plnned GFA  Plamned GFA MMM MAMRE  LHRA
Wi HH Intended The Group’s A5 40 i 8% (excluding (excluding Toul  Attributable Average
City Project Primary Use equity interest Site Area carparks) carpaks)  Consideration  consideration land cost
(ARH/
(7 k) (FJ k) (£ %) (AR (AR i k)
(%) (sq:m.) (sqm.) (sq:m.) (RMB) (RMB)  (RMBlsq.m.)
DI TRSCRBERIT (R ¥ B2019-09% 4 2050 51,326 BBL572 26972 8093000 168290650 6,39
TR AEH)
Liaocheng Liaocheng Dongguanrui Mansion Residential
(Dongchangfu District, 2019-09 Dongguan International
East project)
36 4 EMIATER () (HREAE D fe/Hi% 4000 34,157 84883 B9 G40500000 256200000 7,546
TCO402-105 )
Huizhou Huizhou Jianglai Garden (Phase 1) Residential/Commercial
(Huicheng District, Xiaojinkou, TCO4-02-10 project)
R RUBRN GHEE22100508H0) b/ 300 117,345 358351 I8 LI56TT0000 597,301,800 490
Changsha Changsha Guochen Mansion (Yuelu District 2021, Residential/Commercial
Changsha City, No. 029 project)
38 Hil SRR (SR  WERT EVEES 27.00 3319 67018 18095 614000000 165,780,000 9,162
ABALER)
Yancheng Yancheng Chenyang Mansion Residential/Commercial
(Tinghu District, Yulong Road South, Yingbin Road
West, Chunhua Road North project)
39 B AR (E N RR 913358 E) ftg 24,00 142454 23,170 3561 815630000 198,151,200 3,700
Xuancheng ~ Xuancheng Wanling Palace (Xuanzhou District, Residential
Guotou No. 1913 project)
o EN EMEAES R REIDARE) b/ 1100 162,259 2683 6 482080000 530292400 16737
Suzhou Suzhou Chunhe Wanxiang (Xiangcheng District, Residential/ Commercial
Hi-Speed Railway New City project)
4 BRI o BRI fit 49,00 65,773 126416 GLOM L0000 496,737,500 8019
(tiTE2HER)
Wuhu Wuhu Zhongliang CIFI-Park Mansion Residential
(Yijiang District, No. 2111 project)
Q2 xR 2021618 H b/ 2000 71,626 2399 46786 4380000000 876000000 18,724
(N R E026108H)
Nanjing Nanjing Jiangbei New Area 2021G12 Project Residential/Commercial
(Pukou District, Jiangbei New Area 2021G12 project)
# AR REMEEE (REEREH-ER) b2/ 4515 66911 158917 TS 63000000 272254500 3794
Rizhao Rizhao Boguan Xinghai (Donggang District, Residential/ Commercial

Xinghai City Phase 1 project)
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Land acquisition (Continued)

Table 5: The Group’s land acquisition (Continued)

i3
1 %
MUREER R L)
LERY A%EH (FABHES)  Aurbutable £l Y
ik i 4 1 46 Phoned GFA  Planned GFA  MWBUME  BARE A%
Wl Y H Intended The Group's RN (excluding (excluding Total Attributable Average
City Project Primary Use equity interest Site Area carparks) carpatks)  Consideration  consideration land cost
(AR S/
(F7i%) (%) (F7%) (AR (ARH) Fiik)
(%) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB/sq.m.)
4N FARRAAERIE (A ZREEE % 5100 65,33 159,849 8153 284120000 1241401200 15,8
(53b)EH)
Guangzhou  Guangzhou CIFI Greenland Boyun Skyline Residential
(Baiyun District, Zhongluotan (gteen space) Project)
&5 BN BN R AR fz/H% 5100 51,069 157,345 80246 SHS000 277888800 3463
Huizhou Huizhou Jianshan Mansion (Boluo County, Residential/Commercial
Yuanzhou Town, Xinwangda project)
6t PR EE (7818 (020 BMEE— T IE /% 5100 39,85 118414 60391 23L710000 118,172,100 1957
#IFER)
Zhuzhou Zhuzhou Xiangjianghui (Shifeng District, Residential/ Commercial
(2021) Zhuzhou Huiyi Xiangjianghui
Cooperation Project)
i RE KRR« B% KA EsERELRR) % 5000 44063 128,669 64335 1777300000 888,650,000 13813
Wuhan Wuhan Park Garden (Dongxihu District, Residential
045 Garden Expo North Project)
48 M EMIATER (3 (HHEAS D ft /% 40.00 27,303 76811 075 607000000 242,800,000 7,903
TCO-03-04E )
Huizhou Huizhou Jianglai Garden (Phase 2) Residential/Commercial
(Huicheng District, Xiaojinkou, TC04-03-04 Project)
&9 i PRI (RIBEMB B L » /% 50.00 26,148 72408 36006 935230000 467,615,000 12916
EEBUIER)
Dongguan Dongguan Jiangshan Mansion (Shijie Town, Residential/Commercial
north of Mingzhu Road and west of
Jinxing Road Project)
50 &b IR (BT (2001) B IE—TER fiz/M% 3400 111,103 276,09 991 150000000 51,000,000 543
afPER)
Changsha Liuyang Guochen Oriental (Liuyang City, (2021) Liuyang ~ Residential/Commercial
Huiyi Homeland Cooperation Project)
51 [t FES RS T ES: S 10000 350 2700 2700 14070000 140,170,000 51915
(HAFIERATRER)
London London Victoria Office Project (Victoria District, Dacre  Office
House Office Project)
51 MBI PR ERERIRIE (2R 10000 174459 284,746 BE746 1209830000 1,219.830,000 484
DAF2021013%262VE H)
NanChang  Nanchang CIFI High-tech Jianglai Mansion 262actes ~ Residential, ground-level

(High-tech District, Yaohu East Plate
DAFJ2021013,262 actes Project)

shops

085
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iﬂkf#ﬁ (#%) LAND BANK (Continued)
e B ) Land acquisition (Continued)
R ARG L O 4) Table 5: The Group’s land acquisition (Continued)
B
1 %1 Bt
RMRER (RAFER)
LERY AEH (BABHR)  Auribuable M T4
iES i A 1 Plnned GFA  Plamned GFA MMM MAMRE  LHRA
Wi HH Intended The Group’s A5 40 i 8% (excluding (excluding Toul  Attributable Average
City Project Primary Use equity interest Site Area carparks) carpaks)  Consideration  consideration land cost
(ARH/
(7 k) (FJ k) (£ %) (AR (AR i k)
(%) (sq:m.) (sqm.) (sq:m.) (RMB) (RMB)  (RMBlsq.m.)
5 HE HAI IR B EREEIREE (/R 10000 143,564 2 M2 9B 913070000 4086
DAFJ202101430215HVR )
NanChang ~ Nanchang CIF High-tech Jianglai Mansion 215 Residential, ground-level
acres (High-tech District, Yaohu East Plate shops
DAFJ2021014,215 acres Project)
4 Rl R AT (5 ER21019%EH ) ftg 49.00 84,749 182,960 89651 2078800000 1,018,612,000 11362
Nan Tong NanTong Dongsheng CIFI Centre Residential
(Gang Zha District, R21019 Project)
5 B FERIHEAR A MK REEF AR s £ 10000 11,306 300m 002 66500000 66500000 221
5 - AR = MR R)
Changde Changde Chengdong New District Project (Phase 3) Residential
(Wuling District, Chang Guo Chu (2021) No.18,
Chengdong New District, the third batch of projects)
56 FEiREE (KEE—MBUER) i 550 66902 17146 B8 854300000 217,846,500 4983
Jinan Jinan Waterfront Mansion (Tiangiao District, Residential
Biaoshan Phase I BI Project)
51 i FHmsED HEREETAR) [/ 490 19520 4180 BT LAG8000000 719320000 3089
Tianjin Tianjin Park Rongyu (Nankai District, Lingyin Residential, ground-
Nanli Project) level shops
58 M BADESZ 0 R B 0n04 = 9.0 199,300 554,100 509 34000000 1525.860,000 5,620
E07-06  E-11-01H)
Wenzhou Wenzhou Guanghui City (Dongtou County Peninsula~ Residential, ground-
Phase 1, E-07-04, E-07-06, E-11-01 project) level shops
59 B TEMSFMIPFONE (1) B BBy il i/ T 1619 1l 129120 D07 LTA000 289,739,648 138%
WERE)
Guangzhou  Guangzhou Boyue Mingzhu One Residential, ground-
(Nansha District, Hengli Island, Zhongzhouyong South ~level shops
project)
0 BE MR HEN0.20216116 T REAE 10000 11,446 22,900 290 15000000 115,000,000 5022
(EBENO2021GHGH AR
Nanjing Nanjing Jianye District No.2021G116 Southwest Plot ~ Long-term rental
(Jianye District, No.2021 G116 Souh Hexi Project) apartments
6k TAHE LR Z0EH) i 3400 57,008 107401 36516 3927000000 1,335,180,000 36,564

Beijing Beijing Qingyun Mansion Residential
(Chaoyang District, Jinzhan 02 Project)
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Land acquisition (Continued)

Table 5: The Group’s land acquisition (Continued)

B
1 %1 Bt
RMRER (RAFER)
HERH AEH (BABHR)  Atribuable &M TH
g i Plnned GFA  Planned GFA  MMUAE  WHEE  LHRA
Wi HH Intended The Group’s A5 40 i 8% (excluding (excluding Toul  Attributable Average
City Project Primary Use equity interest Site Area carparks) carparks)  Consideration  consideration land cost
N7
(7 %) (k) (F5i %) (AR (AR i k)
() (sqm.) (sqm) (sqm.) (RMB) (RMB)  (RMBsq.m.)
60 % AR (RTEGNTLR - AR fE£/ 1 3000 76575 329,126 98738 61LS00000  1953450,000 19,784
2021WRLEH)
Dongguan Dongguan Times Mansion (Huangjiang Town, Residential, ground-
Huangjiang North Shore and Nanshan Community level shops
2021WRO11 Project)
6 W B EE N ) fE /TR £5.00 189240 431,970 194386 1135400000 510930,000 268
Linyi Linyi Xinghui City (Luozhuang District, Residential, ground-
Xiaobaizhuang North project) level shops
64 K RHEERE o ISR Gl B ot b/l 63.00 8378 93,202 60381 803246156 52110000 8618
KI2H)
Wuhan Wuhan Yulong CIFI Central Palace (Hongshan District, ~ Residential, ground-
Fenghuo Village K12 project) level shops
65 K BN (A RERE =V 25.00 09,572 197,016 49254 91400000 247,850,000 5032
BRER)
Luoyang Luoyang Jianye CIFT Mansion (High-tech Industrial Residential, ground-
Development Zone, Sunqitun Reconstruction project level shops
of Sunshi Road)
66 EREEKEH SRR (FERKR iz 10.00 103,207 200,200 2000 2070000000 207,000,000 10,340
lih00-0104-6016H)
Beijing Beijing Miyun Shuiyuan Road Project Residential
(Miyun District, Shuiyuan Road South
MY00-0104-6016 project)
200U 112 12M 2001 11,701,042 6,041,198 87.815,332,681  39.433,712,566 7,505
BB E -0 (CRESE-EEN) B
Land Acquisition Subsequent to 31 December 2021 (From January to March 2022)
61 dF IRkt tle T4 B AR i 10000 0739 75,399 75359 1407000000 1407000000 18671
Beijing Pinggezhuang old village redevelopment project in the ~ Residential
5th Avenue of Shunyi New Town
68 #E ZRMRTERH i 10000 74403 148805 148805 1,260,000,000 1,260,000,000 8467
Yiwu Yiwu City Yiting Town Development Project Residential
6 L IMLERIIERA i 30,00 88,443 101,710 30515 2561000000 768,300,000 25,179
Shanghai Songjiang District Sheshan Town Development Project ~ Residential
00215 M0 325,874 254,677 9,228,000,000 3,435,300,000 16,043
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash position

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and bank balances of approximately
RMB46,709.7 million (31 December 2020: approximately RMB51,154.6
million), which included restricted bank deposits of approximately RMB247.2
million (2020: RMB101.9 million).

Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had outstanding total borrowings amounted
to approximately RMB114,112.0 million (31 December 2020: RMB104,715.1
million), comprising bank and other borrowings of approximately RMB72,888.6
million (31 December 2020: RMB61,561.2 million), onshore corporate
bonds with carrying amounts of RMB11,201.1 million (31 December 2020:
RMB12,537.1 million) and offshore senior notes with carrying amounts of
RMB30,022.3 million (31 December 2020: RMB30,616.9 million).
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Indebtedness (Continued)

Table 6: Breakdown of indebtedness

By type of borrowings and maturity

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES (Comined)

MR AR | R ER A
2021 2020
ARWT L AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE W AT B JAb AT 5k Onshore bank and other borrowings
—4E R Within one year 7,302,021 2,960,434
—EPL o HA K A Over one years and within two years 21,688,893 17,604,783
WAELL B s (HR B =4F Over two years and within three years 17,957,028 19,989,931
ZAERLE s (HREE DY AR Over three years and within four years 599,059 1,314,955
VO4ERL & > (BSR4 Over four years and within five years 2,040,474 120,000
HAEDI & Over five years 4,288,499 4,381,067
ik Subtotal 53,875,974 46,371,170
Bl A Al % Onshore corporate bonds
—ER Within one year 832,898 7,761,443
—EPL L [ER A A Over one years and within two years 4,805,072 839,544
WAL E - HAHE=F Over two years and within three years 4,539,280 2,913,047
PUAERL F o (HAS BB 2 T 4F Over four years and within five years 1,023,812 1,023,062
it Subtotal 11,201,062 12,537,096
BiAb ST B HoAb AR % Offshore bank and other borrowings
—4E R Within one year 4,628,905 4,340,281
—AERLE s (R R AR Over one years and within two years 8,813,805 1,685,680
WAELLE s (B ARKEIE =4F Over two years and within three years 3,238,723 9,149,063
ZAEDL B s {HASHEE I DU AR Over three years and within four years 1,443,364 —
POAERL L > (HS R A8 4T Over four years and within five years 887,848 14,970
At Subtotal 19,012,645 15,189,994
-y e Offshore senior notes
—4ER Within one year 4,971,339 3,637,114
—FEPL o {HAR R A Over one years and within two years 3,170,096 5,466,928
WAL, F o (HARBE =4 Over two years and within three years 6,834,079 5,201,587
ZAERL L R Y 4R Over three years and within four years 6,902,543 6,941,954
PUAELL b > {HOR A LA Over four years and within five years 4,509,958 7,095,325
FAEDL E Over five years 3,634,311 2,273,945
ik Subtotal 30,022,326 30,616,853
it TOTAL 114,112,007 104,715,113
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES (Comined)

&7 (47) Indebtedness (Continued)
TN BB () Table 6: Breakdown of indebtedness (Continued)
HEHE B E 5 By currency denomination
MR AR | R ER A
2021 2020
ARWT L AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
DL 64 15 20 A Analysis of borrowings by currency
— AN R HE — Denominated in RMB 67,953,187 61,752,434
—PIEICEHME — Denominated in USD 35,615,866 34,889,275
— AW eEHE — Denominated in HKD 10,475,349 8,058,434
— DA H A & s — Denominated in other currencies 67,605 14,970
114,112,007 104,715,113
2 [ R B A R ) 4 By fixed or variable interest rates
R | pozoms
2021 2020
AR¥TC NG T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEF R Fixed interest rates 52,582,310 58,221,271
T W R Variable interest rates 61,529,697 46,493,842
114,112,007 104,715,113
A Secured versus unsecured
e SIS
2021 2020
ARWT ARMT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
A LA Secured 55,538,424 46,775,916
MEHEAT Unsecured 58,573,583 57,939,197
114,112,007 104,715,113
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES (Comined)

Cost of borrowings

The Group’s total finance costs expensed and capitalised in 2021 was
approximately RMBG6,380.1 million, representing a decrease of 2.4% from
RMBG6,535.7 million in 2020. The decrease was due to the decrease of the

Group’s weighted average cost of indebtedness.

The Group’s weighted average cost of all indebtedness (including bank and other
borrowings, onshore corporate bonds and offshore senior notes) as at 31 December
2021 was 5.0%, compared to 5.4% as at 31 December 2020.

Foreign currency risk

The Group conducts its business primarily in Renminbi. The Group’s certain
bank deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars and
other currencies, and the majority of the Group’s offshore bank loans and senior
notes are denominated in United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. Certain
of the Group’s property projects are located in Hong Kong and are denominated

in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group has adopted a hedging policy to actively manage its currency risk
exposure concerning non-RMB denominated indebtedness. The Group may,
depending on the circumstances and trend of currency rates, consider and enter

into hedging arrangements to mitigate the impact of RMB depreciation.

It is the Group’s policy to utilize the most appropriate and cost effective hedging
instruments to hedge its currency risk exposure of non-RMB denominated
indebtedness. The Group’s hedging arrangements shall, to the extent possible,
match the value and the maturity of the relevant non-RMB denominated

indebtedness being hedged.

Based on the above policy, the Group has entered into US dollar versus offshore
RMB capped forward during the year to hedge certain of its foreign currency

exposure in non-RMB denominated indebtedness.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES (Comined)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)
Certain currency capped forward contracts entered into have “capped gain”

feature; on the expiry date:

- if the then prevailing US dollar versus offshore RMB exchange rate (“Expiry
Rate”) is less than or equal to the pre-specific capped gain rate (“Capped
Gain Rate”), the Group shall buy the contract amount of US dollar against

offshore RMB at the pre-specified contract rate (“Strike Rate”); or

- if the Expiry Rate is greater than the Cap Rate, the Group shall receive the
amount of relevant depreciation amount of offshore RMB against US dollar

up to the Capped Gain Rate (“Capped Gain Amount”).

The Forwards utilized by the Group had contract values and expiry dates
matching the outstanding amounts and maturity dates of the specific US dollar
or Hong Kong dollar denominated indebtedness being hedged. These Forwards
enable the Group to lock-in to the relevant pre-specified Strike Rate of US
dollar versus RMB exchange rate for the repayment of its outstanding non-RMB

denominated indebtedness.

Other than those disclosed above, the Group did not have any other material
exposures to foreign exchange fluctuations or any other hedging arrangements
as at 31 December 2021. The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure
closely and may, depending on the circumstances and trend of foreign currencies,

consider adjusting its foreign currency hedging policy in the future.

Financial guarantees

The Group has provided mortgage guarantees to PRC banks in respect of the
mortgage loans provided by the PRC banks to the Group’s customers. The
Group’s mortgage guarantees are issued from the dates of grant of the relevant
mortgage loans and released upon the earlier of (i) the relevant property
ownership certificates being obtained and the certificates of other interests with
respect to the relevant properties being delivered to the mortgagee banks, or (ii)
the settlement of mortgage loans between the mortgagee banks and the Group’s
customers. As at 31 December 2021, the Group provided mortgage guarantees in
respect of mortgage loans provided by the PRC banks to the Group’s customers
amounting to approximately RMB31,163.8 million (31 December 2020:
approximately RMB23,414.7 million).
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES (Comined)

Financial guarantees (Continued)

During the year, certain of the Group’s joint ventures and associates have utilized
offshore and/or onshore bank loans. The Company provided guarantees on several
basis covering its respective equity shares of outstanding obligations under
certain offshore and/or onshore bank loans incurred by its joint ventures and
associated companies. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s aggregate share of
such guarantees provided in respective of loans incurred by these joint ventures
and associate companies amounted to approximately RMB15,787.7 million (31
December 2020: approximately RMB13,778.4 million).

Gearing ratio

The Group’s net debt-to-equity ratio (total indebtedness net of bank balances
and cash divided by total equity) was approximately 62.8% as at 31 December
2021, versus approximately 64.0% as at 31 December 2020. The Group’s debt-
to-asset ratio (total indebtedness divided by total assets) was approximately
26.4% as at 31 December 2021 versus approximately 27.6% as at 31 December
2020. The Group’s current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) was
approximately 1.6 times as at 31 December 2021, versus approximately 1.5 times
as at 31 December 2020.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND COMPENSATION POLICY
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s property development and property

investment business had approximately 25,532 employees in China including
Hong Kong, among which approximately 8,041 employees worked for the
property development business, approximately 16,709 employees worked for the
property management business, and approximately 582 employees worked for the

commercial property leasing business.

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance, working
experience and the prevailing market wage level. The total remuneration of the

employees consisted of basic salary, cash bonus and share-based incentives.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIN Zhong, aged 53, our founder, is the executive Director and Chairman
of the Company. Mr. Lin Zhong has about 31 years of experience in the real
estate business. He was appointed as Director on 20 May 2011, and is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company and is also a substantial shareholder of the Company
and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Lin Zhong is also an
executive director, the chairman of the board of directors, the chairman of the
nomination committee, the chairman of the strategy committee and a member of
remuneration committee of CIFI Ever Sunshine Services Group Limited (SEHK
stock code: 1995, “CIFI Ever Sunshine Services”), the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK” or the
“Stock Exchange”) since 17 December 2018. Mr. Lin Zhong was appointed as the
vice chairman of Shanghai Population Welfare Foundation in 2013, the deputy
chief council member of the Eighth Term of Council of Shanghai Real Estate
Association and the rotating chairman of Shanghai Entrepreneur Association in
2014, the honorary chairman of Fujian Chamber of Commerce in Shanghai and
the chairman of Xiamen Chamber of Commerce in Shanghai in 2016 , the vice
chairman of the China Real Estate Association in 2018, an adjunct professor at
School of Business Administration of East China Normal University and the
chairman of the fourth council of Oriental Real Estate Research Institute of East
China Normal University in 2019, and the rotating chairman of China Urban
Realty Association (CURA) and the rotating chairman of Fukien Chamber of
Commerce in 2021. Mr. Lin Zhong graduated from Xiamen University with a
bachelor’s degree in economics. He further pursued and obtained an executive
master of business administration degree from Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business. Mr. Lin Zhong is a brother of Mr. Lin Wei and Mr. Lin Feng. Mr. Lin
Zhong is a director of Rosy Fortune Investments Limited (“Rosy Fortune”) and
Ding Chang Limited, substantial shareholders of the Company, whose interests
in shares of the Company are disclosed in the paragraph headed “Substantial
Shareholders’ Interests in Securities” in the “Directors’ Report” section of this

annual report.
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Mr. LIN Wei, aged 49, is the executive Director and Vice-chairman of
the Company. He was appointed as Director on 20 May 2011, and is also a
substantial shareholder of the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. Lin Wei has about 26 years of experience in the real estate
business. He laid the foundation of our Group’s development with Mr. Lin
Zhong. Mr. Lin Wei is a brother of Mr. Lin Zhong and Mr. Lin Feng. Mr.
Lin Wei is a director of Rosy Fortune and Eminent Talent Limited (“Eminent
Talent”), substantial shareholders of the Company, whose interests in shares of
the Company are disclosed in the paragraph headed “Substantial Shareholders’

Interests in Securities” in the “Directors’ Report” section of this annual report.

Mr. LIN Feng, aged 46, is the executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. He is also a substantial shareholder of the Company and a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Lin Feng has about 22 years of experience
in the real estate business. He joined our Group in 2001 and was appointed as
Director on 20 May 2011. Mr. Lin Feng is also a non-executive director, the
deputy chairman of the board of directors, a member of the audit committee and
a member of the strategy committee of CIFI Ever Sunshine Services. Mr. Lin
Feng is currently the vice chairman of China Real Estate Chamber of Commerce,
a council member of All-China Youth Federation, executive council member of
Shanghai Youth Federation, executive council member of Shanghai Federation
of Industry and Commerce (Commerce Chamber), council member of Shanghai
Changning District Association of Industry and Commerce (Commerce Chamber),
executive council member of Shanghai Putuo District Youth Federation, rotating
chairman of the executive council of China Urban Realty Association and
director of CIFI Foundation. Mr. Lin Feng graduated from Xiamen University
with a bachelor’s degree in economics, further obtained a master of business
administration degree from the University of Dundee. Mr. Lin Feng is a brother
of Mr. Lin Zhong and Mr. Lin Wei. Mr. Lin Feng is a director of Rosy Fortune, a
substantial shareholder of the Company, whose interests in shares of the Company
are disclosed in the paragraph headed “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in

Securities” in the “Directors’ Report” section of this annual report.
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Mr. CHEN Dongbiao, aged 54, is the executive Director of the Company and
Executive President of the Group, responsible for operation and management
of residential segment. Mr. Chen joined the Group in August 2013, and was
appointed as Director on 18 December 2017. He is currently a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen worked for
China Vanke Co., Ltd., as the director of engineering and general manager and
chairman of Shanghai Vanke Real Estate Co., Ltd. Mr. Chen was a representative
of Shanghai Pudong New District People’s Congress from 1997 to 2002 and the
rotating chairman of Shanghai Real Estate Trade Association from 2011 to 2012.
Mr. Chen graduated from Shanghai City Construction Institute with a bachelor’s
degree in engineering, and further obtained a master of business administration

degree from China Europe International Business School.

Mr. YANG Xin, aged 48, is the executive Director of the Company and the
Executive Vice President of the Group. Mr. Yang became the Chief Financial
Officer of the Group since 30 March 2019. Mr. Yang joined the Group in July
2010, and was appointed as Director on 18 December 2017. He is currently a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He has experience in banking and
finance. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in various management positions
at Agricultural Bank of China Limited. Mr. Yang graduated from Shanghai Jiao
Tong University with a bachelor’s degree in international finance and further
obtained a master of business administration degree. He also obtained a master’s
degree in accounting from Shanghai National Accounting Institute. Mr. Yang
also holds the Senior International Finance Manager qualification issued by

International Financial Management Association.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. JIANG Dagqgiang, aged 45, is the non-executive Director of the Company.

He was appointed as Director on 14 December 2021. Mr. Jiang is currently the
chairman and chief executive officer of Ping An Real Estate Co., Ltd. CHFZ AR
A FR 2N 7]), which is in turn ultimately owned by Ping An Insurance (Group)
Company of China, Ltd. (PR B (EE) BN A RN T)), the A shares
of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601318) and the
H shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2318) (together
with its subsidiaries, “Ping An”). Mr. Jiang has over 20 years of experience in
real estates and commercial property development and business development.
Prior to joining Ping An in March 2021, Mr. Jiang had been the non-executive
director of Redsun Properties Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1996), from March 2018 to February 2021 and the non-
executive director of Redsun Services Group Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1971), from March 2020 to February 2021. He also
acted as the vice general manager of Joy City Property Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 207) from 2006 to 2012, and was responsible
for the company’s early acquisition, investment and development projects. Mr.
Jiang then moved on to become the vice president of the Group from 2012 to
2018. Mr. Jiang obtained a bachelor’s degree in civil engineering from Tianjin
Chengjian University in July 2000. He then acquired a master’s degree in history
of science and technology from Shanghai Jiaotong University in March 2003 and
an MBA degree from China Europe International Business School in November
2019.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. ZHANG Yongyue, aged 67, is the independent non-executive Director

of the Company. He was appointed as Director on 9 October 2012, and is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics from East China Normal University where he taught since
his graduation and he had become a professor of the Business School at the same
university since 1998 until he retired in 2017. He is currently a tenured professor
at East China Normal University, and the Dean of Shanghai E-house China
R&D Institute, concurrently as the specialist consultant of the China Institute of
Real Estate Appraisers and Agents, and the supervisor of Shanghai Real Estate
Economy Society. Mr. Zhang is currently an independent director of Shanghai
Industrial Development Co., Ltd. (SSE stock code: 600748) and an independent
director of Shanghai Huitong Energy Co., Ltd. (SSE stock code: 600605), the
shares of all of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (“SSE”).

Mr. TAN Wee Seng, aged 606, is the independent non-executive Director of the
Company. He was appointed as Director on 9 October 2012, and is the chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company. Mr. Tan is a professional in value and business management
consultancy. He is currently a non-executive director (re-designated from
independent non-executive director with effect from 17 March 2022) of Xtep
International Holdings Limited (SEHK stock code: 1368), an independent non-
executive director of Sa Sa International Holdings Limited (SEHK stock code:
178), an independent non-executive director of Health and Happiness (H&H)
International Holdings Limited (SEHK stock code: 1112) and an independent
non-executive director of Shineroad International Holdings Limited (SEHK stock
code: 1587), the shares of all of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, and an independent director of ReneSola Ltd (NYSE stock code: SOL),
the shares of which are listed on the New York Stock Exchange. He is also a board
member and the chairman of the finance and operation committee of Beijing
City International School. Mr. Tan has over 38 years of financial management,
corporate finance, merger and acquisition, business management and strategy
development experience. He has also held various management and senior
management positions in a number of multinational and Chinese corporations.
From 2003 to 2008, he was an executive director, chief financial officer and
company secretary of Li Ning Company Limited (SEHK stock code: 2331). From
1999 to 2002, he was the senior vice president of Reuters for China, Mongolia
and North Korea regions, and the chief representative of Reuters in China. Mr.
Tan is a fellow member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants in

United Kingdom and a Chartered Global Management Accountant.
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Ms. LIN Caiyi, aged 56, is the independent non-executive Director of the
Company. She was appointed as Director on 14 December 2021. Ms. Lin has
over 32 years of experience in macroeconomics analysis and industry research.
Ms. Lin is currently the associate dean of China Chief Economist Forum (hE
E‘fﬁ?@@?%ﬂ*%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ B)Ed‘), a part-time professor at Fudan University, and the
associate dean of North Bund International Finance Association (At4/MEER [
4 S Ms. Lin has also been an independent director of Huajin Securities
Co., Ltd. FEEHEHRNA IR/ T]) since December 2020, and an independent
director of Shanghai East Asia Futures Co., Ltd. since February 2022. Prior to
that, she had been the chief economist at Hua’an Fund Management Co., Ltd.
GELREEEABR/AF]) from August 2017 to August 2020 and the chief
economist at Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. (BB LB HERNE PR 7)),
a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange (SSE stock code: 201211), from
September 2011 to August 2017, where she focused on macroeconomics research
and major asset allocation. Ms. Lin acted as the chief researcher at the strategic
development department of China Unionpay Co., Led. (77 [ R A FR 2 &)
from December 2002 to September 2011, the assistant manager at research and
development centre of China Greatwall Securities Co., Ltd. (BIWESERDA TR
/3 A]) (SZSE stock code: 002939), a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(“SZSE”), from May 2000 to December 2002, and the associate manager at
research and development centre of China Industrial Securities Co., Ltd. IGE S
PBEEEBRARD, a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange (SSE stock
code: 601377), from May 1997 to January 2000. From July 1989 to May 1995,
Ms. Lin started her career in Treasury Department of the Bank of China, Shanghai
Branch as a trader and focused on transactions of foreign exchange and financial
derivatives, followed by a manager role at the asset management department of
Shanghai Zhongyi International Trading Co., Ltd. (¥ 7 45 B PR & 5 A R
/3] from May 1995 to April 1997. Ms. Lin obtained a bachelor of economics
degree and a master of economics degree at East China Normal University in
1986 and 1989, respectively. She further obtained a Ph.D. in international

economics at Fudan University in 2000.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. FAN Yiting, aged 49, is the Vice President and Chief Products Officer
of the Group. Ms. Fan joined the Group in October 2015. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. Fan worked for China Overseas Grand Oceans Group Limited as
assistant president and vice chief architect from 2011 to 2015. She held the
positions of director, design director (Eastern China), design director (Northern
China), general manager of planning and design management center and deputy
manager of Shenzhen branch for China Overseas Property Group Co., Ltd. from
2000 to 2011. Ms. Fan worked for Beijing Architectural Design Institute of
China Construction as an architect from 1993 to 1997. Ms. Fan graduated from
South China University of Technology with a master’s degree in architecture and
obtained a bachelor’s degree in architecture from Chang’an University (formerly
known as The Northwest Institute of Construction Engineering). She is also a

certified architect with professional qualification.

Mr. PAN Taoyuan, aged 54, is the Vice President and General Manager of
Investment Center of the Group. Mr. Pan joined the Group in February 2008
and was previously the General Manager of Sales and Marketing Center of the
Group. Before joining our Group, Mr. Pan worked in Shanghai P & R Real Estate
Consultant Co., Ltd as the deputy general manager from October 2004 to January
2007. Mr. Pan graduated from the National Taichung Institute of Technology
majoring in Japanese language. He further obtained an executive master of
business administration (EMBA) degree from China Europe International
Business School in 2019.

Mr. GE Ming, aged 42, is the Vice President and the General Manager of
Human Development Center of the Group. Mr. Ge joined the Group in April
2012 and have vast experience in human resources management. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Ge worked at Oriental Cambridge Education Group
as the director of human resources and a member of the executive committee.
Prior to that, Mr. Ge worked at Shanghai Tuosheng Associates and Longfor
Group. Mr. Ge graduated from Fudan University with a bachelor’s degree in
economics, majoring in international finance in 2002, and further obtained an
executive master of business administration (EMBA) degree from China Europe

International Business School in 2018.
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Mr. XU Bin, aged 47, is the Vice President and Chief Digital Officer of the
Group. Mr. Xu joined the Group in May 2020. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Xu worked as the chief information officer of the Country Garden Group (32
A E4EE), the chief information officer of Cedar Holdings Group (ZZAAE K
4EH]) | the chief information officer of the Shell China Group G (rhE ) 45
[, the chief information officer for Asia Pacific of Lubrizol Specialty Chemicals
Group (W& FE L L 4E 3], che chief information officer of retail business of
the BP China Group (F [ A i @%@), the information technology manager
of 7-Eleven China Group (7-Eleven 1 [B4E [#]) and the project manager of
China Construction Bank Guangzhou Branch. Mr. Xu graduated from Nanjing
University with a bachelor’s degree in science, and further obtained a master

degree in economics from Sun Yat-sen University.

Mr. LEUNG Yuk Ming (Lawrence), aged 47, is the Head of Capital Markets
and Investor Relations of the Group. He has extensive experience in investor
relations, investment banking, Listing Rules compliance and accounting. In
his career, Mr. Leung worked for Powerlong Real Estate Holdings Limited,
Macquarie Capital (Hong Kong) Limited, DBS Asia Capital Limited, the Listing
Division of the Stock Exchange and Ernst & Young. Mr. Leung received his
bachelor’s degree in commerce and LLB from the University of Calgary and the
University of London respectively. He is a holder of Chartered Financial Analyst,
a member of Hong Kong Society of Financial Analysts and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He joined the Group in
June 2013.

Mr. DING Zhaohui, aged 49, is the Director of Legal and Risk Control of
the Group. Mr. Ding joined the Group in September 2014. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Ding worked for China Vanke Co., Ltd. from October 2000 to
September 2014 and held the positions of deputy general manager and general
manager of legal department of China Vanke Co., Ltd.. Mr. Ding has been the
deputy chief member of the professional committee for legal affairs of the China
Real Estate Association since December 2018. Mr. Ding graduated from East
China Normal University with a bachelor’s degree in history and later obtained a

master of laws degree from Renmin University of China.
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Mr. YAN Qiang, aged 40, is the General Manager of Sales Center of the Group.
Mr. Yan joined the Group in March 2012. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Yan worked for China Vanke Co., Ltd. as senior professional manager in its sale
department. Mr. Yan graduated from Nankai University with a bachelor’s degree
in management, and further obtained a master’s degree in management from

Tianjin University.

Mr. LI Su, aged 40, is the General Manager of Audit and Supervision
Department of the Group. Mr. Li joined the Group in August 2019. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Li worked as the general manager of risk management
and compliance center of China Fortune Land Development Co., Ltd., director
of audit of audit department in Longfor Group, general manager of audit of
audit department in Saiwei LDK Group, and also worked for risk assurance of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as senior consultant. Mr. Li graduated from Beijing
International Studies University with a bachelor’s degree in economics, majoring

in international finance.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LO Tai On, aged 67, was appointed as our Company Secretary in October
2012. Mr. Lo is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over 30 years of experience in the field of company
secretarial services and is now a director of Fair Wind Secretarial Services Ltd.,
a secretarial company rendering secretarial services. Mr. Lo is also the company
secretary of several companies listed on the Stock Exchange, including Pak Fah
Yeow International Limited (SEHK stock code: 239) and CSPC Pharmaceutical
Group Limited (SEHK stock code: 1093).



TR R | U RER () AIRAF

4 3% IR W

Corporate Governance Report

HEREMRRBRE X —F+"A
=t B2 RSB R R -

BRI

A% A ) 01 78 2 B T JEE M R T I
P BN R B K 4 3 1A
B A I i 3 DA R A A 4 B
IR BRI R -

RERAERE - EH G AR —H
R R RETHEER G S A
BRZA w75 bR A (T TR 1) B Bk
I i A SR ST R (S R T B
AR T RGESCRE -

SPRIS =& A H - HEERT (TR
SFRLD) > REMERTE AR % =
—H— B2 BB B o BT
I £ BB RT B S I A 2 m UL il
H A ~ (B KSR ~ i S 218 e 2R 4k
BOR - R R A L T
b~ BRI E ~ 7RISR - AhE K
ERGE SR E S SO R TS
Pr A 23636 <1 J A9 ~¥ B A SC % 48 R 4R
GE o ARG W LBE F A
T A=t B I EERE > R
B AEZ5CHIT > Ao <1 B A S A 0% 282 77
ST RIS IR -

(A EEE

AR

WAREAY > EFgH L EFH
B AR B AT E AR A (ETF) -
MRAR G (R ) ~ PRIGSEA (FT 44
#H) > BRI B R E (RS IS
) 5 EPATERER L 5 DB ST
AT E BRIk E LA - BRI &
MORE A+ - B A TR
BARSEE S E o DL E R S R
W o

BRAkrb SE AR ~ ARfa e ok de 2
$hh > HHEIN A MR - 8 - K
TR At TR BRAR o

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognizes the importance of corporate transparency and
accountability. The Company is committed in achieving a high standard of
corporate governance and leading the Group to attain better results and improve

its corporate image with effective corporate governance procedures.

During the year under review, the Board is of the opinion that the Company had
adopted, applied and complied with the code provisions that were in force as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Code was amended on 1 January 2022 (the “New Code”), with majority of
the amendments applying to financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
Major amendments of the New Code includes the alignment of the Company’s
culture with its purpose, values, and strategy, establishment of anti-corruption
and whistleblowing policies, board independence and diversity of its members,
communication with shareholders, publication of environmental, social and
governance reports at the same time as publication of annual reports, and re-
arrangement of the code provisions and disclosure requirements of the corporate
governance code. As this report relates to the financial year ended 31 December
2021, the numbering of code provision in the report follow the code provisions of

the Code before the New Code came into effect.

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

As at the date of this report, the Board consisted of nine Directors comprising
M:r. LIN Zhong (Chairman), Mr. LIN Wei (Vice-chairman), Mr. LIN Feng
(Chief Executive Officer), Mr. CHEN Dongbiao and Mr. YANG Xin (Chief
Financial Officer) as the executive Directors; Mr. JIANG Dagqiang as the non-
executive Director; and Mr. ZHANG Yongyue, Mr. TAN Wee Seng and Ms.
LIN Caiyi as the independent non-executive Directors. The overall management
and supervision of the Group’s operation and the function of formulating overall

business strategies were vested in the Board.

There are no financial, business, family or other material relationships among
members of the Board except that Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN

Feng are brothers.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (coninued)

Board composition (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has at all times met
the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors with at least
one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate professional

qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The three independent non-executive Directors represent one-third of the Board,
complying with the requirement under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules whereby
independent non-executive directors of a listed issuer must represent at least one-
third of the board. The Board believes there is sufficient independence element in

the Board to safeguard the interest of shareholders.

Directors’ responsibilities

The Board takes the responsibility to oversee all major matters of the Group,
including the formulation and approval of all policy matters, overall strategies,
internal control and risk management systems, and monitor the performance
of the senior executives. The Directors have to make decisions objectively in
the interests of the Group. As at 31 December 2021, the Board comprised nine
Directors, including five executive Directors, one non-executive Director and
three independent non-executive Directors. Their names and biographical details
are set out in the “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section of

this annual report.

Liability insurance for Directors and senior management of the Company is
maintained by the Company with appropriate coverage for certain legal liabilities

which may arise in the course of performing their duties.

Delegation by the Board

The management, consisting of executive Directors along with other senior
executives, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing the strategy and
direction as adopted by the Board from time to time, and conducting the day-
to-day operations of the Group. Executive Directors and senior executives meet
regularly to review the performance of the businesses of the Group as a whole,
co-ordinate overall resources and make financial and operational decisions. The
Board also gives clear directions as to their powers of management including
circumstances where management should report back, and reviews the delegation
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the

needs of the Group.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (coninued)

Model code for securities transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct of dealings in securities of the Company
by the Directors. Upon specific enquiries of all the Directors, each of them has
confirmed that they complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31 December 2021, except that Mr. LIN Feng, an
executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group unintentionally
sold senior perpetual capital securities of the Company with an aggregate
principal amount of US$9,000,000 on 12 March, 15 March, 16 March, 4 August,
5 August and 6 August 2021. Such incident took place during the blackout
periods under Rule A3(a) of the Model Code, and Mr. LIN Feng did not comply
with the requirements under the Model Code and the code of conduct regulating
dealings in securities of the Company. He had notified to the Stock Exchange
relevant changes of the interests as required by the Securities and Futures

Ordinance.

The Company has paid due regard to the above event and has taken remedial

actions, including but not limited to:

(i)  the Company immediately reminded all Directors again of the blackout
period and the dealing restrictions during the blackout period, to ensure
Directors to comply with proper procedures when dealing in securities of

the Company;

(i)  the Company has arranged internal training to the Board on compliance
with Listing Rules particularly relating to the Model Code, which was
lectured by CFN Lawyers, to enhance their awareness of good corporate

governance practices; and

(iii)  the Company will review the internal control system in detail from time to

time and make improvements where necessary.

As required by the Company, relevant officers and employees of the Group are
also bound by the Model Code, which prohibits them to deal in securities of the
Company at any time when he possesses inside information in relation to those
securities. Save for the above, no incident of non-compliance of the Model Code
by the relevant officers and employees was noted by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (coninued)

Directors’ responsibilities for financial statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Group in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities
to ensure that the financial statements of the Group are published in a timely
manner. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the

financial statements of the Company on a going concern basis.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors play a significant role in the Board by
virtue of their independent judgment and their views carry significant weight in
the Board’s decision. They bring an impartial view on issues of the Company’s

strategies, performance and control.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive academic, professional
and industry expertise and management experience and have provided their

professional advice to the Board.

The Board also considers that the independent non-executive Directors can
provide independent advice on the Company’s business strategies, results and

management so as to safeguard the interests of the Company and its shareholders.

All non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
are appointed for a term of three years. As at 31 December 2021, none of the
independent non-executive Directors held any other offices in the Company
or any of its subsidiaries or is interested in more than 1% of the shares of the
Company. Details of interests of each independent non-executive Director are
set out in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
in Securities” in the Directors’ Report section of this annual report. For the
year under review, all independent non-executive Directors have confirmed
respectively their independence to the Company in accordance with Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-executive

Directors are independent.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (coninued)

Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a service contract or a letter of appointment
with the Company for a specific term. Such term is subject to his retirement
by rotation and re-election at an annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association. The Company’s Articles
of Association provide that any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy in the Board or as an additional member of the Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting and shall then be eligible

for re-election at such meeting.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director (including those appointed
for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every

three years and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The members of the Company may, at any general meetings convened and held
in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, remove a Director
by ordinary resolution at any time before the expiration of his period of office
notwithstanding anything contrary in the Company’s Articles of Association or
in any agreement between the Company and such Director and may by ordinary

resolution elect another person in his stead.

Board meetings
The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Group. Directors may participate

either in person or through electronic means of communications.

Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the Code, the Board should meet regularly
and board meetings should be held at least four times a year. In addition to
regular Board meetings, the Directors also participate in deliberation and
approval of routine and operational matters of the Company by way of written
resolutions with supporting explanatory materials, supplemented by additional
written information from the management when required. Additional Board
meetings would be held whenever warranted. During the year under review, the

Company held six Board meetings and one general meeting.
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(A) ﬁ%@ (%) (A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cConsinued)
EHTYHE A Board meetings (Continued)
HERNE RS WT The attendance of each Director is as follows:

i) ¥ & Sgor e vl i) T VN t/e - v

WA R A JBe SR £ 48 3
No. of No. of
Board meetings general meetings
attended/ attended/
Total no. of Total no. of
wYREH Name of Directors Board meetings general meetings
BlITEH Executive Directors
M ded: Mr. LIN Zhong 6/6 1/1
MRS Mr. LIN Wei 6/6 11
Rl e A Mr. LIN Feng 6/6 1/1
BR AR5 Mr. CHEN Dongbiao 6/6 1/1
Wk S Mr. YANG Xin 6/6 11
FHITHEE Non-Executive Directors
ERSEA (FiEEL) Mr. WANG Wei (Note 1) 6/6 /1
H R e (M5E2) Mr. JIANG Dagiang (Note 2) AN FN/A AN FN/A
W B TEH Independent Non-Executive Directors
BB (E3) Mr. GU Yunchang (Note 3) 6/6 1/1
SRR e Mr. ZHANG Yongyue 6/6 1/1
BR A RS AE Mr. TAN Wee Seng 6/6 1/1
MORE 2= (B 3E4) Ms. LIN Caiyi (Note 4) AN FIN/A AN FIN/A
[ 5E - Notes:
1. T e A FE A ] U H R R R 1. Mr. WANG Wei resigned as a Director since 14 December 2021.
HH o
2. A E AR T PN R R A 2. Mr. JIANG Dagiang was appointed as Director on 14 December 2021 and no board meeting and
W AT AR A B A e e general meeting have been held after his appointment.
RKRE -
3. BEESAEY FE —E+H U HEETE 3. Mr. GU Yunchang resigned as a Director since 14 December 2021.
Ho
4. MRE L LR =T+ 00 H R 4. Ms. LIN Caiyi was appointed as Director on 14 December 2021 and no board meeting and general
W T AT R A B e el ) meeting have been held after her appointment.

WK -
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (coninued)

Board meetings (Continued)

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company has
arranged in-house trainings for Directors in the form of seminar and provision of
training materials, and all Directors received their training by attending either in
person or through electronic means of communications. A summary of training
received by Directors during the year under review according to the records

provided by the Directors is as follows:

wEH

BEEWR
BT o R R

N v ER-E
Training on
corporate governance,
regulatory development

Name of Directors and other relevant topics

HITEH Executive Directors
NG Pies Mr. LIN Zhong v/
M sEt Mr. LIN Wei v
M e e Mr. LIN Feng v/
R S Mr. CHEN Dongbiao v
RS Mr. YANG Xin v
HAITEF Non-Executive Directors
FRSEE (kD Mr. WANG Wei (Note 1) v
H i et (Mhst2) Mr. JIANG Dagiang (Note 2) v
BB TES Independent Non-Executive Directors

IEE A (53 Mr. GU Yunchang (Note 3) v
RAKIE e Mr. ZHANG Yongyue v
BRAZE RS AE Mr. TAN Wee Seng Ve
MRE L+ (Ffak4) Ms. LIN Caiyi (Note 4) v
B - Notes:
1. ;@Z%t’: HOoZ o —F+ 7]+ HEEHEE 1. Mr. WANG Wei resigned as a Director since 14 December 2021.
2. gggﬁ%$ﬁ§:$:4¢+:H 00 AR 2. Mr. JTIANG Dagiang was appointed as Director on 14 December 2021.
3. $£EI Jed B E T T H A H R R 3. Mr. GU Yunchang resigned as a Director since 14 December 2021.
4. MREL LR ZE_—F+ ] A EELES 4. Ms. LIN Caiyi was appointed as Director on 14 December 2021.

i o
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (coninued)

Corporate governance functions
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties

including:

(a)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate

governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

(¢)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance

with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual

(if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e)  to review the Company’s compliance with the Code.
The Board had performed the above duties during the year under review.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During the year under review, the positions of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer were held separately. The role of Chairman was held by Mr.
LIN Zhong, and the role of Chief Executive Officer was held by Mr. LIN Feng.
The segregation of duties of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
ensures a clear distinction in the Chairman’s responsibility to manage and
provide leadership for the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility

to manage the Company’s day-to-day business.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees (the “Board Committees”) and
has delegated various responsibilities to the committees including the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”). All the Board Committees perform their distinct roles in
accordance with their respective terms of reference which are available on the
Company’s website and the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Board Committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request and in
appropriate circumstance, are able to seek independent professional advice at the

Company’s expense.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (coninued)

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of
the Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to provide the Board
with an independent review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process,
risk management and internal control systems of the Group, to oversee the audit

process and to perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. TAN Wee Seng (being the chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr.
ZHANG Yongyue and Ms. LIN Caiyi. In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules, the chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the appropriate

professional and accounting qualifications.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two meetings with
the senior management and independent auditor of the Company to consider
the independence and audit scope of independent auditor, and to review and
discuss the risk management and internal control systems, the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal audit function, interim and annual financial statements of the
Company and the opinion and report of independent auditor before reporting and

submitting to the Board for their approval.

The attendance of each member is as follows:

i) f Ve vl
R

No. of
meetings attended/
Total no. of
B H % Name of members meetings
B RUEAE (F05) Mr. TAN Wee Seng (Chairman) 2/2
BEE S (R Mr. GU Yunchang (Note 1) 2/2
SRR e Mr. ZHANG Yongyue 2/2
MCRE L (i EE2) Ms. LIN Caiyi (Note 2) AT FIN/A
F5E Notes:
1. BEEEER T —F+ A TR 1. Mr. GU Yunchang ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee since 14 December 2021.
EFEGEZEERE -
2. MREL L _F_—F+ ] H U AEEES 2. Ms. LIN Caiyi was appointed as a member of the Audit Committee on 14 December 2021 and no

FREREME - MR GG R A TH
ZEEE® -

meeting of the Audit Committee has been held after her appointment.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (coninued)

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1 of the Code. The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee include (but not limited to): (a) making
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for all Directors’
and senior management’s remuneration and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy; (b) making
recommendations on the terms of the specific remuneration package of the
executive Directors and senior management; and (c) reviewing and approving
performance—based remuneration proposals with reference to corporate goals and

objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

The Company has adopted model (ii) as set out in code provision B.1.2(c) of the
Code.

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, of whom two are
independent non-executive Directors. The three members are Mr. ZHANG
Yongyue (being the chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. LIN Zhong,
the executive Director and Chairman and Mr. TAN Wee Seng.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting
to review the remuneration structure of the Directors and senior management
of the Group and appraisal system of the key positions of the Group, discuss
the challenges of attracting and retaining senior level staff of the Company,
and make recommendations on the remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and senior management for 2021; and review the remuneration
packages of independent non-executive Directors, the supplemental letters of
appointment of a non-executive Director and certain independent non-executive
Directors, and the remuneration packages of candidates for directorship and make

recommendation to the Board for approval.

The attendance of each member is as follows:

R ek
aRAR

No. of

meetings attended/

Total no. of

W B Rk $4 Name of members meetings
SRR A (F ) Mr. ZHANG Yongyue (Chairman) 2/2
M oA Mr. LIN Zhong 2/2
PR R SE AR Mr. TAN Wee Seng 22

O e A BN BB M e S
B BN B B RE S R ~ A R R
LA EH B - AL R K
A BE F7 LA B Ay S 387 M A5 Y R i T L
TMEE

The remuneration of Directors and senior management is determined based on
the skills and knowledge of the Directors and senior management, their job
responsibilities and involvement in the Group’s affairs, the performance and
profitability of the Group as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and

the prevailing market conditions.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (coninued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

Details of the remuneration payable to the Directors and five highest paid
individuals of the Group during the year under review are set out in note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements. The remuneration of the members of the
senior management named in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” of this report during the year falls within the following
bands:

3,000,001 JC 4,000,000 G HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 1
4,000,001 45 TG % 5,000,000%5 70 HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 1
5,000,001 %5 76 2.6,000,0005 JC HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 1
6,000,001 % G £27,000,000%5 JC HK$6,000,001 to HK$7,000,000 3
7,000,001 5 JT %£8,000,000%5 74 HK$7,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 2

8

P L 48 J 40 SV B AL~ LA
A A5 500 BB OB A 8
5

RETHE

PN RV - = R 4 ¥ S el
A SBUNMIE o 5o E Rk A - 4R
PEETHEERE BT ERETHE
W~ NEORALR > WGPk AT E S
N~ BEHE S - HEBTG 8 G
T8 7 FE AT E 0 T M ) o R
AR o AL - Pl K AEAT B
B 7 2 G T PR A0 1 4R 4 EOR (TR 4
UK )

AT EEH =AM EAN > Hhwg
BT RATE R o =24 B W7
EHRFEBM P RLE(RRAZEEE
Ji&) ~ RS MR L -

AR > A% B a IR IT IR S
Mo DT E R G R B e r AL
KERGHANT R RS hES
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Remuneration comprise basic salaries and allowances, bonus, equity-settled share-

based payments and retirement benefit contributions.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5 of the Code. The primary duties
of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and composition
of the Board, and select and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of Directors, re-appointment of Directors, succession planning for
Directors and assesses the independence of independent non-executive Directors.
The nomination process, selection criteria and succession plan are set out in the

nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) adopted by the Board.

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, of whom two are
independent non-executive Directors. The three members are Mr. LIN Zhong
(being the chairman of the Nomination Committee), the executive Director and
Chairman, Mr. ZHANG Yongyue and Ms. LIN Caiyi.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held two meetings
to review the composition of the Board and its committees as well as the
background and experiences of the Board members, evaluate the contributions
of the Board members to the Group in 2021 and term of appointment of
Directors and assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
and to review the nomination of new directors based on the criteria, process and
procedure set out in the Nomination Policy and make recommendations to the

Board on appointment of new directors.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (coninued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

FIE R R ERT The attendance of each member is as follows:
O frd iy,
A
No. of
meetings attended/
Total no. of
B E 4 Name of members meetings
MR SEAE () M. LIN Zhong (Chairman) 2/2
1R B e (MsE) Mr. GU Yunchang (Note 1) 2/2
R e Mr. ZHANG Yongyue 2/2
MORE 2 (FfsE2) Ms. LIN Caiyi (Note 2) AN FHN/A
Fi5E Notes:
1. EERAEAZEF U EARHE 1. Mr. GU Yunchang ceased to be a member of the Nomination Committee since 14 December 2021.
ERFZRENA -
2. MREL LR % — 4+ AT HERT A 2. Ms. LIN Caiyi was appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee on 14 December 2021 and
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no meeting of the Nomination Committee has been held after her appointment.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”) which
sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board. The Company has reviewed the Diversity
Policy in view of the enhanced corporate governance practice on board diversity
under the Listing Rules with effect from 1 January 2019. The Group’s business
development and strategy as well as the operational need have been taken into

account when reviewing the Diversity Policy.

Under the Diversity Policy, the Company recognizes and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board, and sees diversity at board level as an essential element
in maintaining a competitive advantage. The Company seeks to achieve board
diversity through inclusion and making good use of differences in the talents,
skills, regional and industry experience, background, and other qualities of the
members of the Board. These differences will be considered in determining
the optimum composition of the Board and when possible should be balanced

appropriately.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (coninued)

Board Diversity Policy (Continued)

The Company has also considered the measurable objectives under the Diversity
Policy and assessed the diversity profile of the Board and senior management
members. It is believed that the matrix of the industry skills, expertise and
experiences, knowledge and experiences in operational and financial management
and corporate governance, business connection, educational background, age and
gender of the existing composition of the Board and senior management members
are well balanced and diversified in alignment with the business development

and strategy of the Group.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the Diversity Policy from time to time

to ensure its continued effectiveness.

Nomination Policy

Pursuant to the Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee has been
delegated to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships. The Board is ultimately responsible for selection and

appointment of new Directors.

The Nomination Committee should utilize various methods for identifying
candidates for directorship, including recommendations from Board members,
management, and professional headhunting firms. In addition, the Nomination
Committee will consider candidates for directorship properly submitted by the

shareholders of the Company.

The evaluation of candidates for directorship by the Nomination Committee
may include, without limitation, review of resume and job history, personal
interviews, verification of professional and personal references and performance
of background checks. The Board will consider the recommendations of the
Nomination Committee and is responsible for designating the candidates for
directorship to be considered by the shareholders for their election at the general
meeting of the Company, or appointing the suitable candidate to act as Director
to fill the Board vacancies or as an addition to the Board members, subject to
compliance of the constitutional documents of the Company. All appointments
of Director should be confirmed by letter of appointment and/or service contract

setting out the key terms and conditions of the appointment of Directors.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (coninued)

Nomination Policy (Continued)
The Nomination Committee should consider the following qualifications as a
minimum to be required for a candidate in recommending to the Board to be a

potential new Director, or the continued service of existing Director:
o the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;

o proven achievement and competence in the nominee’s field and the ability

to exercise sound business judgment;

. skills that are complementary to those of the existing Board,;

. the ability to assist and support management and make significant

contributions to the Company’s success;

o an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that is required for a
member of the Board and the commitment of time and energy necessary to

diligently carry out those responsibilities;

o independence: the candidates for independent non-executive directorship
should meet the “independence” criteria as required under the Listing
Rules and the composition of the Board is in conformity with the

provisions of the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee may also consider such other factors as it may deem
are in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

(B) FINANCIAL REPORTING SYSTEM,
RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

Financial reporting system

The Board, supported by the finance department, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and the Group. In
preparation of financial statements, International Financial Reporting Standards
have been adopted and the appropriate accounting policies have been consistently
used and applied. The Board aims to present a balanced, clear and comprehensive
assessment of the Group’s performance in the annual and interim reports to the
shareholders, and make appropriate disclosure and announcements in a timely
manner. Pursuant to code provision C.1.1 of the Code, management would
provide sufficient explanation and information to the Board to enable the Board
to make an informed assessment of the financial and other information put before

the Board for approval.

The working scope and reporting responsibilities of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
the Company’s external auditor, are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s

Report” on pages 177 to 184 of this annual report.
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(B) FINANCIAL REPORTING SYSTEM,
RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS (consinued)

External auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the remunerations paid or payable by
the Company to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in respect of its audit services and
non-audit services are approximately RMB8.5 million and RMB7.3 million,
respectively. The amount for 2021 non-audit services comprised mainly the
tax-related services fee, interim review service fee and corporate bonds issuance
related fee. The Audit Committee was satisfied that the non-audit services in

2021 did not affect the independence of the auditor.

Risk management and Internal control systems

The Board is responsible for risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and for reviewing their effectiveness. Procedures have been designed for
safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition, the maintenance of
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publications and the compliance of applicable laws, rules and

regulations.

Principles and guidelines of our risk management framework are set for an
effective and adequate approach to be applied across the Group to manage the
risks associated with its business and operations. This framework is designed to
enhance risk management of the Group through an integrated framework so that

all material risks faced by the Group are identified and appropriately managed.

Each department is responsible for identifying, assessing and managing risks
within its business, ensuring that appropriate internal control for effective risk
management are implemented. The management is responsible for overseeing
the risk management and internal control activities of the Group. The internal
audit department of the Group is responsible for evaluating the effectiveness
of the Group’s policies and procedures in relation to risk management and
internal control systems and submitting their reports of their findings to the
Board. The Audit Committee provides independent review on effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group and gives their
recommendation to the Board. The Board is responsible for reviewing the internal

audit report and approving policies and procedures designed by the management.
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(B) FINANCIAL REPORTING SYSTEM,
RISK MANAGEMENT AND

Risk management and Internal control systems (Continued)

The Group also engaged an external consultant specializing in identifying
and evaluation of significant risk of our business and operation. The external
consultant does not have any connection with the Group and the Board believes
that their involvement could enhance the objectivity and transparency of
evaluation process. In conjunction with our internal audit department and senior
management, the external consultant conducts an annual assessment on risk
management and internal control systems of the Group together with suggestion

and solutions and submit to the Board for their consideration.

During the year under review, the management assisted the Board in the
implementation of the Group’s policies and procedures within the Board’s
delegation by identifying and assessing the risks faced, and in the design,
operation and monitoring of suitable internal controls to mitigate and control
such risks. The Board conducted reviews and discussed with the management on
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
as required by the Code, covering adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions and any resolutions for material internal

control defects.

The Board also considers major investigation findings on risk management and

internal control matters and management’s response to these findings.

The risk management and internal control systems are reviewed and assessed on
an on-going basis by the Audit Committee and the executive Directors, and will
be further reviewed and assessed at least once each year by the Board. During the

year under review, these systems were considered effective and adequate.

The Board has implemented procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information. Since shares of the Company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the Company has adopted a policy which
aims to set out guidelines to the Group’s directors, officers and all relevant
employees to ensure inside information of the Company is to be disseminated
to the public in equal and timely manner in accordance with the Securities and

Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules.
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(C) COMPANY SECRETARY AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS

Company Secretary

The Company engages an external service provider to provide secretarial services
to the Group and has appointed Mr. LO Tai On as its Company Secretary. Mr.
Lo has confirmed that for the year under review, he has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training. The biography of Mr. Lo is set out in the
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section on page 102 of this
annual report. Mr. Lo is not an employee of our Group, and Mr. YANG Xin and
Mr. LEUNG Yuk Ming, the executive Director and the Head of Capital Markets
and Investor Relations, respectively, were the persons whom Mr. Lo could contact
for the purpose of code provision F.1.1 of the Code during the year ended 31
December 2021.

Shareholders’ rights

Convening extraordinary general meeting and putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions at the
general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Act (2021 Revision).
However, shareholders are requested to follow article 12.3 of the Company's
Articles of Association. Pursuant to article 12.3 of the Company's Articles of
Association, general meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of
any two or more members of the Company deposited at the principal office of
the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such
a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. General meetings may also be convened on the written requisition
of any one member of the Company which is a recognized clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in
the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided
that such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company. If the Board does not within 21 days
from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting
to be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months from
the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them

by the Company.
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(C) COMPANY SECRETARY AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS (Continued)

Shareholders’ rights (Continued)

Convening extraordinary general meeting and putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings (Continued)

If a shareholder, who is entitled to attend and vote at the relevant general
meeting, wishes to nominate a person (not being the nominating shareholder)
to stand for election as a Director, he or she should give to the secretary of the
Company notice in writing of the intention to propose a person for election as
a Director and notice in writing by that person of his or her willingness to be
so elected, no eatlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the relevant
general meeting and no later than 7 days prior to the date appointed for the

relevant general meeting.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director

are available on the Company’s website.

Constitutional Documents
There was no change to the Company’s constitutional documents during the year.
The Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association is available on the

Company's website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may make enquiries to the Board by contacting the Company
either through the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at
22/F., One Hennessy, No.1 Hennessy Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong or email at

ir@cifi.com.cn or directly by raising questions at general meetings.
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(D) INVESTOR RELATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND DIVIDEND POLICY

The management of the Company believes that effective and proper investor
relations play a vital role in creating shareholders’ value, enhancing the corporate
transparency as well as establishing market confidence. Effective investor
relations can contribute towards lower cost of capital, higher market liquidity
for the Company’s stocks and bonds as well as a more stable investor base. The
Company’s investor relations team is committed to maintaining a high level of
corporate transparency and following a policy of disclosing relevant information
to investors, analysts and bankers in a timely manner to keep them aware of the

Group’s corporate strategies and business operations.

The Company has adopted a stringent internal control system to ensure true,
accurate, complete and timely disclosure of relevant information pursuant to
requirements of relevant laws and regulations in order to ensure all shareholders

and investors equal access to information.

During the year, the Company has proactively taken the following measures to

ensure effective shareholders’ communication and transparency:

o maintained frequent contacts with shareholders and investors through
various channels such as meetings, conference calls, video meetings and

emails;

o held numerous roadshows and participated in investor conferences
introducing the Group’s development strategies and recent business

developments;
. regularly update the Company’s news and developments through the

investor relations section of the Company’s website;

o arranged on-site visits to the Group’s projects for investors and research

analysts.
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(D) INVESTOR RELATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND DIVIDEND POLICY
(Continued)

Through the above measures, the Company endeavours to communicate with

the investment community and provide them with the latest development of the

Group and the real estate industry in China.

In addition, the annual general meeting also provides a useful forum for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. In 2021, an annual general
meeting was held on 8 June 2021. The Chairman of the Board, as well as
chairman of each of the Board Committees, or in their absence, members of the
respective committees, and the representative of external auditor of the Company,
were available to answer questions from shareholders at the annual general
meeting. At the annual general meeting, procedures for conducting a poll were
explained by the Chairman and a resolution was proposed in respect of each

separate issue itemized in the agenda.

The forthcoming 2022 annual general meeting will be held on 8 June 2022.

Furthermore, the Company considers stable and sustainable returns to
shareholders of the Company to be its goal and endeavours to maintain a
dividend policy to achieve such goal. In deciding whether to propose a dividend
and in determining the dividend amount, the Board would take into account
the Group’s results of operations, earnings performance, cashflows, financial
condition, future prospects, as well as statutory, regulatory and debt covenant
restrictions on the payment of dividends, and other factors that the Board
may consider relevant. Whilst the Board will review from time to time for
determination on proposed dividend with the above factors taken into account,
there can be no assurance that dividends will be declared or paid in any particular

amount for any given period.
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D) BEHEHFR > BIBEEMHEE (DO) INVESTOR RELATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS
BB BB () WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND DIVIDEND POLICY
(Continued)
AKAFPR B EZHMEEREH  Major Investor Relations Events Participated by the Company in 2021
ERERR )

#5% Organization W6 B 24 4% Conference
1 H January SRS CGS-CIMB 7 Property Conference
REHEAT BNP TR B ALGRATER PN HBE FR T BNP Paribas Asia Property Forum
EYl Online Series
JEE AR - A Morgan Stanley ~ FEMR +FFFI4E o8 4> Morgan Stanley Virtual China
#*H Cyclicals Corporate Day
B LERAT UBS K021 ik Greater China Conference 2021
3 HMarch JEE AR A Morgan Stanley %% [ Bkl & Virtual Hong Kong Summit
5 H May JEEAR 13 F] Morgan Stanley  JEAR - F} i 4% - A s 04 €r MS China Summit
6H June JEE AR A3 J.P. Morgan BRI € 2021 Global China Summit 2021
T AR AT Deutsche Bank 5525 Jiel I 1 17 < 4 6 25th Annual European Leveraged
Finance Conference
SR B, CGS-CIMB SNETE P EY LY ¥ 6th Annual HK/China Property &
FIEE ek Property Management Virtual
Conference
Bifs Credit Suisse s/ EAFH HK/China Property Corporate Day
i Citi AR MR @rak2021(88 L) Asia Pacific Property Conference

2021 (Virtual)

7 H July B LERAT UBS R A R L AR R China/Hong Kong Property Virtual
2021 Conference 2021
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(D) INVESTOR RELATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS

WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND DIVIDEND POLICY
(Continued)

(Continued)

Organization
Jefferies
Barclays

CLSA

Haitong

International
Bank of America

J.P. Morgan

Bank of America
Credit Suisse

Citi

Goldman Sachs

Morgan Stanley

Nomura

WA
Jefferiesﬂﬁﬁ” Epi)
ESG EM {23 H

228 JE 5 B R S AR
G

Pl 788 R 5 A i i S

2021 SE E &

fa Bk

2021 2 &k
2021 P EEk
B CE S k2021 (& L)

B ik 2021

B EER

AP w2021

Major Investor Relations Events Participated by the Company in 2021

Conference
Jefteries Asia Forum
ESG EM Corporate Day

28th Annual CITIC CLSA Flagship

Investors’ Forum

Haitong International Debt Capital

Markets Forum
2021 Asian Credit Conference

Credit Conference

2021 China Conference
2021 China Investment Conference

China Investor Conference 2021
(Virtual)

China Conference 2021

Twentieth Annual Asia Pacific

Summit

Nomura Investment Forum 2021
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The board of directors (the “Board”) presents the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in property development and property investment. The
activities and particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are shown under
note 53 to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s
turnover and operating profit for the year by principal activities is set out in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report and notes 5

and 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the
“Chairman’s Statement” and the “Management Discussion and Analysis” Sections
of this annual report, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income on page 185.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on the
Group’s future business development are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” sections of this annual report.
Description of possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing
can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement” of this annual report. In addition,
discussions on the Group’s environmental protection policies and performance,
and the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group, and relationships with employees, customers,
suppliers and major stakeholders will be set out in the 2021 Environmental,
Social and Governance Report of the Company published separately from this
annual report. The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group
are set out in note 49(b) to the consolidated financial statements. Particulars of
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the
financial year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 55 to the consolidated
financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the “Performance Highlights”,
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this

annual report.
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PAYMENT OF FINAL DIVIDEND AND BONUS ISSUE

The Board recommends the payment of the Proposed Final Dividend of RMB5.7
cents per share for 2021. The Proposed Final Dividend declared in RMB is
proposed to be paid in Hong Kong dollars equivalent to HK7 cents per share,
which is based on the average middle rate of RMB to Hong Kong dollars as
announced by the People’s Bank of China for the five business days preceding the

date of the Annual Results Announcement for 2021.

Subject to the approval of the Proposed Final Dividend by the shareholders at
the annual general meeting to be held on Wednesday, 8 June 2022 (the “2022
AGM”), the Proposed Final Dividend will be payable in cash. It is expected that
the cheques for cash dividends will be sent on Wednesday, 31 August 2022 to
the shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
on Wednesday, 22 June 2022.

The Board recommends the Proposed Bonus Issue on the basis of four (4) Bonus
Shares for every one hundred (100) existing shares held by the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on Wednesday, 22
June 2022.

The Proposed Bonus Issue is conditional upon the passing of the relevant
resolution(s) at the 2022 AGM and the Listing Committee of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) granting the listing of
and permission to deal in the Bonus Shares. A circular containing details of the
Proposed Bonus Issue will be despatched to the shareholders on or about Friday,
29 April 2022.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(a) For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 2 June
2022 to Wednesday, 8 June 2022, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to determine the
identity of members who are entitled to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM, all
share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged for registration with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 17121716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 1 June 2022.

(b) For determining the entitlement to the Proposed Final Dividend and
the Bonus Share

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 21 June
2022 to Wednesday, 22 June 2022, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to qualify for
the Proposed Final Dividend and the Bonus Share, all share transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Monday, 20 June 2022.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during

the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set

out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

SENIOR NOTES AND CORPORATE BONDS

Details of senior notes and corporate bonds of the Company during the year are

set out in notes 34 and 35 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of the movement in reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are respectively set out on pages 187 and 387 of this annual report. In
respect of the Company, the amount of its reserves available for distribution
under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands as at 31 December 2021 was

approximately RMB35,346 million.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings are set out in the “Management Discussion and Analysis”

section of this annual report and note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

On 2 March 2021, the Company redeemed the 7.625% senior notes due 2021
at maturity in full at their outstanding principal amount of US$240,400,000
together with interest accrued to maturity date and such senior notes were

cancelled and delisted from the Stock Exchange.

On 23 April 2021, the Company redeemed the 6.875% senior notes due 2021
at maturity in full at their outstanding principal amount of US$292,697,000
together with interest accrued to maturity date and such senior notes were

cancelled and delisted from the Stock Exchange.

On 10 May 2021, the Company commenced offer to purchase for cash with
respect to the outstanding principal amount of US$300,000,000 7.625% senior
notes due 2023 (the “February 2019 Notes”), in accordance with the terms and

conditions set out in an offer to purchase dated 10 May 2021 (the “Offer”).

The Offer was completed on 17 May 2021. The final aggregate amount paid by
the Company to holders who accepted the Offer of a total of US$57,939,000
in principal amount of the February 2019 Notes, was approximately
US$61,274,435.60 (the “Accepted Notes”). Immediately after completion of the
Offer and cancellation of the Accepted Notes, an aggregate principal amount of
US$242,061,000 of the February 2019 Notes remains outstanding.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES (Coninued)

On 10 June 2021, the Company redeemed the February 2019 Notes in full at
their outstanding principal amount of US$242,061,000 at the redemption price
equal to 103.8125% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, to (but not including) the redemption date. Such February 2019

Notes have been withdrawn from listing on the Stock Exchange.

Between 7 October 2021 and 17 December 2021, the Company repurchased
the 5.5% senior notes due January 2022 (the “January 2017 Notes”) in the open
market in an aggregate principal amount of US$79,900,000 (the “Repurchased
Notes”), representing 13.66% of the aggregate principal amount of the January
2017 Notes originally issued. The Repurchased Notes have been cancelled in

accordance with the terms and conditions of the January 2017 Notes.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities (whether on

the Stock Exchange or not) during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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RIGHTS ISSUE

On 9 November 2021, the Company announced a proposed rights issue on the
basis of one rights share (the “Rights Share”) for every twenty existing Shares
then held at the subscription price of HK$4.00 per Rights Share (the “Rights
Issue”). The Directors consider that the Rights Issue provides a good opportunity
for the Group to strengthen its capital base without incurring debt financing cost
and to enhance its financial position, while at the same time the Rights Issue will
enable the Shareholders to participate in the future development of the Group.
Therefore, the Directors are of the view that it is in the interests of the Company

and the Shareholders as a whole to raise capital through the Rights Issue.

The Rights Issue was completed on 29 December 2021, and 418,239,071 fully-
paid Rights Shares were allotted and issued accordingly. The gross proceeds
raised from the Rights Issue was approximately HK$1,673 million and the net
proceeds was approximately HK$1,665 million. The net price per Rights Share is
approximately HK$3.98. The closing price per Share on 9 November 2021 (being
the date on which the terms of Rights Issue were fixed) is HK$3.95.

The intended use and the actual use of the net proceeds raised from the Rights

Issue are set out below:

B2 BESRH

THZE—HE  FoHE—HIE
B g am CE R REFEH
Utilised Unutilised
Amount for amount as at amount as at
intended use 31 December 2021 31 December 2021
(H &) (H &) (HEET)
(HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million)
() WERZAMEN WA () Acquisition of land(s) in Yangtze River
AL - UEEE D Delta area, or as capital resetve to capture
ESridnd 4o similar business development opportunities 1,498.5 - 1,498.5
Gi) ME—MAEEME > GFES (i) General corporate purposes including
T R AR G D marketing and sales promotion costs
T & as well as administrative expenses 166.5 - 166.5

A - T 1S SOH B 1%
e e g -

R R e — 5 G R > FE2 AN F]
B A —%F _-—F+—HLH » =&
T—4E+F T HEHE FE T —ET A
“FNHAAE  MEAAFHINA —
T4+ AN H R o

As at the date of this report, the net proceeds raised from the Rights Issue have
been fully utilised as intended.

For further information in relation to the Rights Issue, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 9 November 2021, 7 December 2021 and
28 December 2021 and the prospectus of the Company dated 6 December 2021.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND TAX RELIEF

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Association, or the law of Cayman Islands being the jurisdiction in which the
Company is incorporated under which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the Company’s

securities.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. LIN Zhong (Chairman)

Mr. LIN Wei (Vice-chairnan)

Mr. LIN Feng (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CHEN Dongbiao

Mr. YANG Xin (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. WANG Wei

(resigned on 14 December 2021)
Mr. JIANG Dagiang

(appointed on 14 December 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. GU Yunchang
(resigned on 14 December 2021)
Mr. ZHANG Yongyue
Mr. TAN Wee Seng
Ms. LIN Caiyi
(appointed on 14 December 2021)
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors shall retire from office by rotation at annual general meeting and be
eligible for re-election. Furthermore, the Company’s Articles of Association
requires that any Director appointed by the Board at any time to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting and shall be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. Accordingly, Mr. LIN Feng, Mr. CHEN Dongbiao and Mr. TAN Wee
Seng shall retire from office by rotation at the 2022 AGM of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Each of Mr. JIANG Dagqiang
and Ms. LIN Caiyi, who was appointed by the Board as Director after the 2021
annual general meeting respectively, shall hold office until the 2022 AGM and

shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-executive

Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company and each of the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) has signed an appointment letter with the Company.
The appointment of all the Directors is for a period of three years and shall
continue thereafter until being terminated by either party giving not less than
six months’ (in case of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng, being
executive Directors) or three months’ (in case of Mr. CHEN Dongbiao and
Mr. YANG Xin, being executive Directors, Mr. JIANG Dagqiang, being non-
executive Director, and Mr. ZHANG Yongyue, Mr. TAN Wee Seng and Ms.

LIN Caiyi, being independent non-executive Directors) prior written notice.

None of the Directors who are proposed for election or re-election at the 2022
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable within
one year by the Company without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors, the
management shareholders of the Company nor their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business that competed
or might compete with the business of the Group. In particular, Mr. LIN
Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng, being the executive Directors and the
controlling shareholders of the Company, declared that they did not engage in
business competed or might compete with the business of the Group during
the year and they have complied with the undertakings given under the Deed
of Non-competition as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 13
November 2012. The independent non-executive Directors did not notice any

incident of non-compliance of such undertakings.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out in the

“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section of this annual report.

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS UNDER RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING
RULES

As at the date of this annual report, the Group entered into a number of loan
agreements or facility letters containing covenants relating to specific performance
of the controlling shareholders of the Company (the “Loan Agreements”) which
were subject to announcement disclosure under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules
and requirements of disclosure in this annual report under Rule 13.21 of the

Listing Rules, the details of which are set out below:

(i) On 14 August 2019, the Company as borrower, and certain offshore
subsidiaries of the Company as original guarantors, entered into a facility
agreement with Hang Seng Bank Limited as the bookrunner, the original
lender, the facility agent and the security agent in relation to a term loan
facility of up to US$50,000,000 equivalent for a term of forty-two months

after the first utilization date.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS UNDER RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING
RULES (Continued)

(i1)

(iii)

On 28 August 2019, the Company as borrower, and certain offshore
subsidiaries of the Company as original guarantors, entered into a
facility agreement with China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation
Limited as facility agent, together with a group of financial institutions
as original lenders. The facility agreement refers to a USD and HKD
transferrable term loan facility in an aggregate initial amount of
approximately US$365,000,000 (with a greenshoe option of an additional
US$135,000,000 (or its equivalent in HKD)). The initial term loan facility
is divided into two tranches as follows: (i) the tranche A is a term loan
facility in an aggregate principal amount of US$160,000,000; and (ii)
the tranche B is a term loan facility in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$1,598,000,000. The final repayment date for both the Tranche A and
the Tranche B shall be the date falling forty-two months after the relevant

first utilization date.

On 3 April 2020, the Company as borrower, and certain offshore
subsidiaries of the Company as original guarantors, entered into a facility
agreement with The Hongkong Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
as facility agent, together with a group of financial institutions as original
lenders. The facility agreement refers to a USD and HKD transferrable
term loan facility in an aggregate initial amount of approximately
US$382 million (with a greenshoe option of an additional US$318 million
(or its equivalent in HKD)). The initial term loan facility is divided into
two tranches as follows: (i) the tranche A is a term loan facility in an
aggregate principal amount of US$275 million; and (ii) the tranche B is a
term loan facility in an aggregate principal amount of HK$834 million.
The final repayment date for both the tranche A and the tranche B shall be
the date falling 42 months after the relevant first utilization date.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS UNDER RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING
RULES (Continued)

@iv)

)

On 28 December 2020, the Company as borrower and certain financial
institutions as lenders, among others, entered into a facility agreement in
relation to certain term loan facility in the aggregate principal amounts of
US$145 million and HK$1.688 billion for a term of 42 months.

On 16 July 2021, the Company as borrower and certain financial
institutions as lenders, among others, entered into a facility agreement
in relation to certain term loan facility in the aggregate initial principal

amount of HK$2,798,000,000 for a term of forty-two months.

Pursuant to the Loan Agreements as above-mentioned, it is required that:

Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng as controlling
shareholders of the Company, together with their respective family
members, their family trust and the companies beneficially owned by
them have to collectively maintain a minimum percentage of beneficial
ownership of the entire issued share capital of the Company. As at the date
of this annual report, such minimum percentage of beneficial ownership

required under the loan agreements mentioned above was 40%.

any one of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng shall remain as

the chairman of the Board.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(I) 2012 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 9 October 2012
(the “2012 Share Option Scheme”), the Directors may invite participants to take
up options at a price determined by the Board provided that it shall be at least
the highest of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date on which an offer is made by the Company to
the grantee (which date must be a business day, “Offer Date”); (b) a price being
the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the Offer Date; and (c) the nominal value of the share of the Company
on the Offer Date. The 2012 Share Option Scheme had a life of 10 years but it
was terminated at the annual general meeting of the Company on 27 April 2016.
No further options shall thereafter be granted under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme but the options which had been granted during its life shall continue to
be valid and exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue and in all other
respects the provisions of the 2012 Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force

and effect.

The purpose of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is to motivate the Directors,
senior management and employees to optimize their future contributions to the

Group and reward them for their past contribution.

The participants of the share option scheme include any Directors (including
executive Directors, non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors) and employees of any member of the Group and any advisers,
consultants, distributors, contractors, contract manufacturers, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business partners, service providers of
any member of the Group who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, have

contributed or will contribute to the Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (consinued)

(I) 2012 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed
577,000,000 Shares, representing 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as
at the date of adoption of the 2012 Share Option Scheme.

The maximum entitlement for any one participant is that the total number of
the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted under the
2012 Share Option Scheme to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of Shares in issue unless otherwise approved by the shareholders at a

general meeting of the Company.

The options already granted may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
2012 Share Option Scheme at any time during the option period which had been
determined and notified by the Board to the grantees at the time of making an
offer which should not expire later than 10 years from the Offer Date. The offer
should remain open for acceptance for a period of 14 days from the Offer Date.

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1.00.

There is no share option granted but not yet exercised under the 2012 Share

Option Scheme during the year under review.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(II) 2016 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A new share option scheme (the “2016 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by
the Company at the annual general meeting held on 27 April 2016. The 2016
Share Option Scheme has a life of 10 years from 27 April 2016 and the remaining
life of the 2016 Share Option Scheme is approximately 4 years.

The purpose of the 2016 Share Option Scheme is to motivate the participants of
the scheme, including Directors (including executive Directors, non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) and employees of the Group
to optimize their future contributions to the Group and reward them for their
past contribution.

Pursuant to the 2016 Share Option Scheme, the Directors may invite participants
to take up options at a price determined by the Board in its absolute discretion
but in any event shall not be less than the highest of (a) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on
the date on which an offer is made by the Company to the grantee (“Date of
Grant”) which must be a business day; (b) the average closing price of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the 5
business days immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and (c¢) the nominal
value of the Shares.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the 2016 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not, in aggregate exceed 666,640,389 Shares,
representing 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date of adoption
of the 2016 Share Option Scheme unless the Company obtains an approval from
the shareholders to refresh the limit and as at 31 December 2021, a total of
157,029,389 shares (representing approximately 1.79% of the existing issued
shares of the Company as at the date of this annual report) may be issued upon
exercise of all options which had been granted and yet to be exercised under the
2016 Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each grantee under the 2016 Share Option Scheme (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the total number of Shares in issue for the time being unless otherwise
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting of the Company.

The options may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the 2016 Share
Option Scheme at any time during the option period which may be determined
and notified by the Board to the grantees at the time of making an offer which
shall not expire later than 10 years from the Date of Grant. The offer shall remain
open for acceptance for a period of 7 days from the Date of Grant. The amount
payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1.00.
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Yl B it ) ) SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Conined)
AR AE R ARYE N BERETT  Particulars of the movement of options granted under the 2016 Share Option
B O IR B IR B A Scheme in respect of the year under review are as follows:
e Directors
TR
Number of Share Options
Ehd ] Wi
ook bl

(#70) (#70)
(Wb (W)

Exercise Brercise  _%_—f TR X X % S 3

Price before Price after ==l #il filk (Hik2) iy e

adjustment  adjustment WAL Granted Exercised Adiusted  RAERE KA WAL

4 it bk (HKS) (HK$)  Outstanding during during  during the year Lapsed  Outstanding

Name Capacity Date of Grant (Note 2) (Note2) a1 Jan 2021 the year the year (Note2) during the year  at 31 Dec 2021

s HafEN  CEUEAZE ol 4B 1045000 - - 6339 - L0913
Mr. LIN Feng Beneficial Owner 3 October 2017 HK$4.340 HK$4.314

B HafEN  CEUEASE ol 44T 7500000 - 6m00) 29576 - A5T6
Mr. CHEN Dongbizo Beneficial Owner 3 October 2017 HK$4.340 HK$4314

ik afEN  CEUEAZE ol 44T 5100000 - (1,200000) 3661 -
Mr. YANG Xin Beneficial Owner 3 October 2017 HK$4.340 HK$4.314

BERRE M) EREAA  CF-LEHACH ik T 300,000 - (105,000) - (195,000) -
Mr. GU Yunchang (Note 1) Beneficial Owner 3 October 2017 HK$4.340 NA

TAERL FREAN  CF-LEFASE ol s 300,000 - - 1820 - 301820
Mr. ZHANG Yongyue Beneficial Owner 3 October 2017 HK$4.340 HK$4314

BrfEm: FREEN  CF-LETASE ol 4 400,000 - - 242 - 402426

Mr. TAN Wee Seng Beneficial Owner 3 October 2017 HK$4.340 HKS$4314
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
Employees
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Number of Shate Options
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Price before Price after ~A—H #i itk (it2) +ZAZt—H
adjustment adjustment WAL Granted Exercised Adjusted AR Sl WA
AN 4 (HKS$) (HKS)  Outstanding during during  during the year Lapsed  Outstanding
Date of Grant Capacity (Note 2) (Note2)  atlJan 2021 the year the year (Note2)  during the year ~ at 31 Dec 2021
SE-LETAZE EREAA 4400 434BT 188595750 - @030 833,067 146,445,567
3 October 2017 Beneficial Owner HK$4.340 HK$4.314
BT - Notes:

1.
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1.

5.

Mr. GU Yunchang resigned as an independent non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 14 December 2021.

As a result of the completion of rights issue on 29 December 2021, the exercise price per share has
been adjusted from HK$4.34 to HK$4.314, and the number of shares to be issued upon exercise of
the share options has been adjusted from 156,082,500 to 157,029,389, with effect from 29 December
2021.

As for the share option granted on 3 October 2017, the closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange immediately before the date on which the options were granted was HK$4.35. The options
are exercisable in 4 tranches of 5%, 10%, 20% and 65%, respectively, from 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2022.

No option was granted or cancelled during the year.

The weighted average closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange immediately before the dates
on which the options were exercised during the year was HK$6.72.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 18 December 2017 (the “Adoption Date”), the Board adopted a share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”), pursuant to which the shares to be awarded
(the “Awarded Share(s)”) will be purchased by Prosperity Fountain (PTC)
Limited as the trustee (the “Trustee”) of the trust declared in the Trust Deed
dated 18 December 2017 entered into by the Trustee (as restated, supplemented
and amended from time to time) (the “Trust Deed”) from the open market or
subscribed from the Company as new shares out of cash contributed by the Group
and held on trust for the Eligible Person(s) selected by the Board for participation
in the Share Award Scheme (the “Selected Participants”) until such Shares are
vested with the relevant Selected Participants in accordance with the provisions of
the Share Award Scheme. The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to recognise
the contributions by certain any of the (i) key management personnel including
Directors and senior management of the Group; and (ii) employee of any member
of the Group (the “Eligible Persons”, other than any Eligible Person who is
resident in a place where the award of the Awarded Shares and/or the vesting and
transfer the Awarded Shares pursuant to the terms of the Share Award Scheme is
not permitted under the laws or regulations of such place, or in the view of the
Board or the Trustee (as the case may be), compliance with applicable laws or
regulations in such place makes it necessary or expedient to exclude such Eligible
Person as excluded persons) and to provide them with incentives in order to
retain them for the continual operation and development of the Group. The Share
Award Scheme shall be subject to administration of the Board and the Trustee in

accordance with the rules of the Share Award Scheme and the Trust Deed.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board, the Share
Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of 10 years commencing on

the Adoption Date.

The Board shall not make any further award of Awarded Shares which will result
in the total number of Awarded Shares exceeding 5% of the number of issued
shares of the Company from time to time. The maximum number of shares which
may be awarded to a Selected Participant under the Share Award Scheme in any

12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the number of the Shares in issue.

The summary of the principal terms and conditions of the Share Award Scheme
were set out in the Company’s announcements dated 18 December 2017 and 29
December 2017.

The Company has not awarded any Share under the Share Award Scheme
during the year. Details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in note 46 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions of the Directors and
chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), which (a) were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred
to therein; or (¢) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares:

e/ Ak

A B 3 H
Number of Shares/ [if:q:4 £
underlying Shares (%)

i kA Bh /T pursuant to % Interest
HEHEH  Name of Director Name of Corporation Capacity/Nature of interest share options (Approximate)
MAFELE  Mr LIN Zhong /NG AREEEMALLA (kD) 1,311,302,213 14.93%

Company Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 1)

NG AR RER LRI AL (Hf7E2) 2,617,787,024 29.80%

Company Co founder of a discretionary trust (Note 2)

A &% LUNLEE)) 8,267,270 0.09%

Company Beneﬁc1a Owner (Note 3)

S R A A PR ] ZHHIE S (k10 160,000 40%

([ B )
LingYu International Group Interest of controlled corporation (Note 16)
Co., Ltd. (“LingYu
International”)
BRI REREARAR AL () 40,000,000 40%
(TERIER )
Shanghai Lvming Construction  Interest of controlled corporation (Note 17)
Technology Co., Led.*
(“Lvming Construction
Technology”)
SR THIRE AR A /] R B A (Wt s) 363,180,000 20.71%
(R ACHE E IRES SE A
FRAAR]) (TR ACH AR )
CIFI Ever Sunshine Services Incerest of controlled corporation (Note 18)
Group Limited (formerly
known as Ever Sunshine
Lifestyle Services Group
Limited ) (“CIFI Ever Sunshine
Services”)

T IR SR S () 406,820,000 23.19%

CIFI Ever Sunshine Services Interest of controlled corporation (Note 19)

TR A T AR AR E L RAI L AT 20) 1,000,000 0.06%

CIFI Ever Sunshine Services Co-founder of a discretionary trust (Note 20)

T IR Al (FE21) 153,689,750 8.76%

CIFI Ever Sunshine Services

Other (Note 21)
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FEREETEESBANANE S DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
(#45) IN SECURITIES (Continued)
T TR A BAH B B 3 G U AT ¢ ()

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares: (Continued)

Ty, R IR

fE R e B I
Number of Shares/ [Ep2in i
underlying Shares (%)

dHAR B/ BT pursuant to % Interest
H4E4  Name of Director Name of Corporation Capacity/Nature of interest share options (Approximate)
MR Mr LIN Wei /N AREEFERANLA (M 3k4) 485,050,187 5.520%
Company Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 4)
NG 2HEMEFEMAILA (BEES) 210,000,000 2.39%
Company Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 5)
/N RHEMF LR AL (F3E2) 2,617,787,024 29.80%
Company Co-founder of a discretionary trust (Note 2)
HEE SRR 16) 160,000 40%
LingYu International Interest of controlled corporation (Note 16)
T s S S () 406,820,000 23.19%
CIFI Ever Sunshine Services Interest of controlled corporation (Note 19)
TR KA MR A HERF SRR A AT 20) 1,000,000 0.06%
CIFI Ever Sunshine Services Co-founder of a discretionary trust (Note 20)
k%S S ol (FE22) 516,869,750 29.47%
CIFI Ever Sunshine Services Other (Note 22)
Mgt Mr. LIN Feng /N AHEF TR (M 3E6) 228,814,509 2.61%
Company Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 6)
AN ARG AR A (M) 2,617,787,024 29.80%
Company Co-founder of a discretionary trust (Note 2)
LN S B (W) 9,277,380 0.11%
Company Interest of controlled corporation (Note 7)
LN Bada A (fks) 6,147,750 0.07%
Company Beneﬁcm Owner (Note 8)
/N BREA A (k) 1,051,339 0.01%
Company Beneﬁc1a Owner (Note 9)
HEE S B (T 16) 160,000 40%
LingYu International Interest of controlled corporation (Note 16)
TR F MR PR BREAL (H5E23) 153,689,750 8.76%
CIFI Ever Sunshine Services Incerest of controlled corporation (Note 23)
T s ZHE RS (W) 406,820,000 23.19%
CIFI Ever Sunshine Services Interest of controlled corporation (Note 19)
T B SRR LML AL A 20) 1,000,000 0.06%
CIFI Ever Sunshine Services Co-founder of a discretionary trust (Note 20)
TR K F AR HAb (ffzE24) 363,180,000 20.71%
CIFI Ever Sunshine Services Other (Note 24)
BRAYEE  Mr CHEN Dongbiao A/ =gk 2N 310 21,983,000 0.25%
Company Beneﬁc1a Owner (Note 10)
AT TR A (M 3ko) 4,904,576 0.06%
Company Beneﬁcm Owner (Note 9)
TR KA MR FaA A (k) 28,000 0.002%

CIFI Ever Sunshine Services

Beneficiary Owner (Note 25)
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HREFEATBABMNE S DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS

(#45) IN SECURITIES (Continued)
AR B AH BB W4T & 2 (4 Long positions in the shares and underlying shares: (Continued)
e,/ RN B
AR By H
Number of Shares/ R
underlying Shares (%)
i kA Bh /BT pursuant to % Interest
H5EH  Name of Director Name of Corporation Capacity/Nature of interest share options (Approximate)
WOEE  Mr YANG Xin AR A A () 11,973,761 0.14%
Company Beneﬁcta Owner (Note 11)
A FAHEA N SR LR (W3E12) 1,563,827 0.02%
Company Beneﬁaal Owner and Interest of his Spouse (Note 12)
AT HAHEA A () 3,923,661 0.04%
Company Beneﬁcia Owner (Note 9)
TR TR A A (ko) 880,000 0.05%
CIFI Ever Sunshine Services Beneﬁcmry Owner (Note 26)
BHERLE  Mr JJANG Dagiang A/ FHfEA A (H33) 2,116,986 0.02%
Company Beneficial Owner (Note 13)
FokfEE  Mr ZHANG Yongyue A/ Hin A A (rE14) 1,822,684 0.02%
Company Beneﬁcta Owner (Note 14)
AT H A A () 301,820 0.003%
Company Beneficial Owner (Note 9)
BEAIEE  Mr TAN WeeSeng  A/AT] A A (L) 1,569,810 0.02%
Company Beneﬁcm Owner (Note 15)
A Hah A A (fto) 402,426 0.005%

Company Beneﬁcm Owner (Note 9)
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(%)

T ey B A B JBe U R 4 AT+ ()

BT -

1. FLAF AR By (TR By 1) by it E A PR | (T 4
B FA o BB RTRT AT IRA Hh 7k 8
A RA R (TR ) 2 EHEA - AR 2R
BEATIEA AT B Sun Success Trustf5Z 5t AStandard
Chartered Trust (Singapore) Limited (' Standard
Chartered Trust J) 5 #SCTS Capital Pre. Led. ([ SCTS
Capital |) 47 Sun Success Truse 3 FRHISEAE (1F 2%
PAEERZ T N) BiStandard Chartered Truse (fF 325
N =% — AR HURSL I RHERS RE
Sun Success Trustf 32t NELFERH SeA4: AT K
IR E o BRI RO R G X VER > Mo
A= (FE £5Sun Success Truse MBI N) HiAH 25 i 5 B
FEA 91,311,302, 2130 A R i o

2. FAEE R Ay R AR B A PR F ([ 548 ) 154 1R
AR 2T AT IRAS 2 A PR A R (238
i) RGEHA - M- EEEN2TC BT’
2 FI AR R R 45 7T Y 32 5E AStandard Charcered
TrustZEMSCTS Capical i o MRIRFIRIE FETI4k
o - MRS A RO el (fF R IS T )
HiStandard Chartered Truse (TEA 3256 N) A =%
— AR H AR AL ARG RE o ARIRE
AR REMY 2 i NBLIEMR A B 2E ~ M etk R pkie
SELERIAT T KRR o IR RE T K M B e )5
XVER » Mepogie - Mo Bobkig st A (fF Sy Ak
IR A IRAE GEMSL RIS N) 2 B B F i S AR 7
A 142,617,787, 0248 003 A R4 -

3. %A Iy MR R S LA -

4. AZSE I IR A PR R ([, ) F5 A - s8R
M2 AT AR LW Assec Holdings Limited
(TLW Assec)) 2EHA > MLW AssecHIRIBE
FEATIRA F el ey A A S 2 (FF J I B 32 77 ) B
Credit Suisse Trust Limited ([ Credit Suisse Trust])
(1 By 32 5E N Jih % — )\ AR BT (9 A A ST 4
A o MR RCH 2 45 N ELIE MR SE AR 1 T Rk
WA o MRS IR S B RO VIR - M
A OFF J A5 wC I BISL ) AR Ay i s BR 5 11
485,050,187 Moy Pl A7 i i o

5. FZAE I — TR G R > oz 4 NEEAR
FESEAE M T o ARPERE S5 SN B e EE XV I
AR e A By Tk SO E RERIRISE N » BRI > 3R
P85 RO R AR 2 1A 5% % 210,000,000 8 B
A AR -

6. #% % W% ¥ H Rain-Mountain Limited ([ Rain-
Mountain]) F#H ° Rain-MountainfJ 2 HBE 517
i/ i Beauty Fountain Holdings Limited ([ Beauty
Fountain|) & %A MBeauty FountainfJ 42 #f
£ B 17 AR JI 1 Sun-Mountain Truse 52 56 A
Standard Chartered Trust/ZEHESCTS Capitalff A ©
Sun-Mountain TruscJIMRIE fe A (1 £ B 4% T
N) BlScandard Chartered Trusc (1F 2532 5E ) it
SR TERA T BRI 2R T o Sun-
Mountain Trustf3Z fi NLFEARIE e A4 1925 TR
R E o MRS X B BB XVER » MidsE
A (FEF5Sun-Mountain Truse/WEISE ) B2
Rain-Mountaind 47 [)228,814,509 B 3 FP AT HE

5o

7. #% % & 0yt Towin Resources Limited ([ Towin
Resources )) 47 © Towin Resources/ 2B EL 51T
JBAS bR S e A BT o

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES (Continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares: (Continued)
Notes:

1. These shares of the Company (the “Shares”) are held by Ding Chang Limited (“Ding Chang”). The
entire issued share capital of Ding Chang is wholly owned by Eternally Success International Limited
(“Eternally Success”), the entire issued share capital of which is in turn held by Standard Chartered
Trust (Singapore) Limited (“Standard Chartered Trust”) as the trustee of the Sun Success Trust via
SCTS Capital Pte. Ltd. (“SCTS Capital”). The Sun Success Trust is a discretionary trust set up by
Mzr. LIN Zhong as settlor and Standard Chartered Trust as trustee on 11 May 2012. The beneficiary
objects of the Sun Success Trust include certain family members of Mr. LIN Zhong. Mr. LIN Zhong as
founder of the Sun Success Trust is taken to be interested in the 1,311,302,213 Shares held by Ding
Chang pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

2. These Shares are held by Rosy Fortune Investments Limited (“Rosy Fortune”). The entire issued share
capital of Rosy Fortune is wholly owned by Gentle Beauty Assets Limited (“Gentle Beauty”), the
entire issued share capital of which is in turn held by Standard Chartered Trust as the trustee of the
LIN’s Family Trust via SCTS Capital. The LIN’s Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up jointly by
Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng as settlors and Standard Chartered Trust as trustee
on 11 May 2012. The beneficiary objects of the LIN’s Family Trust include certain family members
of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng. Each of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr.
LIN Feng as a co-founder of the LIN’s Family Trust is taken to be interested in the 2,617,787,024
Shares held by Rosy Fortune pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

3. These Shares are directly held by Mr. LIN Zhong.

4. These Shares are held by Eminent Talent Limited (“Eminent Talent”). The entire issued share capital
of Eminent Talent is wholly owned by LW Asset Holdings Limited (“LW Asset”), the entire issued
share capital of which is in turn held by a discretionary trust set up by Mr. LIN Wei as settlor and
Credit Suisse Trust Limited (“Credit Suisse Trust”) as the trustee in 2018. The beneficiary objects of
the said trust include certain family members of Mr. LIN Wei. Mr. LIN Wei as founder of the said
trust is taken to be interested in the 485,050,187 Shares held by Eminent Talent pursuant to Part XV
of the SFO.

5. These Shares are held by a family trust, the beneficiaries of which include Mr. LIN Wei’s children.
Mr. LIN Wei is the founder of the said family trust within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO and
therefore, he is taken to be interested in these 210,000,000 Shares by virtue of the SFO.

6. These Shares are held by Rain-Mountain Limited (“Rain-Mountain”). The entire issued share capital
of Rain-Mountain is wholly owned by Beauty Fountain Holdings Limited (“Beauty Fountain”), the
entire issued share capital of which is in turn held by Standard Chartered Trust as the trustee of the
Sun-Mountain Trust via SCTS Capital. The Sun-Mountain Trust is a discretionary trust set up by
Mr. LIN Feng as settlor and Standard Chartered Trust as trustee on 11 May 2012. The beneficiary
objects of the Sun-Mountain Trust include certain family members of Mr. LIN Feng. Mr. LIN Feng as
founder of the Sun-Mountain Trust is taken to be interested in the 228,814,509 Shares held by Rain-
Mountain pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

7. These Shares are held by Towin Resources Limited (“Towin Resources”). The entire issued share
capital of Towin Resources is wholly owned by Mr. LIN Feng.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES (Continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares: (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

10.

11.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

19.

20.

These Shares are directly held by Mr. LIN Feng.

The relevant Directors were granted options to subscribe for such number of Shares under the 2016
Share Option Scheme. Details of the Directors’ interests in share options are set out in the paragraph
headed “Share Option Schemes” in this report.

These Shares are directly held by Mr. CHEN Dongbiao.

These Shares are directly held by Mr. YANG Xin.

These Shares are directly held by Mr. YANG Xin and his spouse.
These Shares are directly held by Mr. JIANG Daqiang.

These Shares are directly held by Mr. ZHANG Yongyue.

These Shares are directly held by Mr. TAN Wee Seng.

These shares of LingYu International include 100,000 shares held by Smart City Assets Limited (“Smart
City Assets”) and 60,000 shares held by Loyal Most Enterprises Limited (“Loyal Most Enterprises”), of
which Mr. LIN Zhong, together with Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng, are regarded to have control
by virtue of the SFO.

These shares of Lvming Construction Technology are held by Shanghai Xuhui Enterprise
Development Co., Led.* (b N A 2E 8% R A RN F) of which Mr. LIN Zhong is regarded to
have control by virtue of the SFO.

These shares of CIFI Ever Sunshine Services are held by Elite Force Development Limited (“Elite
Force Development”). The entire issued share capital of Elite Force Development is owned as to 50%
by Mr. LIN Zhong, 25% by Mr. LIN Wei and 25% by Mr. LIN Feng. Therefore, Mr. LIN Zhong
is regarded to have control in these 363,180,000 shares of CIFI Ever Sunshine Services held by Elite
Force Development by virtue of the SFO. With effect from 30 June 2020, Elite Force Development
has entrusted Spectron Enterprises Limited (“Spectron Enterprises”) to exercise voting rights of these
363,180,000 shares of CIFI Ever Sunshine Services. Elite Force Development continues to own these
363,180,000 shares of CIFI Ever Sunshine Services as the beneficial owner and be entitled to the
dividends, distributions and all other rights and benefits attaching to such shares.

These shares of CIFI Ever Sunshine Services are held by Spectron Enterprises, the entire issued share
capital of which is in turn held by Xu Sheng Limited which is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. Therefore, each of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng is taken to be
interested in the 406,820,000 shares of CIFI Ever Sunshine Services held by Spectron Enterprises
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO. Regarding the entrusted voting arrangement, please refer to note 18
above.

These shares of CIFI Ever Sunshine Services are held by Rosy Fortune. The entire issued share capital
of Rosy Fortune is wholly owned by Gentle Beauty, the entire issued share capital of which is in turn
held by Standard Chartered Trust as the trustee of the LIN’s Family Trust via SCTS Capital. The
LIN’s Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up jointly by Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr.
LIN Feng as settlors and Standard Chartered Trust as trustee on 11 May 2012. The beneficiary objects
of the LIN’s Family Trust include certain family members of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr.
LIN Feng. Each of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng as a co-founder of the LIN’s
Family Trust is taken to be interested in these 1,000,000 shares of CIFI Ever Sunshine Services held
by Rosy Fortune pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES (Continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares: (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

These shares of CIFI Ever Sunshine Services are held by Best Legend Development (PTC) Limited
(formerly known as Best Legend Development Limited, “Best Legend”), a private trust company
limited by shares incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 20 April 2018 and wholly owned
by Mr. LIN Feng. Best Legend was set up as a special purpose vehicle to hold shares of CIFI Ever
Sunshine Services as the trustee of Best Legend Trust (“Best Legend Trust”), which is a trust established
on 19 October 2018, with Best Legend appointed as its trustee, for the purpose of a share incentive
scheme to be adopted by CIFI Ever Sunshine Services at least six months after its listing. Thereafter,
a share award scheme was adopted by Best Legend on 18 June 2019 as a means to recognise the
contribution of, and to motivate and incentivise, the key management of CIFI Ever Sunshine Services
and its subsidiaries (the “CIFI Ever Sunshine Group”), including directors, senior management,
employees, and persons who made special contribution to CIFI Ever Sunshine Group. Mr. LIN Zhong,
Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng signed an acting in concert deed on 6 August 2018. By virtue of
the SFO, Mr. LIN Zhong is deemed to be interested in the 153,689,750 shares of CIFI Ever Sunshine
Services held by Best Legend.

These shares of CIFI Ever Sunshine Services are held by Best Legend and Elite Force Development.
Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng signed an acting in concert deed on 6 August 2018.
By virtue of the SFO, Mr. LIN Wei is deemed to be interested in the 363,180,000 shares of CIFI Ever
Sunshine Services held by Elite Force Development and the 171,683,500 shares of CIFI Ever Sunshine
Services held by Best Legend. With effect from 30 June 2020, Elite Force Development has entrusted
Spectron Enterprises to exercise voting rights of these 363,180,000 shares of CIFI Ever Sunshine
Services. Elite Force Development continues to own these 363,180,000 shares of CIFI Ever Sunshine
Services as the beneficial owner and be entitled to the dividends, distributions and all other rights and
benefits attaching to such shares.

These shares of CIFI Ever Sunshine Services are held by Best Legend. As stated in note 21 above, Mr.
LIN Feng is deemed to be interested in the 153,689,750 shares of CIFI Ever Sunshine Services held by
Best Legend pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

These shares of CIFI Ever Sunshine Services are held by Elite Force Development. Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr.
LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng signed an acting in concert deed on 6 August 2018. By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. LIN Feng is taken to be interested in the 363,180,000 shares of CIFI Ever Sunshine Services held
by Elite Force Development which is controlled by Mr. LIN Zhong (as stated in note 18 above). With
effect from 30 June 2020, Elite Force Development has entrusted Spectron Enterprises to exercise
voting rights of these 363,180,000 shares of CIFI Ever Sunshine Services. Elite Force Development
continues to own these 363,180,000 shares of CIFI Ever Sunshine Services as the beneficial owner and
be entitled to the dividends, distributions and all other rights and benefits attaching to such shares.

These shares of CIFI Ever Sunshine Services are directly held by Mr. CHEN Dongbiao.

These shares of CIFI Ever Sunshine Services are directly held by Mr. YANG Xin.
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HREFEATBABMNE S DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS

(45) IN SECURITIES (Continued)
BRI REDRS ¢ Interests in the debentures:
ek ziyil |
5% A R
PN
BRI
Approximate
percentage of
the aggregate
outstanding
principal
amount of
the relevant
HEAR P RER B 2 A debenture
Name of Y4 E1iRE Principal amount of issued
EYER Name of Director Corporation Capacity/Nature of interest relevant debentures held (%)
M e Mr. LIN Zhong E:/NG| A EEFERILEA A (B K 2) 1,000,0005 TG 0.18%
Company Co-founder of a discretionary trust (Notes 1 and 2) US$1 million
NS Mr. LIN Wei PN/ RERE FE SR A1 (k1 K2) 1,000,00037C 0.18%
Company Co-founder of a discretionary trust (Notes 1 and 2) US$1 million
PN Mr. LIN Feng PN/ ARG FEM SR A1 (k1 K2) 1,000,00037C 0.18%
Company Co-founder of a discretionary trust (Notes 1 and 2) US$1 million
/NG AR R AR aE3 Red) 15,000,000% ¢ 5%
Company Interest of controlled corporation (Notes 3 and 4)  US$15 million
/NG RRER MBI (53 Kes) 1,000,0003 7 0.33%
Company Founder of a discretionary trust (Notes 3and 5)  US$1 million
e Mr. YANG Xin /NG| Biia N (ke k) 1,200,000 7T 0.24%
Company Beneficial Owner (Notes 6 and 7) US$1.2 million
Ff5E Notes:
1. AN T T FAFE— [ BT R W ARSI 1. The 6.0% senior notes due 2025 with the aggregate principal amount of US$567 million were issued
A 4 #%H567,000,000 5 TC6.09% 15 58 B4 ([ =% by the Company in January 2020 (the “2020 January USD Senior Notes”), which are listed on the

TFAE— A TR ) WAEBAS i B e Stock Exchange.
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2. TEARIEA A2 51,000,0005 T —F ZRFE—H
FIUEIEEE o RN AT TIRA R EE
E A MR > TS5 R Y 2R T BT IR A
AR B F 0% A5 5T 52 5T AStandard Chartered Trust
BHASCTS Capical FiA o MR KRG sL oMb 5E
A MR e A TR S AR (R B B EE AR T N B
Standard Chartered Trust (1E 25325 N) it =& —
R A — HILFE SRR FE o MR R
ALt N AR ek - MR de A bR S
AT RIER A o HRRE S B B e plsExv
o MR - M e ORI e AR (FF B AR R
FIRAG FER L AL ) & B A 2 i AR R
MR TR R BRI A SR A R

)

3. AR T F LN BT AR &
300,000,000 JG > 7R LR A 5 4F5.375% > i
TERR AT b T A B ek K AR I ([ —F— L AF
JNHKAGESR]) »

4. Towin ResourcesHE A A< 8:%H15,000,000 TEH) %
—-L4E/\H K AT © Towin Resources 2 H
BEATIROAS MG SR A

5. Rain-Mountain# A 7 441,000,000 5% 011 — %
—HA4E )\ H KA RS  Rain-Mountainff) 2 HBEL
FEATIEAS i Beauty Fountain® &HEA > MMiBeauty
Fountain i 4278 © %5 17 B A< Il fH Sun-Mountain
Trust % #E AStandard Chartered TrustE#i SCTS
CapitalFFf ° Sun-Mountain TrustJIFRIGSEA (1F
Py ERZ T N) BilScandard Chartered Truse (fE/y
ZREN R ZFE-TAERLA +— L 2 HEE
#C ° Sun-Mountain Trustf)5Z %t A LSEARIGSEAE 1
HTRIEME o RIEE S T SR BIEEXVER -
MRIGESEAE (7 Z5Sun-Mountain Truse M8 ) #4571
Fy A Rain-Mountaind A 5% % — LA /UH KA
A R I A B R P A S o

6 ALTRELE—AR-EAFAR
AT I % Z AR B ) A 42 A58 585,000,000 3 7T
5.5% B PR > W AE S B (f =& — L
A FETEREE] R F 4+ A
=t—H > ZF L HEE RN R
TR AR G 48 55505,100,000 3 TG ©

7. WA TR A R RR i R E R B
TR

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES (Continued)

Interests in the debentures: (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

2. Rosy Fortune owned the principal amount of US$1 million of 2020 January USD Senior Notes. The
entire issued share capital of Rosy Fortune is wholly owned by Gentle Beauty, the entire issued share
capital of which is in turn held by Standard Chartered Trust as the trustee of the LIN’s Family Trust
via SCTS Capital. The LIN’s Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up jointly by Mr. LIN Zhong,
M. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng as settlors and Standard Chartered Trust as trustee on 11 May 2012.
The beneficiary objects of the LIN’s Family Trust include certain family members of Mr. LIN Zhong,
Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng. Each of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng as a co-
founder of the LIN’s Family Trust is taken to be interested in this principal amount of 2020 January
USD Senior Notes held by Rosy Fortune pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

3. The senior perpetual capital securities were issued by the Company in August 2017 with the
aggregate principal amount of US$300 million at a distribution rate of 5.375% per annum (the “2017
August Perpetual Securities”) which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

4. Towin Resources owned the principal amount of US$15 million of 2017 August Perpetual Securities.
The entire issued share capital of Towin Resources is owned by Mr. LIN Feng.

5. Rain-Mountain owned the principal amount of US$1 million of 2017 August Perpetual Securities.
The entire issued share capital of Rain-Mountain is wholly owned by Beauty Fountain, the entire issued
share capital of which is in turn held by Standard Chartered Trust as the trustee of the Sun-Mountain
Trust via SCTS Capital. The Sun-Mountain Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. LIN Feng as
settlor and Standard Chartered Trust as trustee on 11 May 2012. The beneficiary objects of the Sun-
Mountain Trust include certain family members of Mr. LIN Feng. Mr. LIN Feng as founder of the
Sun-Mountain Trust is taken to be interested in this principal amount of 2017 August Perpetual
Securities held by Rain-Mountain pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

6. The 5.5% senior notes due 2022 with the aggregate principal amount of US$585 million were issued
by the Company in January 2017 and October 2018 (the “2017 January USD Senior Notes”), which
are listed on the Stock Exchange. As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate outstanding principal
amount of the 2017 January USD Senior Notes was US$505.1 million.

7. These 2017 January USD Senior Notes are directly held by Mr. YANG Xin.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at 31 December 2021, the following
shareholders, other than those disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’
and Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities” in this Directors’ Report section
of this annual report, had notified the Company of its interests and/or short
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
and so far as the Directors were aware, persons other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company, who had an interest or a short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

55 336 B e A7 B 8 w0 i RE A 3R
=
R g - Long positions in the shares:
AR W]
AT B
BERE 2
Approximate
percentage of
Befr ¥ H the issued shares
EL 3y Ty 20y RERR PR Number of  of the Company
Name of substantial shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares (%)
CE&EE AR B A (BT L) 2,617,787,024 29.80%
Gentle Beauty Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1)
AR A N (FfE) 2,617,787,024 29.80%
Rosy Fortune Beneﬁc1al owner (Note 1)
Eternally Success A R A (B E2) 1,311,302,213 14.93%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2)
UI=] A N (F5E2) 1,311,302,213 14.93%
Ding Chang Beneﬁc1al owner (Note 2)
Standard Chartered Trust ZEEN (P 5E3) 4,157,903,746 47.34%
Trustee (Note 3)
SCTS Capital Z PR B LS (Ff5E3) 4,157,903,746 47.34%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3)
LW Asset AR B A (B EE4) 485,050,187 5.52%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 4)
HER A N (i 5E4) 485,050,187 5.52%
Eminent Talent Beneﬁc1al owner (Note 4)
Credit Suisse Trust ZRb N (i 5E4) 485,050,187 5.52%
Trustee (Note 4)
o B P22 (B (4R 1) By A PR SR RS (BGES) 546,866,577 6.23%
Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of  Interest in controlled corporation (Note 5)
China, Ltd.
B P N TR R B 0 A PR HamEA A (Ko 545,000,000 6.21%

Ping An Life Insurance Company of
China, Ltd.

Beneficial owner (Note 6)
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2. MEMEICEATRA D KR EEHEA > MoK
T A8 EL BT AS I B Sun Success Trustf5Z5E
AStandard Chartered TrustZE#SCTS Capitalfffi °
Sun Success TrustIMR A SEA (fE B BFERE T N) B
Standard Charcered Trust (1E 53 5CN) A =& —T4F
T+ —H AL R HERS T o Sun Success TrustHI 3
s AR I TR IR A -

3. EHE RS AR A 192,617,787,024 BB -
S BFRA91,311,302,213 /BB 43 B2 i Rain-Mountain
FA 19228,814,509 BBy © Rain-Mountainff) 278
LT IRA HiBeauty Fountain® & #HEF > TMBeauty
Fountain 2l 2 AT A Al H1Sun-Mountain Truscft
%t AStandard Chartered Trust#E#SCTS Capital§
A ° Sun-Mountain Trusc/ ISR (1 & B EHZ T
N)BiStandard Chartered Trust (1E /532 5C ) it %
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (Continued)

Notes:

1. The entire issued share capital of Rosy Fortune is wholly owned by Gentle Beauty, the entire issued share
capital of which is in turn held by Standard Chartered Trust as the trustee of the LIN’s Family Trust
via SCTS Capital. The LIN’s Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up jointly by Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr.
LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng as settlors and Standard Chartered Trust as trustee on 11 May 2012. The
beneficiary objects of the LIN’s Family Trust include certain family members of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr.
LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng.

2. The entire issued share capital of Ding Chang is wholly owned by Eternally Success, the entire issued
share capital of which is in turn held by Standard Chartered Trust as the trustee of the Sun Success Trust
via SCTS Capital. The Sun Success Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. LIN Zhong as settlor and
Standard Chartered Trust as trustee on 11 May 2012. The beneficiary objects of the Sun Success Trust
include certain family members of Mr. LIN Zhong.

3. These include 2,617,787,024 Shares held by Rosy Fortune, 1,311,302,213 Shares held by Ding Chang
and 228,814,509 Shares held by Rain-Mountain. The entire issued share capital of Rain-Mountain is
wholly owned by Beauty Fountain, the entire issued share capital of which is in turn held by Standard
Chartered Trust as the trustee of the Sun-Mountain Trust via SCTS Capital. The Sun-Mountain Trust is a
discretionary trust set up by Mr. LIN Feng as settlor and Standard Chartered Trust as trustee on 11 May
2012. The beneficiary objects of the Sun-Mountain Trust include certain family members of Mr. LIN
Feng.

4. The entire issued share capital of Eminent Talent is wholly owned by LW Asset, the entire issued share

capital of which is in turn held by a discretionary trust set up by Mr. LIN Wei as settlor and Credit
Suisse Trust as trustee in 2018. The beneficiary objects of the said trust include certain family members
of Mr. LIN Wei.

5. These Shares are held by Ping An of China Asset Management (Hong Kong) Company Limited (“Ping
An HK Asset Management”) on behalf of certain clients (including but not limited to Ping An Life
Insurance Company of China, Ltd. (“Ping An Life Insurance”)) as investment manager as at 31 December
2021. Ping An HK Asset Management is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Ping An Insurance
Overseas (Holdings) Limited (“Ping An Overseas Holdings”), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd. (“Ping An Group”). Accordingly, Ping An HK
Asset Management and Ping An Overseas Holdings are exempt from disclosure of interest under the
SFO. Furthermore, Ping An Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“Ping An Asset Management”), a subsidiary
of Ping An Group, also holds interest on behalf of certain clients (including but not limited to Ping
An Life Insurance) as investment manager but not yet constituted to notifiable interest. Ping An Asset
Management could exercise the voting rights of such Shares at its full discretion and exercise its rights
on investment, operation and management independently and also entirely independent from Ping An
Group as investment manager on behalf of its clients. Accordingly, Ping An Group has adopted a non-
aggregating approach and is regarded to be exempted from disclosure of interest in such Shares as a
holding company.

6. These Shares are held by Ping An HK Asset Management as investment manager on behalf of Ping An
Life Insurance as of 31 December 2021. Ping An Life Insurance is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ping An
Group. Accordingly, Ping An Group is deemed to be interested in such Shares.

I51
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the 2012 Share Option Scheme and the 2016 Share Option Scheme,
at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities including
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to which the Company, its holding company or
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or his connected entities had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year under review.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contracts of significance (i) in relation
to the Group’s business; or (ii) for provision of services to the Company (or any of
its subsidiaries) by a controlling shareholder (or any of its subsidiaries) between
the Company (or any of its subsidiaries) and a controlling shareholder (or any of
its subsidiaries) subsisted during or at the end of the year under review.

SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year under review, the aggregate amount of purchase and sales
attribution to the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers together accounted
for less than 10% of the Group’s total purchases and sales respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders, which to the
knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued
shares, had an interest in the share capital of any of the five largest suppliers and
customers.

The Group keeps a high standard in selecting reputable and reliable suppliers
and contractors, in order to meet our own quality, safety, environmental and
product criteria. During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date
of this report, the Group maintained good relationship with its suppliers and
contractors.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review and up to the date of this annual report, the Group

entered into the following transactions as described below with persons who are

regarded as “connected persons” pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

@

Formation of Joint Venture in relation to a Property Development
Project in Chengdu, the PRC

On 7 July 2021, certain subsidiaries of the Company, namely CIFI
Group Co., Led.* JEKEEE FRBAYA PR/ F] (“CIFI (PRC)”), Chengdu
Xuhui Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.* USHER B A 25 A PR
F]) (“Chengdu Xuhui”), Chengdu Xingsa Enterprise Management Co.,
Led.* (CHRBLTE 4 3645 LA FRA 7)) (“Chengdu Xingsa”), Chengdu
Xinghuangfei Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.* OB BILIE A 2
A FRZA Fl) (“Chengdu Xinghuangfei”) and Chengdu Wenjiang Yufu
Wansheng Railway City Development Co., Ltd.* ORAENET fa R
WA T 25 A BR/A 7)) (“Wenjiang Project Company”) entered into
a cooperation agreement (the “Wenjiang Cooperation Agreement”) with
Henderson China Properties Limited (“Henderson China Properties”) and
WL s e
BHEEA FR/A A]) (“Yixing Hengbao”), for the formation of joint venture
to develop two pieces of land located at Zone 8, 10, 11 of Wansheng

Yixing Hengbao Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* (‘H.

Community, Liucheng Street, Wenjiang District, Chengdu, Sichuan
Province, the PRC (|8 0 )11 5 BSCAR rhy Tk VWi AVD S f 2 B s
10 ~ 1141) and Zone 1 and 11 of Qianjin Community (now known as
Tianfu Jiayuan Community), Zone 5 of Xuefu Community, Tianfu Street
and Zone 10 and 11 of Wansheng Community, Liucheng Street, Wenjiang
District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province, the PRC (FPER P9 )] B R T TR
[ R A AEAL [ - 1L BRI K L) - B AL s 2 ~
WA AL IR 10 ~ 114) (che “Wenjiang Site”).

Pursuant to the Wenjiang Cooperation Agreement, Yixing Hengbao
proposed to acquire 50% of equity interest in Chengdu Xinghuangfei
by way of capital increase. Upon the completion of the capital increase,
Wenjiang Project Company would be indirectly owned as to 50% by
the Company (through Chengdu Xingsa) and 50% by Henderson China
Properties (through Yixing Hengbao). Chengdu Xinghuangfei and
Wenjiang Project Company would be consolidated into the financial
statements of the Group and Wenjiang Project Company would undertake
the development of the Wenjiang Site. The capital commitment intended
to be payable by the Group for the transactions contemplated under the
Wenjiang Cooperation Agreement was estimated to be approximately
RMB1,405.6 million.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

@

D

Formation of Joint Venture in relation to a Property Development
Project in Chengdu, the PRC (Continued)

Henderson Land is a substantial shareholder of certain subsidiaries of the
Company, which do not fall within the ambit of insignificant subsidiaries
under Rule 14A.09(1) of the Listing Rules. Henderson China Properties
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Henderson Land Development Company
Limited (“Henderson Land”). Accordingly, Henderson China Properties
is an associate of Henderson Land and a connected person of the Company
at its subsidiary level. The transactions contemplated under the Wenjiang
Cooperation Agreement therefore constituted connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Formation of Joint Venture in relation to a Property Development
Project in Foshan, the PRC

On 15 July 2021, the Company, together with its subsidiaries, namely
Guangzhou Xuhui Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.* (E% S E AR SE
A RAFD (“Guangzhou Xuhui”), Foshan Shengxinhong Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.* (ﬁ%m%{%‘ﬂ%%i&% BHEE A PR/ 7)) (“Foshan
Shengxinhong”) and Foshan Zhuojing Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.*
Cfdf 1Ly T 538 55 b BH 3% A FRZA F) (“Foshan Project Company”) entered
into a cooperation agreement (the “Foshan Cooperation Agreement”) with
Henderson (China) Investment Company Limited (“Henderson China
Investment”) and Shanghai Hengchang Real Estate Development Co.,
Led.* (FIE1EE B2 BRARA ) (“Shanghai Hengchang”), for the
formation of joint venture to develop a site located at the west side of
Fokai Highway, both sides of Zhihui Road, Chancheng District, Foshan,
Guangdong Province, the PRC* (F[2] 5 5 s L1 7488 daf [t A4 B 2 2k 1Y
) ~ 5 BX W) (che “Foshan Site”).

Pursuant to the Foshan Cooperation Agreement, Shanghai Hengchang
proposes to acquire 50% of equity interest in Foshan Shengxinhong by way
of capital increase. Upon the completion of the capital increase, Foshan
Project Company would be indirectly owned as to 50% by the Company
(through Guangzhou Xuhui) and 50% by Henderson China Investment
(through Shanghai Hengchang). Foshan Shengxinhong and Foshan Project
Company would be consolidated into the financial statements of the Group
and Foshan Project Company would undertake the development of the
Foshan Site. The capital commitment currently intended to be payable by
the Group for the transactions contemplated under the Foshan Cooperation

Agreement is estimated to be approximately RMB719.4 million.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

an

(11I1)

Formation of Joint Venture in relation to a Property Development
Project in Foshan, the PRC (Continued)

Henderson Land is a substantial shareholder of certain subsidiaries of the
Company, which do not fall within the ambit of insignificant subsidiaries
under Rule 14A.09(1) of the Listing Rules. Henderson China Investment
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Henderson Land. Accordingly, Henderson
China Investment is an associate of Henderson Land and a connected person
of the Company at its subsidiary level. The transactions contemplated
under the Foshan Cooperation Agreement therefore constituted connected

transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Formation of Joint Venture in relation to a Property Development
Project in Tianjin, the PRC

On 20 July 2021, the Company, together with its subsidiaries, namely
* (AU R AR S AT
FRZNF]) (“Beijing Xuhui”), Tianjin Changhong Real Estate Information
Consultancy Co., Ltd.* CRE BB = fh 5 B g s A RA 7)) (“Tianjin
Changhong”) and Tianjin Zhuokai Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* (K
A eLE) 5 2 B AT FR /A F]) (the “Tianjin Project Company”) entered

into a cooperation agreement (the “Tianjin Cooperation Agreement”) with

Beijing Xuhui Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.

Henderson China Investment and Beijing Henghua Property Management
Co., Led.* (AL HUIE FEY) 2E8 A PR /N Fl) (“Beijing Henghua”), for the
formation of joint venture to develop the three parcels of land respectively
located at the intersection of Chenghang Street and Kunyu Road, Dongli
District, Tianjin, the PRC (H7[8 Ky 717 B8 [ A2 i 8 B RS A B 22 1)
and northeast of the intersection of Dengzhou Road and Chengxin Street,
Dongli District, Tianjin, the PRC* (48] K 4 17 5RE [ 65 ] 5 B 7
WA I H AR (che “Tianjin Site”). Tianjin Changhong succeeded in the
bidding of the Tianjin Site at total land consideration of approximately
RMB2,194 million.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(III) Formation of Joint Venture in relation to a Property Development

Project in Tianjin, the PRC (Continued)

Pursuant to the Tianjin Cooperation Agreement, Beijing Henghua
proposes to acquire 50% of equity interest in Tianjin Changhong by way
of capital increase. Upon the completion of the capital increase, Tianjin
Project Company would be indirectly owned as to 50% by the Company
(through Beijing Xuhui) and 50% by Henderson China Investment
(through Beijing Henghua). Tianjin Changhong and Tianjin Project
Company would be consolidated into the financial statements of the Group
and Tianjin Project Company would undertake the development of the
Tianjin Site. The capital commitment currently intended to be payable by
the Group for the transactions contemplated under the Tianjin Cooperation

Agreement is estimated to be RMB1,097 million.

Henderson Land is a substantial shareholder of certain subsidiaries of the
Company, which do not fall within the ambit of insignificant subsidiaries
under Rule 14A.09(1) of the Listing Rules. Henderson China Investment
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Henderson Land. Accordingly, Henderson
China Investment is an associate of Henderson Land and a connected person
of the Company at its subsidiary level. The transactions contemplated
under the Tianjin Cooperation Agreement therefore constituted connected

transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(IV) Formation of Joint Venture in relation to a Property Development

Project in Chongqing, the PRC

On 2 August 2021, the Company, together with its subsidiaries, namely
Chongqing Hezhiqi Business Information Consultancy Co., Led.* (5 &
R TR TS E E A BRA ) (“Chongqing Hezhiqi”), Chongqing
Changhe Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* (E%E/ﬁ?ﬁﬂﬁﬁ BHEEH
FRZ\E]) (“Chongqing Changhe”) and Chongqing Zhuoping Real Estate
Development Co., Led.* (8 B 515 1 7 B #5474 1) (“Chongqing
Project Company”) entered into a cooperation agreement (the “Chongqing
Cooperation Agreement”) with Henderson China Investment and Boham
Estate (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* (%?—%ﬁﬂ% (D) HBRA T (“‘Boham
Estate”), for the formation of joint venture to develop a site located at Site
E01-8-5, E01-9, E01-8-6 and E09-1-1, Sub-section E, Liang Lu Zu Tuan,
Yubei District, Chongqing, the PRC* (H |5 55 B 117 ifiy I [ 19 i 4H B E 7>
[ E01-8-5, E01-9, E01-8-6, E09-1-1H13}) (the “Chongging Site”).

Pursuant to the Chongqing Cooperation Agreement, Boham Estate
proposed to acquire 50% of equity interest in Chongqing Project Company
by way of capital increase. Upon the completion of the capital increase,
Chongqing Project Company would be owned as to 50% by the Company
(through Chongqing Hezhiqi and Chongqing Changhe) and 50% by
Boham Estate. Chongqing Project Company would be consolidated into the
financial statements of the Group and would undertake the development
of the Chongqing Site. The capital commitment currently intended to
be payable by the Group for the transactions contemplated under the

Chongqing Cooperation Agreement is estimated to be RMB1,000 million.

Henderson Land is a substantial shareholder of certain subsidiaries of the
Company, which do not fall within the ambit of insignificant subsidiaries
under Rule 14A.09(1) of the Listing Rules. Henderson China Investment
and Boham Estate are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of Henderson
Land. Accordingly, Henderson China Investment and Boham Estate are
associates of Henderson Land and connected persons of the Company at
its subsidiary level. The transactions contemplated under the Chongqing
Cooperation Agreement therefore constituted connected transaction of the

Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

V)

Formation of Joint Venture in relation to a Property Development
Project in Wuhan, the PRC

On 23 August 2021, the Company, together with its subsidiaries, namely
Wuhan Changzhuo Enterprise Management Consultancy Co., Ltd.* (i
B s SEE AR A FRITAE A W) (“Wuhan Changzhuo”), Wuhan
Dekangxing Enterprise Management Consultancy Co., Led.* ({274 52 Bl
A 2548 PRER G BN ) (“Wuhan Dekangxing”) and Wuhan Xuchuang
Real Estate Co., Ltd.* GRIEBA B 2ARA T (the “Wuhan Project
Company”) entered into a cooperation agreement (the “Wuhan Cooperation
Agreement”) with Henderson China Properties and Wuhan Xufa
Enterprise Management Consultancy Co., Led.* (T B A 2E S PR )
AR T] (“Wuhan Xufa”), for the formation of joint venture to develop
a site located at the east side of Second Jinnan Road and the north side of
North Yuanboyuan Road, Dongxihu District, Wuhan, Hubei Province,
the PRC* ([ 18 1 75 8 728 T SRV 300 [ < g — S SR ~ [l ol ) L B
PLdk) (the “Wuhan Site”).

Pursuant to the Wuhan Cooperation Agreement, Wuhan Xufa proposes
to acquire 50% of equity interest in Wuhan Dekangxing by way of capital
increase. Upon the completion of the capital increase, Wuhan Project
Company would be indirectly owned as to 50% by the Company (through
Wuhan Changzhuo) and 50% by Henderson China Properties (through
Wuhan Xufa). Wuhan Dekangxing and Wuhan Project Company would
be consolidated into the financial statements of the Group and Wuhan
Project Company would undertake the development of the Wuhan Site.
The capital commitment currently intended to be payable by the Group for
the transactions contemplated under the Wuhan Cooperation Agreement is
estimated to be RMB950 million.

Henderson Land is a substantial shareholder of certain subsidiaries of the
Company, which do not fall within the ambit of insignificant subsidiaries
under Rule 14A.09(1) of the Listing Rules. Henderson China Properties
is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Henderson Land. Accordingly,
Henderson China Properties is an associate of Henderson Land and a
connected person of the Company at its subsidiary level. The transactions
contemplated under the Wuhan Cooperation Agreement therefore
constituted connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(VI) Disposal of 30% Equity Interest in the Target Company

On 2 September 2021, Shanghai Changyu Real Estate Co., Led.* (i &
B EARAF) (“Shanghai Changyu”), an onshore subsidiary controlled
by the Company, Shanghai Jiadi Hotel Management Co., Led.* (L 7Af
FH 5 B P PR /A F)) (“Shanghai Jiadi”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Lingyu International Group Co., Ltd. ($H 8 B FRAE A [R
/N D) (“LingYu International), Ping An Real Estate Co., Ltd.* CFZE A8
EARAF]) and Shanghai Anbiao Management Consultancy Co., Led.*
(Lﬁﬂ*f?%—'}@%ﬁ@ﬁIKE/A\ﬁj)(“Shanghai Anbiao”) entered into a sale
and purchase agreement, pursuant to which (i) Shanghai Changyu agreed
to sell, and Shanghai Jiadi agreed to purchase the sale share, representing
30% equity interest in Shanghai Anbiao; and (ii) Shanghai Changyu agreed
to assign, and Shanghai Jiadi agreed to take the assignment of the sale loan
at a total consideration of RMB212,961,682.72 (subject to adjustments).

The Company indirectly owns 50% shareholding in LingYu International
which is not regarded as subsidiary of the Company. Mr. LIN Zhong,
Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng (through vehicles wholly-owned by
them) hold an aggregate of approximately 40% shareholding in LingYu
International. Shanghai Jiadi is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of LingYu International. LingYu International and Shanghai Jiadi are
therefore connected persons of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, disposal of 30% equity interest in Shanghai
Anbiao constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under the

Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(VII) Formation of Joint Venture in relation to a Property Development

Project in Dongguan, the PRC

On 8 September 2021, the Company, together with its subsidiaries, namely
Shenzhen Xuhui Industrial Holdings Co., Ltd.* (EYBEE EERA
FRZNE]) (“Shenzhen Xuhui”), Dongguan Xingji Business Consultancy
Co., Ltd.* (RIZHL P64 FR/A F]) (“Dongguan Xingji”) and
Dongguan Zhuoxin Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* (HZET HERE
HbEE BB FR/A 7)) (the “Dongguan Project Company”) entered into a
cooperation agreement (the “Dongguan Cooperation Agreement”) with
Henderson China Properties and Green Charm Investment Limited (“Green
Charm”), for the formation of joint venture to develop a site located at
the north side of Mingzhu Road and the west side of Jinxing Road, Shijie
Town, Dongguan, Guangdong Province, the PRC* (PEER AT
BB ER I AL ~ £ 22 B LAPY) (the “Dongguan Site”).

Pursuant to the Dongguan Cooperation Agreement, Green Charm proposes
to acquire 50% of equity interest in Dongguan Xingji by way of capital
increase. Upon the completion of the capital increase, Dongguan Project
Company would be indirectly owned as to 50% by the Company (through
Shenzhen Xuhui) and 50% by Henderson China Properties (through Green
Charm). Dongguan Xingji and Dongguan Project Company would be
consolidated into the financial statements of the Group and Dongguan
Project Company would undertake the development of the Dongguan
Site. The capital commitment currently intended to be payable by the
Group for the transactions contemplated under the Dongguan Cooperation
Agreement is estimated to be RMB482,800,000.

Henderson Land is a substantial shareholder of certain subsidiaries of the
Company, which do not fall within the ambit of insignificant subsidiaries
under Rule 14A.09(1) of the Listing Rules. Henderson China Properties
is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Henderson Land. Accordingly,
Henderson China Properties is an associate of Henderson Land and a
connected person of the Company at its subsidiary level. The transactions
contemplated under the Dongguan Cooperation Agreement therefore
constituted connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules.
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(VIII) Formation of Joint Venture in relation to a Property Development
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Project in Suzhou, the PRC

On 28 January 2022, the Company, together with its subsidiaries, namely
Suzhou Xingruo Business Consultancy Co., Led.* (B M B35 P55 10
H R T] (“Suzhou Xingruo”) and Suzhou Xingli Business Consultancy
Co., Led.* (RN BT B 55 77004 FRA 7)) (“Suzhou Xingli”) encered
into a cooperation agreement (the “Suzhou Cooperation Agreement”) with
Henderson China Investment and Boham Estate, for the formation of joint
venture to develop site 2021-WG-15 located in Xiangcheng Districe,
Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC* (1B VLER & fk M 7 AH 0% 7 5 b
2021-WG-155EH1) (cthe “Suzhou Site”).

Pursuant to the Suzhou Cooperation Agreement, Boham Estate proposes
to acquire 50% of equity interest in Suzhou Xingli by way of capital
increase. Upon the completion of the capital increase, Suzhou Xingli will
be owned as to 50% by the Company (through Suzhou Xingruo) and
50% by Boham Estate. Suzhou Xingli will crease to be a subsidiary of the
Company and become an associate of the Company, the financial results
of which will no longer be consolidated in the financial statements of the
Group. The key assets of Suzhou Xingli is the 22% direct equity interest
in Suzhou Xiangmao Properties Co., Ltd.* (ﬁﬂ‘l*ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁlﬁﬁﬂ),
the project company undertaking the development of the Suzhou Site. The
capital commitment currently intended to be payable by the Group for the
transactions contemplated under the Suzhou Cooperation Agreement is
estimated to be RMB551.38 million.

Henderson Land is a substantial shareholder of certain subsidiaries of the
Company, which do not fall within the ambit of insignificant subsidiaries
under Rule 14A.09(1) of the Listing Rules. Henderson China Investment
and Boham Estate are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of Henderson
Land. Accordingly, Henderson China Investment and Boham Estate are
associates of Henderson Land and connected persons of the Company at
its subsidiary level. The transactions contemplated under the Suzhou
Cooperation Agreement therefore constituted connected transaction of the

Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Disclosure under Rule 14A.72 of the Listing Rules

With regard to the related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the year as disclosed under note 48 to the consolidated financial statements, the
following transactions stated in the said note 48 fall within the definition of
connected transactions or continuing connected transaction under the Listing

Rules:

(1) the transactions of (i) rental income; (ii) design and renovation services
income; and (iii) apartment leasing and renovation services income stated in
note 48(a) constituted a connected transaction of the Company. However,
since all the relevant percentage ratios in respect of the transactions were
less than 0.1%, the transactions fell within de-minimis exemption under
14A.76 of the Listing Rules and were exempted from the annual review,

disclosure and shareholders” approval requirements;

(ii)  the transactions of (i) property management and other services expense;
and (ii) prefabricated construction materials supply and related installation
and technical services expense stated in note 48(a) constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company, details of which have been
disclosed below under the paragraph headed “Continuing Connected

Transactions”.

The Company has complied with applicable disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the aforesaid transactions and the
transactions stated in section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in

this report.

Other related party transactions taken place in 2021 which were disclosed in
note 48 to the consolidated financial statements did not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter

14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, the Group continued to transact the following

continuing connected transactions which fell within the ambit of Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules:

(1)

Property Management Services between the Company and CIFI Ever
Sunshine Services

A property management services master agreement (the “2016 Property
Management Services Master Agreement”) was entered into between CIFI
Group Co., Ltd.* (“CIFI (PRC)”) (for itself and on behalf of the other
members of the Group) and Shanghai Yongsheng Property Management
Joint Stock Co., Ltd.* (“Yongsheng Property”) on 30 December 2016
and as amended and supplemented on 22 November 2018 in relation to
provision of property management services by Yongsheng Property and its
subsidiaries (the “Yongsheng Group”) to the Group for a term of 3 years
from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019 (both days inclusive).

Since Yongsheng Property was then a connected person of the Company,
the transactions contemplated under the property management services
master agreement constituted continuing connected transactions of the

Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 30 December
2016, the annual aggregate maximum amounts of service fee payable by
the Group to the Yongsheng Group under the 2016 Property Management
Services Master Agreement for the three financial years ending 31
December 2019 were set for RMB300 million, RMB400 million and
RMB450 million, respectively. As amended and supplemented by the
supplemental agreement to the 2016 Property Management Services
Master Agreement, the cap for the two months ended 31 December 2018
was adjusted to RMB42 million and the annual cap for the year ending 31
December 2019 would be adjusted to RMB200 million.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

@

Property Management Services between the Company and CIFI Ever
Sunshine Services (Continued)
The annual caps were determined with reference to, among others, the

following factors:

(a)  the historical amounts of the property management services
provided by the Yongsheng Group to the Group under the property
management services agreements entered into between CIFI (PRC)
and Yongsheng Property (directly or through their respective
subsidiaries);

(b)  the expected scale of sale, area and number of the property projects of

the Group; and

(¢)  the property management services and standard being proposed by

the estate agents.

Pursuant to corporate restructuring, Yongsheng Property has became
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CIFI Ever Sunshine Services. In
contemplation of the expiry of the 2016 Property Management Services
Master Agreement on 31 December 2019, the Company and CIFI Ever
Sunshine Services, entered into a property management services master
agreement (the “2019 Property Management Services Master Agreement”)
on 11 November 2019 in relation to provision of property management
services by CIFI Ever Sunshine Services Group to the Group for a further
term of three years, which has commenced from 1 January 2020 to 31

December 2022 (both days inclusive).

CIFI Ever Sunshine Services is an associate of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN
Wei and Mr. LIN Feng, who are the executive Directors and controlling
shareholders of the Company. CIFI Ever Sunshine Services is therefore a
connected person of the Company and the transactions contemplated under
the 2019 Property Management Services Master Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

@

Property Management Services between the Company and CIFI Ever
Sunshine Services (Continued)

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 11 November
2019, the annual aggregate maximum amounts of service fee payable
by the Group to the CIFI Ever Sunshine Services Group under the 2019
Property Management Services Master Agreement for the three financial
years ending 31 December 2022 were initially set for RMB350 million

each year.

The Company and CIFI Ever Sunshine Services have further entered
into a supplemental agreement dated 5 November 2020 to amend and
supplement the 2019 Property Management Services Master Agreement,
pursuant to which, the annual caps for the three financial years ending 31
December 2022 in respect of the transactions contemplated thereunder
were revised to RMB480 million, comprising (a) RMB420 million each
year for property management services; onsite security, cleaning, greening
and customer services; and cleaning and housing inspection services
and other value-added services; and (b) RMBG60 million each year for

preliminary planning and design consultancy services.

The revised annual caps were determined with reference to the following

factors:

(a)  the actual transaction amount under the 2019 Property Management
Services Master Agreement for the nine months ended 30 September
2020;

(b)  the estimated revenue to be recognized in relation to the services
provided by the CIFI Ever Sunshine Services Group pursuant to

existing contracts; and

(¢)  the historical trend that more properties will be delivered and
more services will be required in the fourth quarter of one year as

compared to the first three quarters.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(i)

Prefabricated Construction Materials Supply

On 18 January 2017, CIFI (PRC) (for itself and on behalf of the other
members of the Group) and Shanghai Yipixi Construction Technology
Co., Ltd. (currently known as Shanghai Lvming Construction Technology
Co., Ltd.) entered into a prefabricated construction materials supply master
agreement (the “Prefabricated Construction Material Supply Agreement”),
pursuant to which Lvming Construction Technology agreed to supply
prefabricated construction materials and provide related installation and
technical services to the Group for a term of 3 years from 1 January 2017
to 31 December 2019 (both days inclusive).

Lvming Construction Technology is being held by CIFI (PRC) as to 30%
and the associates of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng as
to 70%. Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng are all executive
Directors and controlling shareholders of the Company. As such, Lvming
Construction Technology is an associate of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN
Wei and Mr. LIN Feng and hence, a connected person of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the Prefabricated Construction Materials Supply
Master Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the

Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 19 January 2017,
the annual aggregate maximum amounts of materials and services being
supplied and provided by Lvming Construction Technology payable by
the Group under the Prefabricated Construction Materials Supply Master
Agreement for the three financial years ending 31 December 2019 were set
for RMB200 million, RMB400 million and RMB500 million, respectively.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(i)

Prefabricated Construction Materials Supply (Continued)
The annual caps were determined with reference to the prevailing market
prices for the comparable goods and services and the expected scale of

development projects undertaken by the Group in 2017, 2018 and 2019.

The term of the continuing connected transactions under the Prefabricated
Construction Materials Supply Master Agreement has expired on
31 December 2019. The Group renewed the continuing connected
transactions under the Prefabricated Construction Materials Supply
Agreement for another three years commencing from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2022 by way of executing a renewal agreement of prefabricated
construction materials supply master agreement between CIFI (PRC) and

Lvming Construction Technology on 13 December 2019.

The transactions contemplated under the renewal agreement for
prefabricated construction materials supply constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 13 December
2019, the annual aggregate maximum amounts of materials and services
being supplied and provided by Lvming Construction Technology payable
by the Group under the renewal agreement for prefabricated construction
materials supply for the three financial years ending 31 December 2022
were set for RMB100 million, RMB150 million and RMB200 million,

respectively.

The annual caps have been determined with reference to the prevailing
market prices for then comparable goods and services and the expected

scale of development projects undertaken by the Group.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(iii)

Property Management Services between CIFI Ever Sunshine Services
and the Controlling Shareholders

On 22 November 2018, CIFI Ever Sunshine Services and the Controlling
Shareholders entered into a property management services master
agreement (the “2018 Controlling Shareholders Property Management
Services Master Agreement”), pursuant to which the CIFI Ever Sunshine
Services Group agreed to provide property management services, including
but not limited to (a) property management services for unsold properties,
car parking lots and the properties held by the Controlling Shareholders
and their associates (excluding the Group); (b) on-site securing, cleaning,
greening, as well as customer services to property sales offices; (c)
preliminary planning and design consultancy services; and (d) cleaning and
house inspection services to the property projects developed by the associates
of the Controlling Shareholders (excluding the Group) upon completion
of construction and before delivery of the same to homeowners, properties
owned by the Controlling Shareholders and other value-added services, for
a term commencing from the date on which dealings in the shares of Ever
Sunshine Lifestyle Services on the Main Board first commenced, being 17
December 2018, until 31 December 2020.

The fees charged for the services under the 2018 Controlling Shareholders
Property Management Services Master Agreement are determined after
arm’s length negotiations with reference to the market rate (taking into
consideration the location and the condition of the property project and
the scope of the property management service) and the prices charged by
the CIFI Ever Sunshine Services Group for providing similar services to

independent third parties.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(iii)

Property Management Services between CIFI Ever Sunshine Services
and the Controlling Shareholders (Continued)

For the two months ended 31 December 2018 and the year ended 31
December 2019, the maximum transaction amounts in respect of the
transactions contemplated under the 2018 Controlling Shareholders
Property Management Services Master Agreement were set for RMB20
million and RMB80 million, respectively. CIFI Ever Sunshine Services has
further entered into a supplemental agreement dated 25 September 2020
(the “Supplemental Property Management Services Master Agreement”)
with the Controlling Shareholders to revise the existing annual cap for the
year ending 31 December 2020 in respect of the transactions contemplated
under the 2018 Controlling Shareholders Property Management Services
Master Agreement from RMB90.0 million to RMB185.0 million,
determined with reference to the historical transaction amount thereunder

for the six months ended 30 June 2020.

CIFI Ever Sunshine Services has entered into a property management
services master agreement dated 25 September 2020 (the “2020 Controlling
Shareholders Property Management Services Master Agreement”) with
the Controlling Shareholders to renew the transactions contemplated
under the 2018 Controlling Shareholders Property Management Services
Master Agreement. CIFI Ever Sunshine Services has further entered into
a supplemental agreement dated 5 November 2020 with the Controlling
Shareholders to provide a breakdown of the annual caps originally set out in
the 2020 Controlling Shareholders Property Management Services Master

Agreement.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(iii)

Property Management Services between CIFI Ever Sunshine Services
and the Controlling Shareholders (Continued)

The revised proposed annual caps under the 2020 Controlling Shareholders
Property Management Services Master Agreement for the three financial
years ending 31 December 2023 are RMB190 million, RMB200 million
and RMB200 million in aggregate, comprising (a) RMB26 million,
RMB27 million and RMB27 million, respectively, for the provision of the
preliminary planning and design consultancy services; and (b) RMB164
million, RMB173 million and RMB173 million, respectively, for other
services, including (i) property management services for unsold properties,
car parking lots and the properties held by the associates of the Controlling
Shareholders (including the entities conducting property development
business in which the Group has non-controlling interest (not consolidated
as member of the Group), and the entities conducting other businesses,
and for the purpose of this paragraph headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, excluding the Group, collectively, the “Controlling
Shareholders Entities”); (ii) on-site security, cleaning, greening, as well
as customer services to property sales offices; and (iii) cleaning and house
inspection services to property projects developed by the Controlling
Shareholders Entities upon completion of construction and before delivery

of the same to homeowners, and other value-added services.

The proposed annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the
2020 Controlling Shareholders Property Management Services Master

Agreement were determined after considering the following factors:

(a)  the historical transaction amount under the 2018 Controlling

Shareholders Property Management Services Master Agreement;

(b)  the estimated revenue to be recognised based on the existing signed
contracts between the CIFI Ever Sunshine Services Group and the

Controlling Shareholders Entities;

(¢)  the expected volume of sale, size and number of the properties held
by the Controlling Shareholders Entities to be managed by the CIFI
Ever Sunshine Services Group based on the total gross floor area of
properties developed by the Controlling Shareholders Entities under
the CIFI Ever Sunshine Services Group’s management as of 30 June
2020; and
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Property Management Services between CIFI Ever Sunshine Services

and the Controlling Shareholders (Continued)

(d)  the expected demand of the Controlling Shareholders Entities for
property management services, the relevant property management
services and standard being proposed by the CIFI Ever Sunshine
Services Group, and the price to be charged by the CIFI Ever

Sunshine Services Group for the provision of such services.

CIFI Ever Sunshine Services is a subsidiary of the Company after the
Entrusted Voting Arrangement took effect. Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei
and Mr. LIN Feng are executive Directors and controlling shareholders of
the Company and therefore they are connected persons of the Company and
the transactions contemplated under each of the Supplemental Property
Management Services Master Agreement and the 2020 Controlling
Shareholders Property Management Services Master Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules.

Merchandise Procurement

On 22 April 2021, the Company entered into a merchandise procurement
framework agreement (the “Merchandise Procurement Framework
Agreement”) with CIFI Ever Sunshine Services, pursuant to which the
Group agrees to purchase from CIFI Ever Sunshine Services Group, and
CIFI Ever Sunshine Services Group agrees to procure for the Group,
the Relevant Goods needed from time to time in the ordinary course of
property development of the Group and for the property projects of the
Group for a term commencing from 22 April 2021 to 31 December 2023

(both days inclusive).

The annual aggregate maximum amounts of fee to be payable by the Group
to CIFI Ever Sunshine Services Group for the transactions contemplated
under the Merchandise Procurement Framework Agreement for the three
years ended 31 December 2023 were set for RMB86 million RMB110
million and RMB110 million respectively.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(iv) Merchandise Procurement (Continued)
In determining the annual caps, the Directors have considered the

following:

(a)  no historical amounts available as the Group has not entered into
any transactions in respect of goods procurement with CIFI Ever

Sunshine Services Group previously;

(b)  the estimated transaction amounts for the Relevant Goods to be
procured by CIFI Ever Sunshine Services Group for the Group for
each of the three years ended 31 December 2023, with reference to
the estimated number of development and investment projects of the

Group for which the goods procurement would be required; and

(¢)  the Group’s reference to the market price of same or comparable

goods in the open market.

As disclosed in the announcement dated 22 April 2021, CIFI Ever
Sunshine Services is a connected subsidiary of the Company under Rules
14A.16 of the Listing Rules by virtue of more than 10% of the voting
right in CIFI Ever Sunshine Services being held by Best Legend, and Best
Legend in turn is entirely held by Mr. LIN Feng, an executive Director
of the Company. Therefore, the transactions contemplated under the
Merchandise Procurement Framework Agreement constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

CONFIRMATION FROM THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDITOR

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed that
the above continuing connected transactions have been entered into in (i) the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial
terms or better; and (iii) according to the agreement governing the transactions
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the

Company as a whole.
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CONFIRMATION FROM THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDITOR (Continued)

For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
the auditor of the Company, has provided a letter to the Board, confirming
that nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the

continuing connected transactions mentioned above:

(i)  have not been approved by the Board,
(i)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by
the Group;

(iii) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(iv)  have exceed the respective annual cap.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION IN
RELATION TO SALES AGENCY SERVICES

On 23 December 2021, the Company entered into a sales agency services
framework agreement (the “2021 Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement”)
with CIFI Ever Sunshine Services, a connected subsidiary of the Company, to
extend the term of a sales agency services framework agreement dated 22 March
2019. Pursuant to the 2021 Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement, CIFI
Ever Sunshine Services Group would continue to provide sales agency services to
the Group in respect of unsold residential properties and car parking spaces in the
development projects of the Group for a further term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024 (both dates inclusive).

The annual aggregate maximum amounts of commission to be payable by
the Group to the CIFI Ever Sunshine Services Group for the transactions
contemplated under the 2021 Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement for
the three financial years ending 31 December 2024 were set for RMB75 million,
RMB110 million and RMB140 million respectively.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION IN
RELATION TO SALES AGENCY SERVICES (Consinued)

As disclosed in the announcement dated 23 December 2021, CIFI Ever Sunshine
Services is accounted for and consolidated in the consolidated financial statements
of the Company as a subsidiary of the Company by virtue of applicable
accounting principles. Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng are
executive Directors and the Controlling Shareholders of the Company. Mr. LIN
Zhong and Mr. LIN Feng are also directors of Spectron Enterprises who make
decisions on matters relating to the voting rights over the entrusted shares of
CIFI Ever Sunshine Services under Entrusted Voting Arrangement in the capacity
of Spectron Enterprises’ directors. Accordingly, CIFI Ever Sunshine Services is
regarded as a connected subsidiary of the Company by virtue of Rule 14A.16(1)
of the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the 2021 Sales Agency
Services Framework Agreement therefore constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For further
information in relation to the 2021 Sales Agency Framework Agreement, please

refer to the announcement of the Company dated 23 December 2021.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
The Company has maintained the public float as required by the Listing Rules

during the year under review.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its shares listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The Group’s subsidiaries are incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group’s headquarters
in PRC is located in Shanghai and operations are mainly carried out by the
Group’s subsidiaries in PRC. We have also maintained headquarters in Hong

Kong, being the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Our establishments and operations accordingly shall mainly comply with relevant
laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, the British Virgin Islands, the PRC
and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of
this report, we believe there was no material breach of or non-compliance with all
the applicable laws and regulations by the Group in such relevant jurisdictions

that have a significant impact on the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Board is of opinion that the Company had adopted, applied and complied

with the code provisions that were in force as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31 December
2021.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company’s Articles of Association provides that every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a Director in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in his favour,
or in which he is acquitted. Such provisions were in force during the course of
the financial year ended 31 December 2021 and remained in force as at the date
of this annual report. In addition, liability insurance for directors and officers is
maintained by the Company with appropriate coverage for certain legal actions

against the directors and senior management of the Company.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to

approximately RMB157 million (2020: approximately RMB116 million).

Details of donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2021 will be set out in the 2021 Environmental, Social and Governance Report

of the Company which will be published separately from this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Save as disclosed in the above paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes” and
“Share Award Scheme” in this section, no equity-linked agreements were entered

into during the year and subsisted at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into during the year

or subsisted at the end of the year.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who will
retire at the 2022 AGM. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2022
AGM.

By order of the Board

LIN Zhong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2022

Note: The English names marked with “*” of the PRC entities are provided for identification purpose only.
The Chinese names are the official names of the PRC entities.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD.

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CIFI Holdings (Group)
Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 185 to 406, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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We identified the valuation of investment properties as a
key audit matter due to the management’s judgements and
estimations associated with determining the fair value.

The investment properties of the Group mainly represented
shopping malls, residential and office units located in

the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and carried

at RMB40,433 million as at 31 December 2021, which
represented 9.3% of the Group’s total assets. Change in fair
value of investment properties of RMB1,308 million was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year then ended.

All of the Group’s investment properties are stated at fair

value based on valuations performed by independent qualified
professional valuers which are not connected with the Group (the
“Valuers”). Details of the valuation techniques and significant
unobservable inputs used in the valuations are disclosed in

note 14 to the consolidated financial statements. The fair value
is dependent on certain significant unobservable inputs that
involve judgement and estimation made by the management of
the Group together with the Valuers, including, among other
factors, reversionary yield derived from market rent.

BBV (AR A
o APEFEERTIOER - M BIE

o BRI B KGR E ER o 1 A
1L T G At (L Oy o S B At (1 A0 T D 4 A (5 iy S
HORN AT B A\ B ) & A

o BB FRIMH 2R S A0 0 B B B AL 1 s AR L
B R A B 1) £ (B AT AR A BRI AT 5 0 5 &%

o AL A A LA BT Ak Al (BRI A9 A (E
o 90 P TR RO T BB i A SR A 5 B

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

o Evaluating the Valuers’ competence, capabilities and
objectivity;

o Obtaining an understanding from the management
and the Valuers about the valuation techniques and
challenging the valuation techniques and reasonableness
of the significant unobservable inputs used by the Valuers
by comparing to specific information of the Group and the
market;

o Assessing the integrity of information provided by the
management to the Valuers by comparing details of rentals
on a sample basis to the respective underlying existing
lease agreements; and

. Involving our internal valuation expert, on a sample basis,
to evaluate the appropriateness of the valuation techniques
and reasonableness of the significant unobservable inputs
used by the Valuers.
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Assessment of the net realisable value (“NRV”) of properties under development for sale and properties held for sale
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We identified the valuation of the Group’s and the joint Our procedures in relation to assessing the appropriateness of the
ventures’ properties under development for sale (the “PUD”)  valuation of the Properties included:

and properties held for sale (the “PFS”) (collectively referred to
as the “Properties”) as a key audit matter due to the significant
judgements with reference to the estimated market prices, the
estimation of future costs of completion of the PUD and costs

necessary to make the sale.

o Assessing the reasonableness of the NRV of certain
Properties determined by the management by reference
to the cities and locations where the Properties are located
and other relevant market factors on a sample basis, by
comparing the NRV to the latest market prices achieved

As disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial in the same projects or by comparable properties, in
position, the Group had properties under development for accordance with our understanding of the Group’s and
sale of RMB167,611 million and properties held for sale of joint ventures’ business and the real estate industry in the
RMB20,690 million as at 31 December 2021. In addition, as PRC and Hong Kong; and

disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements,

the joint ventures had properties under development for o Assessing the reasonablenes_s of the estimation of‘the NRV
sale of RMB115,861 million and properties held for sale of and future costs to completion of certain Properties and
RMB19,212 million as at 31 December 2021. estimated costs necessary to make the sale by reference to

’ the actual development cost of other similar completed
As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, projects of the Group on a sample basis.

the management of the Group determined the NRYV of these
Properties by reference to the estimated market prices of

the Properties, which takes into account a number of factors
including recent prices achieved for similar property types in
the same project or by similar properties, and the prevailing
and forecasted real estate market conditions in the PRC and
Hong Kong and the estimate future costs to completion of
the properties under development for sale by reference to
the actual development cost and the costs to be incurred in
selling the properties based on prevailing market conditions.

If the NRV of the Properties are found to be lower than their
carrying amounts, the carrying amounts of the Properties are
reduced to their NRV.

Based on the management's analysis of the NRV of the
Properties, no write-downs were considered to be necessary.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Revenue recognised from sales of properties
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We identified revenue recognised from sales of properties as

a key audit matter as it is quantitatively significant to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and there is judgement involved in determining the
appropriate point at which to recognise revenue from sales of

properties.

Revenue from sales of properties in the PRC is recognised when
control of the completed property is transferred to the customer,
i.e. at the point of delivering of the properties to buyers and

when the criteria as disclosed in note 3 “Revenue from contracts
with customers” to the consolidated financial statements are

satisfied. The Group recognised revenue of RMB99,288 million
from sales of properties for the year ended 31 December 2021 as

disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Our procedures in relation to revenue recognised from sales of

properties included:

. Obtaining an understanding of and testing the
management’s control over the process of properties

delivery to buyers;

o Assessing the terms stated in the sales and purchase
agreements, on a sample basis, and obtaining the delivery
notices issued by the Group to the buyers to assess whether
the control of the properties are transferred to the buyers;

and

o Reviewing the relevant supporting documents in relation
to the projects delivered to buyers prior to 31 December
2021, on a sample basis, to assess whether the revenue are

recognised in an appropriate period.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process.



182

T S A% B Tt

Independent Auditor’s Report

A S i 7 % At M e UK
Py R

BHMEE > REGE MH RSN
A7 AE R R 5 R T 0 K
B AR BRI T A B > AR B
ZW ek BT (EREE) A
$E % R BT o BRI 2 A A
i AR o B % R AL
F 10 25 ) A AT Al A 1 SR AT AT
BEAE o A BORGE R R KOF 10 (R > R
FlE 1% A i L 5 i T R AT 1 B
A 38— T K R RO A7 AR B R
S8 AL BT L T JUCRE SRR 1 B R
B 0TS0 L B A T i B
B BB A BT 2 I B A 2 A T R
FAR RIS > QA B 8 R O T
WA K -

BT s AT A AT B R o
IS P R
B o BATR -

o IR Al p A SRR S R T A 2K
for e T R R B R G R R AL P
JRBR - it XA LR AR
LR o AR HOTE A A T
FAZIER > AF 55 HE IR -
R E AT REW Bl ~ i - &
BT R o o R R AR
Btz b RIBEOR AE SR BRI I
HEESCE O B R R A L A R A
S PR B v T A A B R B )
JEB o

o IR BELAZM B 0 PR B R > AR

RHEE R ERREF - HE Rk

TR B AR A A R R
H o

iy HE =

o AHEEFPTRN G RIBORA
Lo A Al w A AR B 48 8 119 5 2
P o

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2021

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions

of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the

directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to

eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

183
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s

report is Tse Fung Chun.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

24 March 2022
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it et S Se <2
2021 2020
st ARWTIX ARWTT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
KA Revenue 5 107,834,741 71,798,663
SHE RS A Cost of sales and services (87,037,295) (56,189,600)
Ecy | Gross profit 20,797,446 15,609,063
HABICA ~ Weat K Es1E Other income, gains and losses 7 2,075,998 3,173,369
BEYEN T HES) Change in fair value of investment properties 1,308,122 940,585
AR T TS5 HE B Selling and marketing expenses (2,366,929)  (2,067,375)
TTHBH 2 Administrative expenses (3,767,093)  (2,946,420)
JEAL A5 245 Share of results of joint ventures 251,512 968,468
iﬂ.ﬁgﬂﬂj%ﬁ’%’/z_\\ﬁj ESa Share of results of associates 507,292 1,159,501
Rl A Finance costs 8 (578,745) (667,424)
B3B8 i A Profit before taxation 18,227,603 16,169,767
P Re b 3% Income tax expense 9 (5,900,426) (4,274,234)
48 A Profit for the year 10 12,327,177 11,895,533
HApb 2w (B%) : Other comprehensive income (expense):
e EH A E B lEHA - Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
i profit or loss:
672 2y B Ui i P Fair value change on hedging instruments
THA V% E) designated as cash flow hedge 11,967 (89,227)
e R et e SRUOE SRLL Reclassification of fair value change on hedging
LA 58 By 5 instruments designated as cash flow hedge to
DR EELG profit or loss 30,547 20,260
AN B E A a 1EHH - Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
A PEFAHA R T Fair value loss on investments in equity instruments
(A TPAEFFA M 2EZA D) ar fair value through other comprehensive income
E"Jﬂﬁzl—“]:/ﬁ\‘ﬁ B FEREE (“FVTOCI") (407,156) (96,659)
AR R A AL 2 T AR Income tax relating to equity instruments at
JeAs T EL i B A5 FVTOCI (610) 16,720
(365,252) (148,9006)
A 9 A i OA B Total comprehensive income for the year 11,961,925 11,746,627
DA 45 TE B A 4F P R - Profit for the year attributable to:
A% ) e AR it Equity owners of the Company 7,612,919 8,031,895
KAEARTRA A Owners of perpetual capital instruments 118,773 229,627
FEPEIRAE AT Non-controlling interests 4,595,485 3,634,011
12,327,177 11,895,533
DA 45 JEURE A 4F A 2 T Total comprehensive income for the year
W AN KB attributable to:
2'-‘&%%%1‘%{{1 Equity owners of the Company 7,247,667 7,882,989
KAEARTHBER N Owners of perpetual capital instruments 118,773 229,627
PSS Non-controlling interests 4,595,485 3,634,011
11,961,925 11,746,627
% & % %F
2021 2020
(KEHE51)
(restated)
BB (A RWT) - Earnings per share, in RMB:
ek Basic 13 0.92 0.99
0 Diluted 13 0.91 0.99
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e Sk S S <2
ZREF—-H FZAETH
31/12/2021  31/12/2020

WaE  ARBTL AR

NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Fei B ¥ NON-CURRENT ASSETS
G Investment properties 14 40,432,643 22,698,969
LERN GG ] Property, plant and equipment 15 525,093 235,207
AR Right-of-use assets 16 213,318 117,325
LAY Intangible assets 17 328,474 91,049
[k Goodwill 17 1,343,707 470,952
ﬁ/\ e g/NTIl g Interests in associates 18 18,447,511 16,861,861
MBS ENER Incerests in joint ventures 19 15,966,150 17,825,596
ﬁAF ETEE W E Investments in property projects 20 321,571 286,531
BN TERT AR & ([T ATERA Financial assets at fair value through
TE DNERERE profit or loss (“FVTPL”) 21 1,221,747 905,388
N FEFEARA 2 EIARBATE  Equity instruments at FVTOCI 22 207,447 739,685
EAEBUIR AR Deferred taxation assets 38 2,201,865 2,195,730
LERY NGl Prepayment of property, plant and equipment 25 367 12,448
EHEA A A Deferred contract costs 12,663 -
81,222,556 62,440,741
wEe R CURRENT ASSETS

FE &Y% Properties held for sale 23 20,690,184 12,904,429
e R B R Properties under development for sale 24 167,611,374 129,018,163

TR R ARG ~ # K Accounts and other receivables, deposits and
AR prepayments 25 34,816,698 30,384,186
JRE i FE 47 FRCHEE £5 2R Amounts due from non-controlling interests 26 32,910,760 26,359,618
TENST A 78 2 g8 Wl B R Amounts due from joint ventures and associates 27 36,381,098 57,515,448

FRAE &3 000 T RE Deposits for land use rights for properties

held for sale 7,154,419 5,704,636
AT B Taxation recoverable 4,817,209 3,443,355
BATERT ARG NS A = Financial assets at FVTPL 21 431,061 374,261
Z IR RAT X Restricted bank deposits 29 247,239 101,873
WITEER R4 Bank balances and cash 29 46,462,460 51,052,696
TRIEAHIA Deferred contract costs 4,474 -

351,526,976 316,858,665




TR R | U RER () AIRAF

=
e B S ESES:
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
Wi 3E ARBTL  AR¥TT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
HE s CURRENT LIABILITIES
T IRk S A B T D B Accounts and other payables and
JEGHE 2 accrued charges 30 68,298,821 58,332,009
e Oh=t Contract liabilities 31 77,822,084 74,626,818
JHE A5} FE-47¢ FRCHEE £5 2R Amounts due to non-controlling interests 26 9,281,787 12,207,232
W?ﬁ%%ﬁ%&ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ 3 IE Amounts due to joint ventures and associates 27 40,823,109 32,425,022
JEATRLIE Taxation payable 9,708,922 10,248,100
THE AR OR =R FH) Lease liabilities — due within one year 32 69,783 65,824
SRAT R A i 2 O — A A E ) Bank and other borrowings — due within one year 33 11,930,926 7,300,715
B TR (R — N 3I) Senior notes — due within one year 34 4,971,339 3,637,114
INTlES (AR EI) Corporate bonds — due within one year 35 832,898 7,761,443
4R TR (R—ERF) Derivative financial instruments
— due within one year 28 - 266,362
223,739,669 206,870,639
B NET CURRENT ASSETS 127,787,307 109,988,026
B0 AW I £ A TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 209,009,863 172,428,767
YA B il CAPITAL AND RESERVES
JeAs Share capital 37 715,191 668,481
Tkt Reserves 41,274,963 35,383,200
AN Al R R ME AR I AR 2 Equity attributable to owners of the Company 41,990,154 36,051,681
KAEATH Perpetual capital instruments 36 1,924,545 3,536,877
JE R 47 Non-controlling interests 63,485,094 44,053,692
REZR A TOTAL EQUITY 107,399,793 83,642,250
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SR CFEg
SEUESE I E R
31/12/12021 31/12/2020

Wi ARBTE  ARKTR

NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Fei B £ NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

o AT FOH (R — AR 31 Other payable — due after one year 30 20,787 6,849
B AR R —FREH) Lease liabilities — due after one year 32 155,023 56,748
SRAT LA K (R — R 5 H) Bank and other borrowings — due after one year 33 60,957,693 54,260,449
BT (R — AR 31) Senior notes — due after one year 34 25,050,987 26,979,739
NEES (R =R 3I) Corporate bonds — due after one year 35 10,368,164 4,775,653
EREBIEAE Deferred taxation liabilities 38 5,042,876 2,650,025
MM T A (R —FEEH) Derivative financial instruments — due after one year 28 14,540 57,054

101,610,070 88,786,517

209,009,863 172,428,767

FE185SFE406 H W EE T MBI FEC X —F  The consolidated financial statements on pages 185 to 406 were approved and
TOHFEZA B EE RS HME IR authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 24 March 2022 and are signed
RETEE > 3l B AR on its behalf by:

o hig LIN ZHONG LIN FENG
HHF HH DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
WEZEZ—F T H="1—HILAEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

AhARREEER

Autributable to equity ownets of the Company

HAFE kR

BHR BE GAE R KA
Kbk BREE  AWWA BERR Rt BRE LR KATE s
Rk b Special  Statutory Bl Shaesheld  SEEIGHR Bl Cpial R REFE Perpetual Non-

Share Share and other supls~ FVIOCI  forshare  Shareaward  Shareoption  contribution ~~ Hedging ~ Retained it apial  controlling &t

apil  premium feserve feserve teserve - award scheme feserve feserve feserve feseve profits Subotal  instruments interests Total

MERTE ARMTE ARMTL ARMTL ARMTE ARMTL ARMTE ARMTL ARMTL ARMTL ARMTL ARMTL ARMTL ARMTL ARMTL
RMBON  RMBO  RMBOO  RMBOO  RMBOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RAMBOOO

(st
(Note¢)

REFZEE-f-H At ] January 2020 639723 3543948 494803 2,449,603 379,295 (143,256) - 144292 39440 - 651489 30199337 3883572 34114036 68196945
ERilR Proftfr the yar - - - - - - - - - - SIS DK MG 340 TL8SSH
RERGEEHI Fair value change on hedging instruments designated

EWTAATHES as cash flow hedge - - _ _ _ _ B B _ 27) ~ w20 B - 82)
METAR AR Reclasification offar value change on hedging

HTHATERE instruments designated as cash flow hedge o

R e proficor loss - - - - - - - - B (V] S - 0
SATEAS AL Fair value loss on investments in equity inscruments

TALRERATEER «EVIOCl - - - - 0669 - - - - - - 0669) - - 0669)
HBRATEALBAEIA  Income tax elaring o equity nstruments at FVTOCI

HRA TR HE - - - N (%) - - - - - B (R - o
ERRTH () A Total comprehensive expense) income for the year - - - - - 7,882,989 11,746,627
Lo Appropriations to teserve - - - - - - - -
RERDEE RS Purchase of shares under the share award scheme - - - - - (106,717) (106,717)
EERRAEE Share awards vested - - (42,660) - - - -
ARG TMMATE  Recognicion of equity-svted share ased payments

(B0 (nore 46 - - o0 B33 - 8598 85983
BB AR (H ) Dividend recognised as distribution (note 12) - - - - - (2,828,541) (2828541)
AR BB TRA L L2R37)  Toue ofsharesfor scrp dividend (note 1220 37) 319 47914 - - - 185,33 8,
ARG A TN Capital reduction of subsidiaries from non-controlling

interests - - - - - - (L721,834)
HEREaHEL NS Capital contribution of subsidiaries
from non-controlling interests - - - - - - 7,752,200

YRR A (His0) Acquisicion of subsidiaries (note 39) - - - - - - 388,501
B AR BRI R AR Acquisition of addicional interests in subsidiaries

MR (i) from non-controlling interests (note 2 - - - - - (446,110) (1,670,355)
PAEPRERE EMRMATIS  Disposal o pacal inveess in subsidiries o

& (o) non-controlling interests (note b) - - - - - 11,230 1,538,360
HE-HHEAR Deregistration of a subsidiary - - - - - - (59,167
HERBL (ko) Disposal ofsubsidiaris (note 40) - - - - - - (674.806)
RATEERERNRE Dividend paid to non-controlling interests - - - - - - (762,609)
[ i Issue of shares upon exercise of share options 498 121,896 - - - - - (22539 - - - 104340 - - 104340
RERR W) Plcing ofshaes note 37) 16456 1,009,135 - - - - - - - - - LI - B T50]
VR Forfeiture of share options - - - - - - - (151) - - 151 - - - -
HAAEATESA VMR Distribution to owners of perpetual capital instruments - - - - - - - - - - - - (815 - (8154
BEKAEATE Redemprion of perperual capital instruments - - - - - - - - - - - - (38168 - (38168
FAHREEAARAT Issue of shares to the non-controlling interest of Ever

(T e Mt Sunshine Services Group Limited ('Ever Sunshine')

i - - B - - - - - - - - I - LA 1447
MR Acquiscion of addiional ntrests in BverSunshine - S (0943 - - - - - - - - 1098 - S 109430

REF-FELA=1-H At31 December 2020 068481 512893 GOLT3L BILLSS 299356 (216314) - 164925 3040 (68967 27200743 3605681 3536877 44053692  85,642250
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ALARRREEER
Auributable to equity owners of the Company

BATE A

15k B AR s A
Rkl EBRE  2ERA BARD O BRE  hERE KATR iR
RA  RiNE Specal  Statutory Bl Saresheld Bl ol HWEE  REHE Pepel Not-

Share Share and other surplus FVTOCI forshare ~ Share option  contribution Hedging Retained NGt apitl  controlling &
apil  premium eserve feserve reserve  award scheme feserve eserve feserve profits Subtotal  instruments nterests Total
AREFE ARKTL ARMTT AREFL ARMTE ARNTE ARETR ARWTT ARRTR ARRTL ARWTR ARETR ARWTR ARETR
RMBOOO  RMBUO0 RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD ~ RMBOOD  RMBOOO RMBOOO  RMBOOO ~ RMBOOD ~ RMBOOD  RMB0OO RMBOOO  RMBOOO

(ko)
(note )
i S S B At1 January 2021 668481 5152893 GOL73L) 311185 299,356 (216314) 164925 39440 (68967) 272017143 36051681 3536877 44053692 83,642,250
R Proficfr the year - - - - - - - - - T6099 699 LSTB 4B 130T
HERRETEENHEN LR Fair value change on hedging instruments designated
Jiaii | ascuh fow hedge - - - - - - - - - - -
WEEERATEHMIEN TR Redlassihaation offair vaue change on hedging
AHERBER AR RE instruments designated as cash flow hedge o
profit or o - - - - - - - - 30,547 - 30,547 - - 30,547
BATHALBAEIAN Fair value loss on investments in equity instruments at
TATARRATHEER FVTOCH - - - - oo - - - - - s - -6
HEEATEALREIA Tncome tax relating to equity instruments at FVTOCI
WA TRATR - - - - (610) - - - - - (610) - - (610)
ERAT ) ALE Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year - - - - (407,766) - - - 2514 7612919 747667 18773 4595485 11,961,925
aRzhE Appropriaions to feserve - - - 78,515 - - - - - (783,315) - - - n
it e g Putchase of shares under the share award scheme - - - - - (211,839 - - - - (211,839) - - (211,839
B AR SR T Recognition of equity-settled share based payments
(Fiztio) (nore ) - - - - - - s - - - b - - b
EABMREE (B Dividend recogaisedas distribution (note 12) - - - - - - - - S80806 282806 - S 82806)
AR BRI T R37) s ofsharesfor scrip dividend (noes 12 and 37) 8098 482,164 - - - - - - - - 490262 - - 190,262
FEREGREA DS Capital contribution of subsidiaries
from non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - - - BB 1BIT439
FHREEREA L) Capital reduction of subsidiaties from
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - - - (6627200 (2,662,720)
WOEEB Al (3t 39) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39) - - - - - - - - - - - - 9802793 9892793
B AR IR ORI E AR Acquisition of addicional interests in subsidiaries
14 (k) from non-controlling interests (note 2) - - - - (551,732) (3970,292)
ARERS ERBAT Disposal of partalinteests in subsidiares to
RS (W3tn) non-controlling interests (note b) - - - - (1.30) 10,130
SR AR Detegistration of a subsidiary - - - - - (48,020)
HENE L (ko) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) - - - - - (441,190)
HERAFE AKMATEIAR  Disposal o ivestment i equicy instruments ac FVTOCI
AT A - - - - 4m - - - - W - - - -
R THERERNRS Dividend paid to non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - - — (1967871)  (1.967871)
TR T RMGEST RORE I of shrsby Righs Isue (s dfinedinnoe 7). 34714 134006 - - -6 - - - - L - - L3667
LR G Issue of shares upon exercise of share options 3898 203,110 - - - - (37836) - - - 169,172 - - 169,172
TR Forfeiture of share options - - - - - - (157 - - 157 - - - -
HAAEA AR VMR Distribution to owners of perpetual captal instruments - - - - - - - - - - - (4753 - (453
BIAABATR Redemption of perpetual capital instruments - - - - - - - - - - - (1383971 - (1383971
T EE Isue of shares o the non-controlling
ik intetest of Ever Sunshine - - el - - - - - - - sl S BTH8 1076509

= At 31 December 2021 T591 TSI (@183 3895310 (04239)  (443798) 156,377 3440 (26453) 31204307 41990154 1924545 63485094 107399793



-

=%

it

()

(b)

(©

i

I

D ARAR R | BRI (SR ARAE

JULARAE B (S ) A7 B i) R OB T 8 ) (T A 4
) TA AR TAY B T B 2 W09 JE 152 A i A
R AU 4 W MR o

AR A2 L 6 i R A5 S 2 PG 2 O T (1) A48
FHANRNESS1,732,00000 (= F ZF4F - ARWE
446,110,0007C) E A HE 2 FPERR. ©

SRSt 25 T 24 0 T 2
PRI -

B i A £ B TR 2 1 114 JE o B A 2 3 2 ]
Mg N R M7,232,00000 (& 4 - AR
11,230,0007G) FARERE HFERR o

AR e N R ILAN R (A ) 1S 14 i A T I
O F N ALAR R AR A S IR A R AR s o
109 BRBUR I 2 2 E B ARG - H R
REFFEMEE A 509 o P15 A UGk AT ) BB AR
HERE A NP IRIB S BT E Y o A2 R R GH A vl T
VTR AR AL AF BE R 1R~ BT B 10 S5 2
A L WA O R RN LR -

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(©)

During the year, CIFI Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) acquired
additional equity interests in certain subsidiaries from their non-controlling interests.

The total differences between the consideration paid and the carrying amount of the non-
controlling interests attributable to the acquired interests amounted to RMB551,732,000 (2020:
RMB446,110,000) were recognised in equity.

During the year, the Group disposed equity interests in certain subsidiaries without losing control.

The total differences between the consideration received and the adjustment to the non-controlling
interests in subsidiaries amounted to RMB7,232,000 (2020: RMB11,230,000) were recognised in
equity.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of all subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”), those subsidiaries are required to transfer 5% to 10% of the profit after taxation
to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital. Transfer to
reserve must be made before the distribution of dividends to equity holders. The statutory surplus
reserve can be used to make up for previous years’ losses, expand the existing operations or convert
into additional capital of the subsidiaries.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

WEZEZ—F T H="1—HILAEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

=
2021 2020
ARWTE  ARWTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
A IRIRE Profit before taxation 18,227,603 16,169,767
AT TR S i Adjustments for:

& AR Finance costs 578,745 667,424
TS B R Allowance for expected credit losses 59,940 48,082
W2t~ W Bokiin g Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 119,081 61,760
{f R e Depreciation of right-of-use assets 90,221 87,123
ST Amortisation of intangible assets 32,178 35,314
A4 T BN P E Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments 26,160 244,099
BN TER A BRI S M E Change in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL

NOTESES) 580,539 (401,095)
WEYZENTEEE) Change in fair value of investment properties (1,308,122) (940,585)
— 1 ) e o I i g Gain on bargain purchase of an associate (77,440) -
H B e A ] W VAR Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net (77,898) (621,377)
B E 2 e Gain on disposal of associates (40,296) (8,772)
HEAE S Gain on disposal of joint ventures (371,578) (411,560)
WEYE - R BRI f R Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net (377) (5,923)
$ L0 [ B S R i s R Loss on early redemption of senior notes 80,908 42,545
FEAL &8 2240 Share of results of joint ventures (251,512) (968,468)
i =N E Share of results of associates (507,292) (1,159,501)
FLEMA Interest income (584,328) (618,589)
P3ETE B BCE BRI Dividend income from investments in property projects (13,614) (100,787)
Y)2ETA H #OE R AN S Change in fair value of investments in property projects (59,561) 80,927
A TERA R T A L Dividend income from financial assets at FVTOCI

SREREBRA (29,080) (46,106)
AN EFIABR NS RE ER S Dividend income from financial assets at FVTPL (404,962) (179,096)
THE R DA JRe A i 245 R ) RO 3K Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments 29,445 85,983
T 5005 4 AR Net exchange gain (790,680) (858,619)
BEESEIIE RSN E Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 15,308,080 11,202,546
R BT Decrease in properties held for sale 87,318,749 52,786,920
A HEE (Y B s b g SE 3 Increase in properties under development for sale (97,301,405)  (68,334,280)

IRE SR B FEA R MR

Decrease (increase) in accounts and other receivables,

4 T AT SR D (B ) deposits and prepayments 1,691,211 (11,040,353)
FrlE 1 1 26 1 M FRESZ 238 Increase in deposits for land use rights for properties
held for sale (2,824,173) (5,936,799)
PEIEA 40 A B A Increase in deferred contract costs (17,137) -
JRE A B R B H A B AT T DA B Increase in accounts and other payables
JREFT B S 0 and accrued charges 5,243,082 17,962,939
FHE 4 T H (b)) 1 m (Decrease) increase in derivative financial instruments (287,982) 3,067
LB AN Increase in contract liabilities 2,436,384 25,706,954
KA TSI 4 Cash generated from operations 11,566,809 22,350,994
E A A B BT B PRC income tax paid (6,729,487)  (5,369,392)
RGBT NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 4,837,822 16,981,602
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2021 2020
M ARWTE ARWTT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
BRI INVESTING ACTIVITIES
] A A 2B Advances to joint ventures (18,421,796)  (36,085,178)
BRI Repayment from joint ventures 24,056,258 25,856,543
I B W) AR Advances to associates (9,830,647)  (25,271,818)
T /NEIEF Repayment from associates 10,426,233 18,449,903
Ir) 2 P i K Advances to non-controlling interests (20,036,191)  (25,600,951)
e PR £ 2 K Repayment from non-controlling interests 11,284,443 16,320,613
1) R B 7 B Advances to related parties (6,627) -
WEREYZE Additions to investment properties (3,435,059) (737,430)
REEYIZE ~ B Bkt Purchase of property, plant and equipment (285,099) (125,617)
WY - R Bk ff T 3R Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 2,912 10,598
HER Y5 308 Proceeds from disposal of investment properties 2,912 932
S A T ST Net cash inflow from disposal of associates 77,714 52,105
& G ER BB R AT Net cash inflow from disposal of joint ventures 705,094 617,830
WS B /A R B4R () RATREE Net cash (outflow) inflow from acquisitions of
subsidiaries 39 (4,108,390) 153,917
HERE AR B SWA () 34 Net cash inflow (outflow) from disposal of
subsidiaries 40 814,456 (755,603)
IEE A TEFI ARG EMEE  Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL (5,028,101) (934,792)
B 1 TR AR AR 1Y Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at FVTPL
S Y A A RO 4,049,987 1,095,574
B TE R A AL 2 1 Proceeds from disposal of equity instruments
WA Y A T BB 15208 at FVTOCI 125,082 -
17 B 52 PRI ERA T A K Placement of restricted bank deposits (240,366) (3,070,064)
PEEUZ IR I SRAT A2 3K Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits 95,000 3,399,886
WA E AT Capital injection into joint ventures (4,813,227) (5,098,447)
AERERE Capital reduction from joint ventures 1,584,846 -
e A FNE G Capital injection into associates (3,061,895)  (8,532,296)
WA mE Capital reduction from associates 52,500 -
1] & 7 A FE R R Dividend received from joint ventures 967,843 1,128,178
T g 8w B Dividend received from associates 1,521,505 968,350
AN TERF AR 1 4 Dividends received from financial assets at FVTPL
B BTIOR R 404,962 179,096
A TAER A A A2 AR Dividends received from financial assets at FVTOCI
4l TR B, 29,080 46,106
2 E Interest received 584,328 618,589
IR H R HBCE [ Returns of investments in property projects 32,743 133,790
B3 W 9 B2 i NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (12,449,500)  (37,180,186)
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TR RO
2021 2020
AR¥TIE AR¥®TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
W) FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BN Advances from joint ventures 11,661,156 14,983,579
] A A SE R Repayment to joint ventures (9,538,479)  (12,890,346)
i /Nl U Advances from associates 7,393,305 6,643,313
Ie) B 8 ) K Repayment to associates (3,332,905) (5,465,006)
JE 1 BEHE 25 1 3K Advances from non-controlling interests 6,812,440 7,402,354
Ti1) I P52 RO 25 4 2K Repayment to non-controlling interests (12,113,455)  (9,085,162)
I 2 P 55 S A ) Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries from
FHAME £ non-controlling interests (4,522,024) (1,670,355)
I [ 7 2 3K Repayment to related parties (785,125) -
Wi i T AR M 23 Acquisition of additional interests in Ever Sunshine - (709,432)
HTHEERAT R I 3R New bank and other borrowings raised 39,564,522 52,651,826
B ARAT B At 3R Repayment of bank and other borrowings (33,832,315)  (46,067,109)
BT S g P A5 2B VR AR Net proceeds from issue of senior notes 5,816,207 10,307,538
BTN AlE S S P E R A Net proceeds from issue of corporate bonds 6,297,708 3,854,520
I I {2 24 Redemption of senior notes (5,924,587) (5,527,049)
I8 [m] 2 W A 2 Redemption of corporate bonds (7,572,000)  (3,120,562)
IR ]k A B A T Redemption of perpetual capital instruments (1,583,571) (348,168)
EAFLE Interest paid (6,404,710)  (6,114,976)
HEAEEX Repayment of lease liabilities (83,980) (78,515)
In] FE PE IR R £ 1 BB A Proceeds from disposal of partial interests in subsidiaries
FR R 45 1) P 152K A to non-controlling interests 2,898 1,538,366
I 7T () I 22 2 35 A T IR0 Issue of shares to non-controlling interest of Ever Sunshine 1,076,509 1,428,247
T b 5 1 Capital contributions from non-controlling interests 13,175,439 7,752,200
i B B A9 T A5 T 4 Net proceeds from placing of shares - 1,025,591
DAL X B8 4T By Issue of shares by Rights Issue 1,366,671 -
A7 (o I RO A5 TR Proceeds from exercise of share options 169,172 104,340
R A 25 B ot 381 A 0 L 47 Purchase of shares under share award scheme (211,835) (106,717)
K A E AR T EEEA NIk Distribution to owners of perpetual capital instruments (147,534) (228,154)
URASE T I 42 e i 1) A Dividend paid to non-controlling interests (1,967,871) (762,609)
i ARG AR E R Y e Payment to non-controlling interests upon
HERR A 3K deregistration of subsidiary (48,020) (59,167)
EAE Dividend paid (2,332,544)  (2,343,308)
A 35 ) 7 4 B VB NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 2,935,072 13,115,239
BL& BB SR WA T NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (4,677,106)  (7,083,345)
ERIBE RIS CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 51,052,696 58,536,676
A 5 28 Effect of foreign exchanges 86,870 (400,635)
AERBLE RIS CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF THE YEAR 46,462,460 51,052,696
B RS ESRME A B ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
SRAITEE R I B4 Bank balances and cash 46,462,460 51,052,696
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F+-_A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

L B 1. GENERAL INFORMATION

TR (L) AR AR ([AAF L) Js  CIFI Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) is a public limited company
PSSR ARER AT K& incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
R i B U W 52 2 T B R/l ([BE - Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
) BT o AN FMGEMIFF E ML registered office and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
B F B E MR N A A& B — 8 the corporate information section to the annual report.

AR -

RN T LBV AF o HEZEME /A The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details of the principal
A G HOR B RS 3 o activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 53.

GAMBEWMETILIARNFEEE W N The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which
R (T AR 2 - is the functional currency of the Company.
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